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AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A.:
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Compafifa de Distribucion
Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. (“the Parent™) and Subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2015, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year
then ended (“2015™).

The Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements so that they present fairly the equity, financial position and results of operations of the
Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the
Group in Spain indentified in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the preparation by Parent’s Directors of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consoiidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion,

¢, S.L Inscnia en ei Registro Mercantd de Madrid, tomo 13,850, seccion 8%, folic 188, hola M-54414, inscancisn 86°. CLF: B-79104469
io social: Plaza Pabio Ruiz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28028, Wadrid.




Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Comparifa de Distribucién
Integral Logista Holdings, 8.A. and Subsidiaries at 30 September 2015, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other
provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2015 contains the explanations which the
Parent’s directors consider appropriate about the Group’s situation, the evolution of its business and
other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. We have checked
that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is consistent with that contained
in the consolidated financial statements for 2015, Our work as auditors was confined to checking the
consolidated directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any
information other than that drawn from the accounting records of Compafifa de Distribucién Integral
Logista Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries.

DELGITTE, S.L.
Registered in ROACAmder no. S0692

José ZAHEF

28 October 2015
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Transfation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see Notes 2 and 32). In the
event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

30 SEPTEMBER 2015 AND 2014
{Thousands of Euros)

Note 2015 ) 2014 (%)

Revenue [ 24 9,470,990 9,499,3363
Procurements {8,460,920) {8,470,610)
GROSS PROFIT 1,040,070 1,028,726
Cost of logistics networks:

Staff costs 24.b (185,4586) {159,821}

Transport costs {208,865) (204,086}

Provincial sales office expenses ! (73,778) (69,755)

Depreciation and amortisation charge Gand 8 (85,345) (84,801)

Other operating expenses 24.c {153,450) (176,775)
Total cost of logistics networks (684,892} (695,238)
Commercial expenses:

Siaff costs 24.b (40,817 (40,910)

Other operating expenses 24.¢c (22,072) {25,398
Total commercial expenses {62,889) ) (66,308)!
Research expenses {2,382) {2,675)
Head office expenses:

Staff costs 24.b {63,844) (66,416}

Depreciation and amortisation charge 6y8 (4,334) {3,758}

Other operating expenses 24.¢c {33,703) (35,516}
Total head office expenses _{101,280) {105,690)
Share of results of companies 5 258 (1,877)
Nat loss on disposal and impairment of non-current assets 6and§ 1,689 (16,143)
Other expenses {17} _{2,328)
PROEIT EROM OPERATIONS 158,857 138,367
Finance income 24.e 12,370 21,779
Finance costs 24.f (4,284) (8,917)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 167,943 153,229
Income tax 18 (58,033} (53,670}
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS {109,910) 99 559
Resutt for the period from discontinued operations net of tax (3003 2 859
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 109,610 102,518
Attributable to

Sharehglders of the Parent 109,193 102,347

Minority interests e 16 417 171
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 5 0,82 077

() On 1 October 2014 Logista Group has applied IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” restating the
consolidated income statement as of 30 September 2014 for comparative purposes (Note 2.2)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 are an integrai part of
the consolidated income statements for 2015,



Transtation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFR3s as adopled by the European Union (see Notes 2 and 32). In the
event of g discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 AND 2014
{Thousands of Euros)

Note 2015 2014 (%)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 109,610 102,518
Net gain {loss) on available for sale financial assets registered in equity - -
Net gain {loss) on cash flow hedging instruments registered in equity (Net) - -
Net actuarial gain (loss} recognised directly in equity 18 {1,124) (1,366}
Foreign exchange rate changes (44) 43
Net gain (loss) on taxes recognised directly in equity - -
TOTAL NET GAIN {(LOSS) REGISTERED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY {1,168) (1,323}
TOTAL NET GAIN {LOSS) CONSOLIDATED REGISTERED DURING THE YEAR 108,442 101,195
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent 108,025 101,024
Minority interests 417 171
TOTAL ATRIBUTABLE 108,442 101,195

(*} On 1 October 2014 Logista Group has applied IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” restating the comprehensive income statement as
of 30 September 2014 for comparative purposes (Note 2.2)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2015.
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Transiation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see Notes 2 and 32). In the

event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2015 AND 2014

{Thousands of Euros)

Note 2015 2014 (%)

CPERATING ACTIVITIES: 230,911 180,407
Consolidated profit before tax from continuing operations 167,943 153,229
Adjustments for:
Result of companies accounted for using the equity method {258) 1,877
Depreciation and amortisation charge Gand 8 80,885 89,200
Impairment losses 6 72 15,501
Provisions recognised/ (reversed) 9,833 {13,837)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 6y8 (1,761) 567
Financial profit (8,086) {14,862)
Nef change in assets / liabilities-
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 8,367 137,531
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables (6,221) (209,950}
Increase/(Dacrease) in trade payables (87.871) (58,144)!
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 121,047 183,559
Increase (Decrease) in other non-current liabilities (20,421) {(56,149)
Income tax paid (69,800) (58,014
Finance income and costs 8,182 7,862
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: {133,258} (93,678)
Payment for investment
Property, plant and equipment 6 (16,852) (18,767}
Intangible assets 8 (13,856) {15,942}
Other current financial assets {106,307) {63,069)
Proceeds from financial divestments
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,077 -
Group companies, net of cash in consolidated companias 16 680 -
Sale of non-current assets held for sale - 4,100
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: {106,755) (204,744)
Payment of dividends and remuneration of other equity instruments
Dividends 14 (108,200) (119,475}
Proceeds and payments of equity instruments
Acquisition of treasury shares 14 (670) -
Proceeds and payments for financiaf liabllity instruments
Repayment and amortization of:

Current borrowings (38} (229)

Other payables - (85,040)
Debt issuance 153 -
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {8,102} {118,015}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 31,816 148,831
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year {9,102) (118,615)
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year 22,7114 31,816

(*) On 1 October 2014 Logista Group has applied IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” restating the
consolidated balance sheet as of 30 September 2014 for comparative purposes (Note 2.2)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 are an integral part
of the consolidated cash flow statement for 2015



Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles in Spain (see Notes 2 and 32). In the svent of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language
version prevails.

Compaiiia de Distribucion integral Logista Holdings, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended
30 September 2015

1... General information on the Group

The Parent Company, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A., was incorporated as a
sociedad andnima (Spanish public limited company) on 13 May 2014, with its sole shareholder being
Altadis S.A.U., a company belonging to the Imperial Tobacco Group PLC. On 4 June 2014, the Company
effected a capital increase with all shares subscribed by Altadis S.A.U. through non-monetary contribution
of shares representing 100% of the share capital of Compania de Distribucion Integral Logista, SA.U.,
until that time the parent company of the Logista Group, from then onwards, the Company became the
Parent of the aforementioned Group.,

The reporting period of most of the Group companies starts on 1 October of each year and ends on 30
September of the following year. The twelve-month period ended 30 September 2014 will hereinafter be
referred to as “2014", the period ended 30 September 2015 as “2015", and so on.

The Company has registered office at Poligono Industrial Polvoranca, calle Trigo, no. 39, Leganés
{Madrid), being the Parent of the Group, the operating company of which is Compafiia de Distribucion
Integral Logista, S.A.U.

The Group, a distributor and jogistics operator, provides various distribution channels with a wide range of
value added products and services, including tobacco and related tobacco products, convenience goods,
electronic documents and products (such as mobile phone and travel card top-ups), drugs, books,
publications and fottery tickets. The Group provides these services through a complete infrastructure
network which spans the whole value chain, from picking to POS delivery.

The offering of shares in the Parent Company comes to an end on 14 July 2014, and its shares are
currently listed for trading on the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Compaiila de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. is the head of a group of domestic and foreign
subsidiaries that engage in various business activities and which compose, together with Logista Holdings
S.A., the Logista Group (hereinafter “the Group”).

A detail of the investees inciuded in the scope of consolidation comprising the Logista Group at 30
September 2015 and 2014 is provided in Appendices | and Ii, which includes, inter alia, the percentage
and cost of the ownership interest held by the Parent and the line of business, company name and
registered office of each investee.

In turn, Altadis, S.A.U., the majority shareholder of the Parent, belongs to the Imperial Tobacco Group
PLC. which is governed by the corporate legislation in force in the United Kingdom, and whose registered
office is at 121 Winterstoke Road, Bristol, BS3 2LL (United Kingdom). The consolidated financial
statements of the Imperial Tobacco Limited Group PLC for 2014 were formally prepared by its Directors at
the Board of Directors meeting held on 4 November 2014,

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements and basis of consolidation

2.1 Authorisation for issue of the consoclidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements were formally prepared by the directors in accordance with the
regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group, which consists of:



a) The Spanish Commercial Code and all other Spanish corporate law.

b} International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union, in
conformity with Regulation (EC) no, 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Law 62/2003, of
30 December, on Tax, Administrative, Labour and Social Security Measures.

¢} All other applicable Spanish accounting legislation.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, which were obtained from the accounting records of
the Company and of its subsidiaries, are presented in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group and, in particular, with the accounting principles and rules contained
therein and, accordingly, present fairly the Group's equity, financial position, results of operations and cash
flows for 2015. These consolidated financial statements were formally prepared by the Board of Directors
at its meeting on 27 October 2015. The directors of Compafiia de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings,
S.A. will submit these consolidated financial statements for approval by the Shareholders, and it is
considered that they will be approved without any changes.

The consolidated financial statements for 2014 were formally approved by the General Shareholders'
Meeting on 17 February 2015.

The principal accounting policies and measurement bases applied in preparing the Group's consolidated
financial statements for 2015 are summarised in Note 4.

2.2 Standards and interpretations effective in the current period

In the year ended 30 September 2015 the following standards, amendmenis to standards and
interpretations came into force, which, if applicable, were applied by the Group in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Mandatory

Standards and modifications application for

May 2011)

separafe financial statements of an entity

thereof: periods beginning

from

IFRS 10— Consolidated Financial | Replaces the current consolidation requirements of 1 Jan 2014

Statements (published in May 2011)|IAS 27. vary

IFRS 11— Joint Arrangements Replaces the current consolidation requirements of 1 January 2014

(published in May 2011} 1AS 31. ary

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of interests in Single standard that sets out disclosures related to

other entities (published in May interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and I January 2(114

2011 non-consolidated entities.

IAS 27 — Separate Financial The standard is revised because, following the

Statements (Revised) (published in }issuance of IFRS 10, it will now only include the 1 January 2014

TAS 28 (revised) — Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures
(published in May 2011).

Simuitaneous revision related to the issuance of IFRS
11 Joint Arrangements,

1 January 2014




Standards and modifications
thereof:

Mandatory
application for
periods beginning
from

Transition rules: Amendmenis tfo
IFRS 10, 11 and 12 (published in
June 2012)

Clarification of the transition rules of these standards

1 January 2014

Investment entities: Amendments to
{FRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
{published in October 2012)

Exception in consolidation for parent companies
whose businesses gualify as investment entities

1 January 2014

Amendment to IAS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation
Offsetting  Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (published in
December 2011}

Further clarifications of the rules for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities of TAS 32.

1 Januvary 2014

Amendments to  IAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets (published
in May 2013)

Clarifies when certain disclosures are required and
broadens those required when recoverable amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal

1 January 2014

Amendments 1o JAS 39 - Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting (published in
June 2013)

The amendments determine in which cases and under
what criteria the novation of a derivative does not
make the interruption of hedge accounting necessary.

1 January 2014

Amendments to IAS 19 — Defined
Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions (published in
November 2013)

The amendment aliows these contributions to be
recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which payment for the related service is
made if certain requirements are met

I July 2014

Improvements to the IFRS 2010-
2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle
{published in December 2013)

Minor amendments io certain standards

1 July 2014

IFRIC 21 Levies (published in May
2013)

Interpretation on when o recognise a lability for
tevies charged for participation by an entity in an
activity on a specified date.

17 June 2014

Entry into force of IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

RS 11 "Joint Arrangements”, mandatory for logista Group from 1 October 2014, affects the
consolidation of joint ventures, standard that replaces IAS 31, which are consolidated by the equity method
rather than the proportionate consolidation method (see note 2.7.2).

As a result of its application, changes in the consolidated balance sheet at 30 Septernber 2014 and the
consolidated income statement are as follows:

Conscolidated Balance
Thousands of euros Sept. 2014 Sept. 2014 Variation
restated

Non-current assets 1,824 278 1,929 506 (5,228)
Current assets 4,544,856 4,558,788 {13,832)
Total Assets 6,469,234 6,488,294 {19,080)
Equity 442,428 442 428 -
Non-current liabilities 418,033 418,033 -
Current liabilities 5,608,773 5,627 833 (19,060)
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,469,234 6,488,294 {19,060)




Consdlidated Income Statement

Thousands of eurcs Sept. 2014 Sept. 2014 Variation
restated

Revenue 9,499 336 9,508,567 (7,231)

Gross profit 1,028,726 1,036,013 (7,287)

Profit from operations 138,367 138,964 (597)

Profit before tax 153,229 153,630 {401)

Profit for the period 102,518 102,518 -

Entry into force of IFRIC 21 — Levies

Application of IFRIC 21 issued in May 2013 commenced on 17 June 2014. IFRIC 21 addresses the
accounting for a liability to pay a levy imposed by the government that is within the scope of 1AS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The effect of that modification is not significant for the Group.
2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but nof yet in force

At the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and
interpretations had been published by the IASB but had not become effective, either because their
effective date is subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements or because they had yet

to be endorsed by the European Union:

Standards and modifications

Mandatory
application for

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
{published in May 2014) (a)

jointly controlled operations whose activity constitutes a
business

thereof: periods beginning
from

IFRS 9, Financial Instriuments; Replaces the requirements for classification and| 1 January 2018
Classification, Measurement and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
Hedge Accounting (issued in July | derecognitions and hedge accounting of IAS 39,
2014) (a)
IFRS 15 —Revenue from Contracts |New standard on revenue recognition (replaces 1AS 11,] 1 January 2018
with Customers (published in May |IAS 18, [FRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC 31)
2014)
Amendments to TAS 16 and IAS 38 | Clarifies acceptable methods of depreciation of property,| 1 January 2016
- Acceptable Methods of plant and equipment and amortisation of intangibie
Depreciation and Amortisation assets.
{published in May 2014) (a)
Amendments to IFRS 11 — Specifies how to recognise acquisitions of interests in] 1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (issued
in May 2011), (2)

These amendments specify the accounting for a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture,

! January 2016




Mandatory

Standards and modifications application for
thereof: periods beginning
from

Amendments to IAS 27 —~ Amounts | Amendments to address the application of the equity| 1 January 2016
Relating Only to the Separate method in separate finarcial statements.
Financial Statements of the Parent

Improvements to the IFRS 2012~ {Minor amendments to certain standards I July 2016
2014 Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle
{published in December 2013) (a)

{a) Standards not yet adopted by the European Union at the date of preparation of these consolidated
financial statements.

The assessment made by the Parent's directors of the main effects that the application of the
aforementioned standards might have on the accompanying consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

¢ IFRS 9~ Financial Instruments

This IFRS 9 supersedes IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement issued by the IASB.
This version replaces all the previous versions and becomes mandatorily effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after January 2018.

IFRS 9 establishes the requirements for the recognition, measurement, impairment, disposal of, and
accounting for, general hedges.

The Group is assessing the impact of the application of this standard and has reached the preliminary
conclusion that its entry into force will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

e IFRS 15— Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11, Construction Contracts and IAS 18, Revenue.

The objective of this standard is to determine the accounting treatment of revenue from the sale of goods
and the provision of services to a customer. Revenue that does not arise from a contract with a customer
falls outside the scope of IFRS 15. The core principle of the standard is that an entity should recognise its

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services o customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the application of this stanéard.
2.4 Information relating to 2014

As required by IAS 1, the information relating to 2014 contained in these notes to the consolidated
financial statements is presented with the information relating to 2015 for comparison purposes and,
accordingly, it does not constitute the Group's consolidated financial statements for 2014.

2.5 Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in euros since this is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates, Transactions in currencies other than the euro are
recognised in accordance with the policies described in Note 4.14.

2.6 Responsibility for the information and use of estimates

The information in these consolidated financial statements is the responsibility of the Parent's directors.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements for 2015, estimates were made by the Group's directors
in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein.
These estimates relate basically to the following:

- The assessment of possible impairment losses on certain assets.

- The assumptions used in the actuarial calculations of the pension liabilities and other obligations to
employees.

- The useful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

- The measurement and impairment of goodwill and of certain intangible assets.
- The fair value of certain assets.

- The calculation of the required provisions.

- The measurement and calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 2015 year end,
events that may take place in the future might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or
downwards) in coming years. This would be done prospectively, recognising the effects of the changes in
accounting estimates in the relevant future financial statements.

2.7 Basis of consolidation

2.7.1_Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are defined as companies included in the scope of consolidation which the Parent manages
directly or indirectly because it holds a majority of the voting rights in their representation and decision-
making bodies or over which it has the capacity to exercise control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated. Accordingly, all material balances and
transactions between consolidated companies are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to adapt the
accounting policies used to those applied by the Group.

The share of minority interests of the equity and profit of the Group is presented under "Minority Interests”
in the consolidated balance sheet and under “Profit/Loss for the Year Attributable to Minority Interests” in
the consolidated income statement, respectively.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of acquisition or until the date of disposal, as appropriate.

2.7.2 Joint ventures and joint operations

"Joint ventures” are deemed to be ventures that are managed jointly by the Parent and third parties
unrelated to the Group, where neither party can exercise greater control than the other. The financial
statements of the joint ventures are proportionately consolidated.

in addition, a joint operation (unincorporated joint venture or "UTE") is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties have rights to the corresponding assets, and liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Accordingly, the
assigned assets and liabilities are presented by the Group in its consolidated balance sheet, in proportion
to its ownership interest, and of the jointly incurred liabilities, classified according to their specific nature.
Similarly, the Group's share of the income and expenses of joint ventures is recognised in the consolidated
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income statement on the basis of the nature of the related items. In addition, the proportional part
corresponding to the Group of the related items of the joint venture is included in the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of these companies to adapt the
accounting policies used to those applied by the Group.

2.7.3 Associates

Assoclates are companies over which the Parent is in a position to exercise significant influence. In
general, significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group’s percentage of {direct or indirect)
ownership exceeds 20% of the voting rights, provided that it does not exceed 50%.

in the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method, i,e, at the Group's share of net assets of the investee, after taking into account the dividends
received therefrom and other equity efiminations.

in the case of transactions with an associate, the related profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the associate’s capital.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of these companies fo adapt the
accounting policies used to those applied by the Group.

i as a result of losses incurred by an associate its equity were negative, the invesiment should be
presented in the Group's consolidated balance sheet with a zero value, unless the Group is obliged to give
it financial support, in which case the related provision would be recorded.

Since the activities of the associates are similar to the Group's habitual management and operations, the
results of companies accounted for using the equity method are aggregated to profit or loss from
operations.

2.7.4 Transiation of foreign currency

The various iterns in the balance sheets and income statements of the foreign companies included in
consolidation were translated to euros as follows:

- Assels and liabilities were transiated to euros at the official year-end exchange rates.
- Share capital and reserves were transtated to euros at the historical exchange rate.
- Income statement items were translated to euros at the average exchange rate for the year.

The exchange differences arising from the use of these criteria were included in equity under “Reserves at
Consolidated Companies - Translation Differences”. These translation differences will be recognised as
income or expenses in the period in which the investment that gave rise to them is realised or disposed of
ir full or in part.

in 2015 ali of the Logista Group companies presented their financial statements in euros, except for
Compafiia de Distribucidn Integral Logista Polska, Sp. z.0.0. and Logesta Polska Sp., z.0.0. (both located
in Poland) and L.ogesta Maroc, S.A. {located in Morocco).

2.7.5. Changes in the scope of consolidation and in the ownership interests

The most significant changes in the scope of consclidation in 2015 and 2014 that affect the comparison
between years were as follows:

12



1.

Main changes in the scope of consolidation in 2015
Additions or acquisitions

Be to Be Pharma, S.L.U was incorporated on 16 July 2015, Its sole shareholder is the subsidiary
Logista Pharma, S.L.U., with share capital of EUR 3,000 divided into 300 fully subscribed and paid
shares of EUR 10 par value each.

Disposals

At the Annual General Meeting on 23 March 2015, the Sole Shareholder of Logista France, S.A.S.,
Compafita de Distribucion Integral Logista S.A.U., approved the merger by absorption of the investees
Logista France, $.A.S. and Strator, S.A.S. (absorbed company). Accordingly, Logista France, S.A.S.
absorbs Strator, 5.A.S., which is dissolved without liquidation, and thereby acquires all of its assets
and labilities by universal succession and is subrogated fo al! of the rights and obligations thereof,
under the French regime provided for in Article 1844-5 of the French Civil Code and Article 5 of the
Companies Decree of 23 March 1967. This merger became effective for accounting purposes from 1
October 2014, This transaction did not have any effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

On 1 July 2015, the subsidiary Logesta Gestion de Transporte, S.A.U. entered into an agreement for
the sale of the ownership interest held by it in Transportes Basegar, S.A. (equal to 60% of its share
capital) o Gescrap Desarrollo, S.L. The transaction amounted to EUR 680 thousand. The net loss on
the transaction for consolidation purposes amounted to EUR 198 thousand, which were recognised
under "Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the accompanying
consolidated statement of profit or loss for 2015.

On 30 June 2014, the sole shareholder of Avanzalibros, S.L.U approved the dissolution of fhe
company pursuant to Article 363 of the Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law. This company was
liquidated in 2015 and the transaction did not have a significant effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

On 16 July 2015, the resolutions adopted by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
investee Logista Pharma, S.A.U. on the merger by absorption of Logilenia Distribuidora Farmacéutica,
S.L. were executed in a public deed. Accordingly, Logista Pharma, S.A.U. absorbs Logilenia
Distribuidora Farmacéutica, S.L. which is dissolved without liquidation, and acquires by way of
universal succession all of its assets and liabilities and is subrogated to ail the rights and obligations
thereof, under the regime provided for under Article 49 of Law 3/2009, of 3 April, on structural changes
to companies formed under the Spanish Commercial Code. This merger became effective for
accounting purposes from 1 October 2014, This transaction did not have any effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Main changes in the scope of consolidation in 2014
Additions or acquisitions

On 10 December 2013, the subsidiary company Logista France, S.A.S. acquired the remaining 15% of
the shares of Strator, S.A.S. in a deal worth 1 euro, thereby becoming the full owner of its share
capital.

On 9 May 2014, the subsidiary company Compaifiia de Distribucion Integral de Publicaciones Logista,
S.L.U. partock in the capital increase of its investee company, whereupon its stake fell to 12,56%.

On 22 September 2014, the General Shareholders Meeting of the subsidiary company Logesta
Gestion de Transporte, S.A.U. approved the merger by absorption between the companies Logesta
Gestion de Transporte, S.AU. (surviving company) and Logesta Noroeste, S.AU. (absorbed
company). Thus, Logesta Gestion de Transporte, S.A.U. absorbs Logesta Noroeste, S.A U., which is
dissolved without liquidation of assets, with the former acquiring all its assets by virtue of universal
succession and likewise subrogating the rights and obligations of the latter company in accordance
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with the system set forth in article 49 of Law 3 of 3 April 2009 (Ley 3/2009), on corporate restructurings,
The accounting date of this merger was 1 October 2013. This transaction has had no impact on a
consolidated level.

2.8 Materiality

In preparing these consolidated financial statements the Group omitted any information or disclosures
which, not requiring disclosure due to their qualitative importance, were considered not to be material in
accordance with the concept of materiality defined in the IFRS Conceptual Framework.

3. ___ Distribution of profit of the Parent

The distribution of the profit for 2015, amounting to EUR 106,812 thousand, that the Parent's directors will
propose for approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting is as follows:

Thousand
of euros
To legal reserve 5,310
To voluntary reserves 2,843
Dividends 66,375}
Interim dividend 31,860
Offset of prior years® losses 424
Total _ 106,812

In accordance with current legislation, the Parent Company evaluated the liquidity statement at the
approval date of the interim dividend. Based on this evaluation, dated June 24, 2015 the Parent Company
had available at 41,701 thousand of euros credit line granted by Compafia de Distribucion Integral
Logista, 5.A.LL with a limit of 77 million euros maturing September 30, 2015, expected to renew at maturity
for an additional year and by the same amount.

4. __Accounting principles and policies and measurement bases

The principal measurement bases and accounting principles and policies applied in preparing the
consolidated financiat statements for 2015 in accordance with the IFRSs in force at the date of the related
financial statements are described below. None of the standards were applied early,

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation.

The upkeep and maintenance costs of the various items of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the income statement as incurred. The amounts invested in improvements leading to increased capacity

or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised.

In-house work on non-current assets is measured at accumulated cost (external costs plus in-house costs,
determined on the basis of direct and general manufacturing costs,

The consolidated companies depreciate their property, pfant and equipment using the straight-line method,
applying annual depreciation rates determined on the basis of the years of estimated useful life of the
refated assets. The depreciation rates applied are as foliows:
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Annual
Depreciation
Rates
(%)
Buildings 2-4
Plant and machinery 10-12
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 8-16
Other items of property, plant and Equipment 12-16

Land is considered to have an indefinite useful life and, therefore, is not depreciated.
4.2 Investment property

Investment praperty relates to investments in land and buildings held to earn rentals, Investment property
is stated at the lower of cost, less any accumulated depreciation, and market value. Depreciation is
recognised using the same methods as those used for items of the same category classified under
“Property, Plant and Equipment” (see Note 4.1).

The Group determines periodically the market value of its investment property by reference to the prices of
comparable transactions, in-house studies, external appraisals, etc.

4.3 Goodwiil

In the company acquisitions performed, the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
interest acquired in the acquisition-date net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities is recognised as goodwill,

Goodwill is only recognised when it has been acquired for consideration.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate is recognised as an increase in the value of the
investment.

Goodwill is not amortised. Accordingly, at the date of each consolidated balance sheet the related
valuation adjustments are made to ensure that the carrying amount is not higher than fair value less costs
to sell- If there is any impairment, the goodwili is written down and the impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill must not be reversed in a subsequent period.

To perform the aforementioned impairment test, the geodwill is allocated in full to one or more cash-
generating units.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit is the higher of value in use and the net selling price
of the assets associated with the cash-generating unit. Value in use is calculated on the basis of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the business.

The Group has defined as cash-generating units, based on the actual management of the Group's
operations, each of the relevant business operations carried out in the main geographical areas (see Note
25).

The Group uses the budgets and business plans, which generally cover a three-year period, of the various
cash-generating units to which the assets are assigned. The key assumptions on which the budgets and
business plans are built are based on each type of business and the experience with and recognition of
the performance of each of the markets in which the Group operates (see Note 7).

The estimated cash flows are extrapolated to the period not covered by the business plan using a zero
growth rate and an expense structure that is similar to that of the last year of the business plan.
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The discount rate applied is usually a pre-tax measurement based on the risk-free rate for 10-year bonds
issued by the governments in the relevant markets, adjusted by a risk premium to reflect the increase in
the risk of the investment based on the country in question and the systematic risk of the Group. The
discount rates applied by the Group in the various markets to calculate the present value of the estimated
cash flows ranged from 6% to 7.90% in 2015 (see Note 7).

4.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised using the straight-ine method, applying annual
amortisation rates determined on the basis of the years of the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Intangible assets comprises:
Trademarks

“Trademarks” includes the acquisition cost of the rights over certain trademarks and/or the value assigned
thereto on consolidation (see Note 8).

The Group considers “Trademarks” as assets with indefinite usefuf lives.
Concessions, rights and licences

“Concessions, Rights and Licences” includes mainly the amounts paid to acquire certain concessions angd
licences. The assets included in this account are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term thereof.

Also, as a result of allocating the purchase price of Altadis Distribution France, S.A.S. to the identifiable
assets and liabilities of that company in 2013, the Group recognised in its consolidated balance sheet the
agreements entered into by that subsidiary with the main tobacco producers for the distribution of their
products in France. The aforementioned distribution agreements are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 15 years.

Computer software

Computer software is recognised at acquisition cost, including the implementation costs billed by third
parties, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three to five years. Computer software
maintenance costs are expensed currently.

Research and development expenditure

Research and Development expenditure is only capitalised when it is specifically itemised by project, the
related costs can be clearly identified and there are sound reasons to foresee the technical success and
economic and commercial profitability of the related project. Assets thus generated are depreciated on a
straight-fine basis over their years of useful life {over a maximum period of five years).

4.5 impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses each year the possible existence of permanent losses in value requiring it to reduce
the camying amounis of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, if their recoverable
amounts are below their carrying amounts.

The recoverable amount is determined using the same methods as those employed in testing for goodwill
impairment {see Note 4.3).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its canrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, and the related write-down is recognised through profit
or loss.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset i increased to the new
recoverable amount, which may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised.

46 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership o the Group, which usually has the option to purchase the assets at the end of
the lease under the terms and conditions agreed on execution thereof. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

4.6.1 Finance leases

In cases where the Group acts as lessor, it recognises an asset and the corresponding liability in the
balance sheet, at the inception of the finance lease, at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments designated as rent in the agreement. To calculate the present value of the lease payments the
interest rate stipulated in the finance lease is used.

The cost of assets acquired under finance leases is presented in the consolidated balance sheet and is
depreciated on the basis of the nature of the leased assets under the same methods as those applied to
similar items.

Finance charges are recognised over the lease term on a time proportion basis.
4.6.2 Operating leases

In operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and rewards relating
to the leased asset remain with the lessor,

When the Group acts as the lessor, it recognises the operating lease income on a straight-fine basis. The
amount to be recognised on a straight-line basis is deemed to be the total minimum rental income forecast
over the term of the contract, in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. These assets are
depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor's normal depreciation policy for similar items for own
use.

When the Group acts as the lessee, lease costs are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line
basis, in accordance with the policies described above.

4.7 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is considered that their camrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction. Assets are classified under this heading only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is expected o
be completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured af the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

The depreciation of non-current assels held for sale is discontinued when they are classified as such. At
the date of each consoclidated balance sheet the related valuation adjustments are made to ensure that the
carrying amount is not higher than fair value less costs to sell.

4.8 Financial instruments
481 Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet on the date of acquisition at fair value
and are classified as:

17



Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost less any recognised impairment losses,
which are estimated based on the solvency of the debtor and the age of the receivables.

Other current and non-current financial assets

*Other Current and Non-Current Financial Assets” include the following investments:
1. Current and non-current loans granted

2. Guarantees

3. Deposits and other financial assets

The loans granted are measured at their amortised cost, which is understood to be the initial value thereof
increased by accrued interest and repayment premiums based on the effective interest rate and decreased
by the principal and interest repayments, while alse considering possible reductions due to impairment or
uncollectibility.

The changes in the amortised cost of the assets included under "Other Current and Non-Current Financial
Assets” arising from accrued interest or premiums or from the recognition of impairment are recognised in
the income statement.

Guarantees are measured at the amount paid which does not differ substantially from the fair value
thereof.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash consists of cash and demand deposits at banks, Cash equivalents are shori-term investments with a
maturity of three months that are not subject to a significant risk of changes in value.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when it matures and collection is made or when the rights to the
future cash flows have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset have been transferred.

4.8.2 Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings

Bank loans are recognised at the amount received, net of arrangement costs and commissions. These
loan arrangement costs and finance charges are recognised in the income statement using the accrual
method and on a time proportion basis and are added to the carrying amount of the liability, to the extent
that they are not settied, in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when the obligations giving rise to them cease to exist,

4.9 Inventories

The Group companies measure the tobacoo inventories at the lower of the price of the most recent
invoice, which does not differ significantly from applying the FIFO formula {first-in, first-out), including in the
case of fohacco products, in accordance with the legislation applicable in each country, the excise duties
chargeable as soon as they are accrued, and net realisable value.
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The other inventories are measured at the lower of cost of purchase and net realisable value. Trade
discounts, rebates and other simitar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The Group recognises period provisions for the decline in value of inventories in order to adjust the value
of those whose cost exceeds net realisable value. These valuation adjustments are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated income statement.

4.10 Current/Non-current classification

In the consolidated balance sheet assets and liabilities due to be realised or sefifed or maturing within 12
months are classified as current items and those due to be realised or settied or maturing within more than
12 months as non-current items.

4.11 Termination benefits

Under current labour legisiation and certain employment contracts, the Group companies are required to
pay termination benefits to employees terminated under certain conditions.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2015 includes the provisions that the
Parent's Directors consider necessary to cover the restructuring plans in progress at year-end {see Note
18).

4.12 Pension and other obligations to employeses

Certain Group companies are obliged to supplement the social security retirement, disability or death
benefits to employees who have fulfilled certain conditions. In general, the obligations relating to the
current and former employees of these groups are defined contribution obligations and are externalised.
The annual contributions made by the Group to meet these cobligations are recognised under “Staff Costs”
in the consolidated income statements and amounted to EUR 2,828 thousand and EUR 1,692 thousand in
2015 and 2014 (see Note 24.b).

Under the collective agreements currently in force, Compariia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U. is
obliged to make a lump-sum payment of a specific amount to each employee on completion of 24 years of
service, subject to compliance with certain conditions, Also, this Company is obliged to make fixed monthly
payments 10 a certain group of current employees and employees who retired prior to 1 January 2009 as
compensation for the “free tobacco” benefit.

Logista France, S.A.S. has retirement obligations to its employees for which it has made provisions
calculated on the basis of acluaral studies performed by independent actuaries. To cover these
obfigations, provisions were recognised, the amount of which is calculated each year based on the
corresponding actuarial studies performed by independent experts using the projected unit credit method
and PERM/F 2000P mortality tables, an inflation rate of 1.5% and an annual discount rate of 2% as the
main assumptions {see Note 18).

On 31 January 2012, the Group approved the “2011 Medium-Term Incentive Pian” and “2011 Medium-
Term Especial Incentives Plan”, for certain employees of the right to receive an amount estimated for each
employee at the start of each plan tranche on completion of the end of the third year from the start of each
of the three plan tranches and taking into consideration the growth of certain financial parameters, an
estimated amount for every worker at the beginning of each tranche.

The Group distributes the total amount of the estimated incentive for each block on a straight-line basis
over three years and charges it to income, "Staff Costs” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement for 2015 and 2014 which inciude EUR 1,723 thousand and EUR 2,851 thousand, respectively,
in this connection.

On 4 June 2014, the Parent's Board of Directors approved the structure of the “2014 Long-Term Incentive
Plan” and “2014 lLong-Term Especial Incentives Plan”, with remuneration accrued from 1 October 2014
and maturing on 30 September 2019, which are articulated in three 3-year blocks with settlements made al
the end of each block.
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Under these plans, certain employees of companies of the Group of which the Company is Parent have
the right to receive a certain number of Company shares, on completion of the third year from the
commencement of the each of the three blocks into which the plans are divided, and taking into account
the degree of achievement of certain internal criteria, of a financial and operating nature, as well as the
total return for the shareholders and comparative profitability with other companies.

On 20 January 2015, the Board of Directors approved the list of beneficiaries and corporated management
estimated cost of the plans. There were 51 beneficiaries included in the General Plan and 10 in the
Special Plan. The estimated amount in this connection is recognised under "Equity” in the consolidated
balance sheet and the related annual charge is included under “Staff Costs" in the consolidated income
statement. The related amounted to EUR 2,007 thousand and EUR 868 thousand, respectively.

In order o cater for this long-term share-based payment plan, and by virtue of the authorisation granted by
the Board of Directors, the Group acquired 40,614 treasury shares for EUR 670 thousand (see Note 14f),

413 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for the estimated amounts required to cover the liability arising from
litigation in progress, indemnity payments or obligations and collateral and other guarantees provided
which are highly likely to involve a payment obligation (legal or constructive), provided that the amount can
be estimated reliably.

Provisions are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the situation and evolution of the
events giving rise to them and are fully or partially reversed when such obligations cease to exist or are
reduced, respectively.

Also, the adjustments arising from discounting these provisions are recognised as a finance cost on an
accrual basis.

4.14 Foreign currency transactions
The consolidated financial statements of Logista Group are presented in euros,

Transactions in currencies other than the euro are recognised at their equivalent euro value by applying
the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Any gains or losses resulting from the exchange
differences arising on the settlement of balances deriving from transactions in currencies other than the
euro are recognised in the consolidated income statement as they arige.

Balances receivable and payable in currencies other than the euro at year-end are measured in suros at
the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Any gains or losses arising on such measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year,

4.15 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods
and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises. Specifically,
revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, VAT, excise duty on tobacco products and other sales taxes.

As a result of the regulations of the main countries in which the Group operates, the Group makes
payments to the relevant tax authorities in respect of excise duties on the tobacco products it sells, which
are also charged to customers. The Group does not recognise as income or expenses the amounts
refating to the aforementioned excise duties, which amounted to approximately EUR 29,588,310 thousand
in 2015 and EUR 29,146,347 thousand in 2014.

in the particular case publishing sector, the customers are entitled to retum the products they fail to sell
and in tum, the Group may exercise this right with respect to its suppliers. At each reporting date, a
provision is recognised based on the historical experience of the sales returns for the purpose of adjusting
the margins obtained in relation to products that it is forecast will ultimately be returned (see Note 18).
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In purchase and sale transactions on which the Group receives commission, regardiess of the legal form of
such transactions, only commission income is recognised, distribution and sales commissions are
recognised in revenue. The Group recognises income and expenses on transactions involving products
held on a commission basis (mainly stamps, certain tobacco and publishing business products) at the date
of the sale.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method and dividend
income is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established. In any case, interest
and dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of acquisition are recognised as income in the
income statement.

4.16 Income tax

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the accounting profit before tax, increased or
reduced, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable profit, net of tax relief and tax credits,
The rates used to calculate the income tax expense are those in force at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method, recognising the
differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilifies in the financial statements and their
corresponding tax bases.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected at the date on which the asset is
realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax assefs and ligbilities are recognised in full with a charge to
the consolidated income statement, except when they relate to line items taken directly to equity accounts,
in which case the deferred tax assets and labilities are also recognised with a charge or credit fo the
related equity accounts.

Deferred tax assets and tax loss carryforwards are recognised when it is considered probable that the
Group will be able to utilise them in the future, regardiess of when they are recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabiliies are not adjusted and are classified as non-current assets or liabiiities in the consolidated
baiance sheet.

The Group recognises the deferred tax arising from the deductibility of the amortisation, for tax purposes,
of certain items of goodwill generated on the acquisition of companies (see Note 19).

The deferred tax assets recognised are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and the
appropriate adjustments are made 1o the extent that there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Also,
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that they will be recovered through future taxable profits.

“Income Tax” represents the sum of the current tax expense and the result of recognising deferred tax
assets and liabilities (see Note 19).

The Parent files consolidated income tax returns in Spain as part of the consolidated tax group the ultimate
parent of which is Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U.

4,17 Consolidated statements of cash flows

The following terms are used in the consolidated statements of cash flows, prepared in accordance with
the indirect method, with the meanings specified:

1. Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are shori-term, highly liquid
investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2. Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of the consolidated Group companies
and other activities that are not investing or financing activities.

3. Investing activities: the acquisition and dispesal of long-term assets and other investments not included
in cash and cash equivalents.
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4. Financing activities: activities that result in changes in equity and borrowings.
4.18 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a Group component representing a line of business or significant area which
has or will be disposed of by any means other than through ordinary operations. The net assets arising
from discontinued operations which have not yet been realised are recognised under “Non-Current Assefs
Held for Sale”.

For this type of operations, the Group includes the profit after tax from discontinued operations and the
profit after tax recognised on the disposal of the items composing the discontinued operations under a
single item. "Profit for the Year from Discontinued Operations Net of Tax" in the consolidated income
statement. Similatly, “Discontinued Operations” includes, where applicable, the losses recognised as a
resuit of reducing the carrying amount of the items relating to discontinued operations not yet realised at
their fair value less estimated costs fo sell.

Also, when operations are classified as discontinued, the Group presents under “Profit for the Year from
Discontinued Operations Net of Tax” the amount for the preceding year relating to the operations classified
as discontinued at the reporting date, also adapting the rest of headings in the consolidated income
statement for the previous year.

5. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the Group (after tax and
minority interests) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
excluding the average number of freasury shares.

Earnings per share are calculated as follows:

2015 2014 (%)
Net profit for the year (thousands of euros) 109,193 102,347
Weighted average number of shares
issued (thousands of shares) (**) 132,749 132,750
Earnings per share {euros) 0,82 0,77
(MYOn 4 June 2014, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holding S.A.

became Parent of the Group. Therefore, in cenformity with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Group, earnings per share for
2014 are restated in these consolidated financial statements, faking into
account the weighted average number of shares outstanding in 2014.

(**} Buring September 2015, the Parent of the Group acquired through a
purchase and sale agreement 40,614 treasury shares.

At 30 September 2015 and 2014, there were no dilutive effects on basic earnings per share.
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6. Property, plant and equipment

6.1 Property, plant and equipment

The changes in “Property, Plant and Equipment” in the consolidated balance sheets in 2015 and 2014

were as follows:

2015
Thousands of Euros
Exclusions
Balance at | Additions or | Disposals or Transfers fromthe |Balance at
30-09-14  ]charge forthe| reductions (Note 8) Scope of | 30-09-15
year Consotidation
Cost:
F Land and buildings 235,514 24 (3,958) 660 - 232,240
[ Plant and machinery 168,201 2,157 (1,034) 9,084 (6) 178,402}
Other fixtures, tools and furnijure 133,307 1,570| {1,980) 5,634 (36) 138,495
Other items of property, plant and 36,338 130 (51) 1,974} (78) 38,333
equipment
Property, plant and equipment in the 12,339 12,971 (193) (13,281 - 11,836
course of constriction )
585,919 16,852 (7,216) 4,071 (120) 599,506
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (106,977) (5,261) 3,279 - - (108,959)
Plant and machinery {124,583) (11,586) 940 (168) 6 (135,391)
Other fixtures, tools and furniture (103,755) {9,145) 1,830 342 32 (110,696}
Other'items of property, plant and (21,872) (1,593) 50 ) 78 (23.337)
eguipment
(357,187} (27,585) 6,098 174 116 (378,383)
Impairment losses (18,810) 72y - _ - - (18,882)
Total 209,922 (10,805) {(1,117) 4,245 (4) 202,241
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2014

Thousands of Euros
Balance at | Additions or | Disposalsor | Transfers Balance at
30-09-13  |charge forthe} reductions {Note 8) 30-09-14
year .
Cost:
Land and buildings 234,876 28 (469) 1,079 235,514
Plant and machinery 156,557 2,156 (3,952) 13,440 168,201
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 131,523 2,286 {1,882) 1,380 133,307
Other‘ items of property, plant and 36,154 297 (637) 744 36,558
equipment
Property, plant and equipment in the 23,193 13,859 . (24.713) 12,339
course of construction
582,303 18,626 {6,940} (8,070) 585,919
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings {101,428) {5.633) 465 (381) (106,977)
Plant and machinery (117,467} 10,992} 3,878 ()] (124,583)
Other fixtures, toods and furniture {97,034} {9,286) 1,606 959 (103,755)
Other items of property, plant and (22,510} (919) 631 926 (21,872}
equipment _
{338,439 (26,830) 6,58 1,502 (357,187}
Impairment fosses {3,288) {13,522) - B - {18,810}
Total 238,576 (21,726} {360) (6,568) 209,922
Additions

The most notable additions in 2015 related mainly to projects currently underway in relation to safety
systems at the warehouses and relating to the fleet of vehicles, the construction of a new building at the
Group's head offices at Leganés (Madrid), the development of distribution centres in France and the
development of information systems.

in 2014, key additions related chiefly o typical Logista Group projects in progress, in ling with investments
in previous years. The main investment projects currently under way include improvements to warehouse
security systems, and to automated order picking systems in italy and France, implantation of a new
management system (ERP) for managing consumer products and IT enhancements to meet the needs of
the Group's clients.

Disposals

In 2015, the Group has alienated the building located in Créteil (France) where the offices were located
Strator, S.A.S. (merged with Logista France, S.A.S.). The transaction amounted to 3 miliion euros and
generated a net profit of 2.7 million euros. Disposals for 2014 are mainly concerned disposals of iterns that
were practically amortised or which were not being used for the Group’s business, along with the sale of
various items of property, plant and equipment. These had no significant impact on the income statement.

Transfers

The transfers in 2015 and 2014 relate to reclassifications between property, plant and equipment accounts
and also to "Other Intangible Assets - Computer Software” as a resuit of the start-up of various items. Also,
EUR 357 thousand were reclassified to "Investment Property” in 2014,

Impairment

No significant impairment losses recognized during 2015.

In 2014 the Group recognised impairment losses amounting to EUR 8,100 thousand on the portion
attsibutable to it of the carrying amount of the propetty, plant and equipment owned by “Compafiia de
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Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U. y GTECH Global Lottery, S.L.U., Unidn Temporal de Empresas”. This
amount was charged to “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement.

Also, in 2014 the Group recognised impairment losses amounting to EUR 5,000 thousand on certain items
of property, plant and equipment operated by distribution subsidiaries in the publishing industry, This
amount was charged to “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement.

6.2 Other disclosures

Fully depreciated items of property, plant and equipment in use at 30 September 2015 amounted to EUR
217,545 thousand (EUR 194,710 thousand at 30 September 2014).

At the end of 2015 the Group had yet to formalise the acquisition of a land lot in Alcala de Guadaira
(Sevilie), for which it paid an advance of EUR 4,671 thousand in 2005, which is recognised under
“Property, Plant and Equipment in the Course of Construction”. This formalisation is dependent upon the
municipal authority executing the corresponding land development projects, Compadiia de Distribucion
Integral Logista, S.A.U., directors have commenced actions aimed at ensuring that the municipal authority
meets the obligations assumed.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and
equipment are subject and the claims that might be filed against it for carrying on s business activities.
These policies are considered to adequately cover the related risks.

At 30 September 2015 and 2014, the items of property, plant and equipment located abroad, mainly in
Portugal, France, ltaly and Poland, amounted to EUR thousand and EUR 80,598 thousand, and EUR
80,972 thousand, respectively.

7. Goodwill

Breakdown and significant changes

The breakdown, by identified cash-generating unit, of "Goodwill” at 30 September 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

Thousands of Euros
30/09/15 30/09/14
Italy, tobacco and related products 662,922 662,922
France, tobacco and related products 237,106 237,107
Iberia, transport 18,269 18,354
Iberia, other business: Pharma 486 486
Iberia, tobacco and related products 321 321
Total 919,104 919,190

laly, tobacco and related products

The goodwill associated with Logista italia S.p.A. arose when Etinera, S.p.A., a leading tobacco distributor
in ltaly, was acquired in 2004 from BAT ltalia, S.p.A., an ltalian subsidiary of British American Tobacco,
Lda. Subsequently, Etinera, S.p.A’s company name was changed to Logista ltalia, S.p.A. The information
relating to the aforementioned acquisition is included in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
2004,

France. tobacco and related producis
The goodwili associated with Logista France S.A.S. arose on the acquisition by Compariia de Distribucion

Integral Logista, S.A.U. of all the shares representing the share capital of Altadis Distribution France,
5.A.8. (actually Logista France, S.A.5) from Seita, S.A.S., which belongs to Grupo Imperial Tobacco
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Limited PLC. The information on this acquisition is included in the Group's consolidated financial

statements for 2014 and 2013.

tberia, transport

The goodwill associated with Dronas 2002, S.L.U, arose when this company merged in 2002 with the
Burgal Group, an integrated and express parcel and pharmaceutical logistics service provider, and in 2003
with the Alameda Group, a distributor of pharmaceutical supplies and food products. The information
relating to the aforementioned mergers is included in the Group's consolidated financial statements for

2002 and 2003.

Goodwill impairment analysis

The assumptions used in testing for impairment were as follows:

Discount and growth rales

2015 2014
Discount Growth Discount Growth
Rate Rate Rate Rate
Italy, tobacco and related products 7.00% 0.00% 9.10% 0.00%
France, tobacco and related products 6.00% 0.00% 7.50%] 0.00%
Iberia, transport 6.90% 0.00% 9.10% 0.00%
Iberia, other business: Pharma 7.30% 0.00% 8.50%| 0.00%
Iberia, tobacco and related products 7.90% 0.00% 9.90% | 0.00%
The parameters considered in defining the foregoing discount rates were as follows:
® Risk-free bonds: 10-year bonds in the benchmark market of the CGL.
. Market risk premium: year- on-year average risk Premium in each country in which the Group

is presentet.

Other salient matters

a) ltaly, tobacco and related products:

Debt/equity ratio: industry average.

- Volume of cigarettes, rolling tobacco and cigars.

- Changes in tobacco retail prices.

- Changes in excise taxes on tobacco and VAT.

- invesiments.

b) France, tobacco and related products:

- Volume of cigarettes, rolling tobacco and cigars.

- Changes in tobacco retail prices.

- Changes in excise taxes on fobacco and VAT.

Unleveraged Beta: industry average, on a case-by-case basis.
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- lnvestments.

¢} lberia, transport:

-~ Fuelcosts
d} Iberia, other business: Pharma

- Regulation of the pharmaceutical industry.
e} Iberia, tobacco and related products:

- Volume of cigarettes, roliing tobacco and cigars.
- Changes in tobacco retail prices.
- Changes in excise taxes on tobacco and VAT,

- invesimenis.

Based on the methods used and the estimates, projections and valuations availabie to the Parent's
directors, no impairment losses were recognised in relation {o these assets in 2015.

With regard to the sensitivity analysis of the impairment tests on goodwill, the Group performed an analysis
of sensitivity of the impairment test result fo changes in the following assumptions:

° Increase of 100 basis points in the discount rate.
® 1% decrease in the growth rate.

These sensitivity analyses performed separately for each of the aforementioned assumptions did not
disclose any impairment losses.
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8. __ Other intangible assets

The changes in “Other intangible Assets” in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015
Thousands of Euros
Exclusions
Additions or from the
Balance at | charge for the | Disposals or Transfer Scope of Balance at
30-09-14 year reductions {Note 6) | Consolidation | 30-09-15
Cost:
With indefinite useful life-
Trademarks 104 - - (101} (3) -
With finite useful life-
I+D expenses 2,223 - - - - 2,223
Computer software 153,182 287 (93) 14,782 (35} 168,123
Concessions, rights and licences 779,365 - - 361 - 779,726
Ac}vances and intangible assets 18,854 13,569 ) (19,079) ) 13,344
in progress
953,728 13,856 (93) (4,037 (38) 963,416
Accumulated amortisation-
I+D) expenses (2,066} (139) - 1t 2 (2,192}
Computer software (130,396) (9,971) 93 (208) 35 (140,447}
Concessions, rights and Heences {105,474) (531,964) - (an - {157,449
(237,936) | {62,074) 93 (208) 37 {300,088}
Impairment Josses (2,623) - - - - (2,623
Total 713,169 {48,218) - (4,245) ) 660,705
2014
Thousands of Euros
Additions or
Balance at charge for | Disposals or Transfer Balance at
30-09-13 the vear reductions {Note 6) 33-09-14
Cost:
With indefinite useful life-
Trademarks 106 - - 2 104
With finite useful life- |
HD expenses 2,223 - - - 2,223
Computer software 141,332 2,138 (855) 10,567 153,182
Concessions, rights and licences 779,169 - (167) 363 779,365
Advances and intangible assets in 99271 13,804 (84) (4,793)| 18,854
progress '
932,757 15,942 {1,106) 6,135 953,728
Accumulated amortisation-
D expenses {1,511) {584} - 29 (2,066}
Computer software (121,056} (9,644) 297 47 (130,396)
Concessions, rights and licences - {53,722) (51,912} 160 - (105.474)
(176,329) (62,140} 457 76 ~ (237,936)
Impairment losses (644) (2,067) 88 - (2,623)
Total 755,784 {48,265) (361) 6,211 713,169
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Additions

The additions to "Other intangible assets” relate mainly to functional development projects for the Logista
Group's existing applications to improve or increase the services provided to is customers and the
implementation of new management systems (SAP) in certain business segments.

Transfers

The transfers to "Computer Software” in 2015 and 2014 relate to the reclassification of various items that
have been put into operation from the account "Advances and intangible assets in progress” attending to
their nature.

Impairment

In 2015 the Group did not recognise any impairment losses on items classified as "Other Intangible
Assets”.

In 2014 the Group recognised mainly impairment losses of EUR 2,000 thousand on items classified as
"Other Intangible Assels", relating to the computer software registered at Compafiia de Distribucion
Integral Logista, 8.A.U. y GTECH Global Lottery, S.L.U., Unién Temporal de Empresas (see Note 8).

At 30 September 2015 and 2014, fully amortised intangible assets in use amounted to approximately EUR
119,966 and EUR 108,886 thousand, respectively.

8. Financial assets

The detail of "Other Non-Current Financial Assets” and "Current Financial Assets" in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at 30 September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015
Thousands of Euros
30-09-2015
Loans Axvailable-
Loans Granted to | Short~Term | for-Sale
Financial Assets: Granted to Related  [Deposits and} Financial
Nature/Category Third Parties| Companies | Guarantess Assets Total
Equity instruments - - - 3,891 3,891
Financial debts 1,023 - - - 1,023
Other financial assets - - 4,143 - 4,143
Non-current 1,023 - 4,143 3,891 9,057
Financial debts 35,820 1,743,488 - - 1,755,308
Other financial assets - - 242 - 242
Current 31,820f 1,743,488 242 - 1,775,550
Total 32,8437 1,743,488 4,385 3.891F 1,784,607




2014

Thousands of Euros
30-09-2014
Loans Available-
Loans Granted to | Short-Termn | for-Sale
Financial Assets: Granted to Related |Deposits and| Financial
Nature/Category Third Parties| Companies | Guarantees Assets Total
Equity instruments - - - 3,464 3,464
Financial debts 1,325 - - - 1,325
Other financial assets - - 3,966 - 3,966
Non-current 1,325 - 3,966 3,464 8,755
Financial debts 31,9221 1,636,866 - - 1,668,788
Other financial assets - - 337 - 337
Current 39221 1,636,806 3 - 1,669,125
Total 33,247 1,636,866 4,303 3,464, 1,677,880

Loans granted fo third parties

The venturers of “Compafia de Distribucién Integral Logista, 8,AU, y GTECH Global Lottery, S,L,U,,
Unién Temporal de Empresas” granted a loan to this joint venture divided into equal shares which at 30
September 2015 totalled EUR 123,636 thousand, Compaifiia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U.
recognised EUR 30,909 thousand (2014: EUR 31,109 thousand) in this connection, which are presented
under “Other Current Financial Assets” and *Other Current Financial Liabilities™ in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2014, for the receivables from and payables to the
aforementioned joint venture that correspond fo the other venturer (see Note 20).

Credits granted to related parties

As of 12 June 2014, Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited, Compafila de Distribucion Integral
Logista Holdings, 8.A.U., Compaifiia de Distribucidén Integral Logista, S.A.U. and Logista France, S.AS.,
which until 11 June 2014 was the company that consolidated the funds on a daily basis and as of that date
assigned the rights and obligations with regard to the outstanding balances to Logista, S.A.U., entered into
a new mutual agreement for a five-year credit line (automatically renewable for one year, unless either of
the parties sends a notice opposing such renewal at least one year prior to maturity), with a maxiraum
draw down limit of EUR 2,000 million. The purpose of this agreement is to govern the terms and conditions
under which Logista will lend, on a daily basis, its cash surpluses to Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance
Limited for the purpose of optimising its cash flow, and the lcans from Imperial Tobacco Enterprise
Finance Limited to Logisia in order for the lalter to be able fo meet its cash needs arising from its
operations. In accordance with this agreement, Logista, S.AU. will fend, on a daily bases, its cash
surpluses to Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited or will receive the cash necessary {o meet its
payment obligations. Each of these two companies will therefore open an internatl current account in which
the daily movements between both companies will be recorded.

The daily balance of this internal current account earns inferest at the European Central Bank interest rate,
plus a spread of 0.75%, Interest is calculated on a daily basis, based on 360 days, and is capitalised every
quarter.

Under this agreement the Parent has undertaken to refrain from obtaining financing from third parties and
from encumbering in any way its assets unless the aforementioned transaction is approved by a qualified
majority of the Board of Directors.
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10, _Inventories

The detail of the Group's inventories at 30 September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Tobacco 983,240¢ 1,000,717
Published materials 10,078 9,393
Other merchandise 76,769 68,344
Write-downs (5,585 (11,804
Total 1,660,502} 1,066,650

The balance of tobacco inventories includes the excise duty chargeable to the tobacco items for the
tobacco stock in the Group’s warehouses at 30 September 2015, for a total amount of EUR 395,168

thousand (2014: EUR 390,446 thousand).

The write-down in year 2015 and 2014 relates mainly to tobacco inventories that were defective or that
cannot be sold at year end, The changes in the write-downs relating to “Inventories” in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

Thousands
of Buros
Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2013 8,111
Period write-downs 6,176
Reversals (2,483)
Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2014 11,804
Period write-downs 3,620
Reversals (2,061)
Amounts used (3,778)
Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2015 9,585

At 30 September 2015, the Group had arranged insurance policies 1o cover the value of its inventories.

11, _Trade and other receivables

The detait of “Trade and Other Receivables” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 30

September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014

Trade receivables for sales and services 1,764,987 1,776,827
Related companies (Note 27) 6,0771 6,119
Sundry accounts receivable 44,258 26,023
Employee receivables 1,083 688
Less- Allowances for doubtful debts {60,409 (57,160)

1,755,996 1,755,497
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The changes in the “Allowances for Doubtiul Debts” in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Thousands
of Euros

Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 September 2013 53,146
Period write-downs 9,280
Reversals (4,725)
Amounts used _ (341)
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 September 2014 57,160
Period write-downs 6,411
Reversals (2,438)
Amounts used (645)
Changes in the Scope of Consolidation _ {79
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 September 2015 60,409

The additions to and reversals from the allowance for doubtful debts in 2015 are recognised under “Cost of
Logistics Networks - Other Operating Expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

At 30 September 2015, the tofal amounts of balances provided are older than 90 days.
Trade receivables for sales and services

“Trade Receivables for Sales and Services” includes mainly the balances receivable from the sales of
tobacco products, postage and other stamps relating basically to the final defivery of each year, which may
be settied during the first days of the following year, including the excise duties and VAT associated with
tobacco product sales which do not form part of revenue (see Note 4.15).

The average credit period taken on sales of goods and services ranges from 10 to 30 days, No interest is
charged on the receivables for the first 30 days after the expiry date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is
generally charged at between 6.5% and 9% on the cutstanding balance.

None of the clients supposes more than 5% of the frade receivable balances, so thers is no clients’
concentration risk.

The detail of the past-due receivables for which no allowance had been recognised at 30 September 2015
and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Tranche 2015 2014
0-30 days 33,020 45,504
30-50 days 10,735 12,593
90-180 days 4,399 6,448
180-360 days 2,109 2,741
More than 360 days 2,156 917

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful debts based on seniority of the debt, unless there are
additional guarantees of payment.
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12. Cash and cash equivalents

“Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the consolidated batance sheets at 30 September 2015 and 2014 includes
mainly the Group’s cash deposited in current accounts at banks.

The average interest rate obtained by the Group on its cash and cash equivalent balances was 0.80% in
2014 (0.93% in 2014).

13, Equity

At the end of 2015, the Parent's share capital amounted to EUR 26,550 thousand and was represented by
132,750,000 fully subscribed and paid shares of EUR 0.2 par vaiue each, all of the same class.

As indicated in Note 1, the Parent was incorporated on 13 May 2014, with a share capital of EUR 60
thousand, divided into 300,000 shares of EUR 0.20 par value each, all of which are of the same class and
fully subscribed and paid in cash by its sole shareholder.

On 4 June 2014, the sole shareholder approved the share capital increase through a non-monetary
contribution of EUR 26,490 thousand, through the issue of 132,450,000 new shares of EUR 0.20 par value
each, together with a total share premium of EUR 942,148 thousand, The shares issued were of the same
class as the ouistanding shares and were fully subscribed and paid by Altadis, S.A.U. through the
contribution to the Company of 44,250,000 registered shares representing all of the share capital of
Companla de Distribucién Integral Logista, S.A.U. For these purposes, it should be noted that the
aforementioned non-monetary contribution was subject to the required assessment by an independent
expert appointed by the Mercantile Registry, pursuant to the Spanish Capital Companies Law and the
Mercantile Registry Regulations.

The offering of shares in the Parent Company came 1o an end on 14 July 2014, and its shares are
currently listed for trading in the Continuous Market on Madrid, Barcelona, Valencia and Bibao
Exchanges.

The only shareholder with an ownership interest of 10% or more in the Parent's share capital at 30
September 2014 was Altadis, S.A.U., with an ownership interest of 70%.

At 30 September 2015, all shares of the Parent have the same voting and dividend rights.
Capital Management

The main objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure financial stability in the short and
long term and the adequate funding of investments, keeping debt levels, all aimed at that the Group
maintains its financial strength and soundness of their ratios so that it supports their business and
maximizes the value for its shareholders.

At 30 September 2015, the Group had a net cash position amounting to EUR 1,767 millien (30 September
2014: EUR 1,669 million), the detail being as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Bank borrowings (M (45)
Other current financial liabilities (31,658) {31,560)
Gross debt _ {31,665) (31,605)
Current financial assets (Note 9) 1,775,550 1,669,125
Cash and cash equivalents 22,714 31,816
Financial assefs and cash _ 1,798,264 1,700,941
Total net financial position 1,766,599 1,669,336
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14. Reserves

a) Share premium

The Spanish Capital Companies Law expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to
increase the capital of the entities at which it is recognised and does not establish any specific restrictions
as o its use.

b} Reserves of the Parent

Legal reserve

Under the Spanish Capital Companies Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be transferred to the legal
reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital, The legal reserve can
be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the
increased share capital amount, Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital, it can
only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose,

At 30 September 2015, no appropriations had yet been made to the Parent's legal reserve.

Other reserves

The capital increase expenses incurred by the Company in 2014 in the transaction described under “Share
capital’, which were faken io reserves, amount to EUR 176 thousand, net of the related tax effect. This
heading also includes the amounts relating to the Share Plan for 2014, amounted EUR 959 thousand (see
Note 4.12),

¢) Reorganisation reserve

This line item inciudes the net effect which arose in the Parent's reserves as a result of the corporate
reorganisation that took place during the year, as described in Notes 1, in conformity with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Group.

d) Reserve for first-fime application of IFRSs

As a result of the transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Group revalued a
plot of land assigned to its operations by EUR 28,500 thousand, based on the appraisal of an independent
valuer, considering the fair value of this plot of land to be the deemed cost thereof in the transition to
IFRSs, The impact of this revaluation on reserves amounted to EUR 18,950 thousand.

e} Dividends

On February 17, 2015 the Shareholders” General Meeting approved the distribution of the result of 2014,
which included an interim dividend of result of that year that was approved by the Board of Directors and
paid in May 2014, of EUR 39,825 thousand, The aforementioned Shareholders” General Meeting also
approved of a dividend of EUR 74,340 thousand, charged to Share premium.

On 24 July 2015, the Parent's Board of Directors approved the distribution of a dividend out of profit for
2015 amounting to EUR 31,860 thousand.

f} Treasury shares

in order to cater for the long-term incentive plan discussed in Note 4.12, on 23 September 2015, the
Company purchased 40,614 treasury shares for EUR 670 thousand.
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15. Reserves at consolidated companies

The detail of “Reserves of Group Companies and Associates” in the consolidated balance sheets at 30

September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Reserves in fully consolidated companies 209,033 145,163
Reserves in companies consolidated by the equity (4,535) (2,487)
method
Total 204,498 142,676

The reserves at consolidated companies include the retained earnings not appropriated at the beginning of
the period relating o the consolidated companies and taking into account the consolidation adjustments.

16, Minority interests

The detail, by company, of "Minarity interests” and “Profitilloss atiributed to minority interests” in the

consolidated balance sheets is as follows:

Thousands of Huros

2015 2014

Income Income

Atributable Atributable

Minority | To Minority | Minority | To Minority

Entidad Interests | Shareholders Interests  |Shareholders
Distribuidora Valenciana de Ediciones, S.A. 412 28 384 39
Terzia, S,p,A. 1,042 197 844 32
Distribucion de Publicaciones Siglo XX1 Guadalajara, S.L. 50 6 44 13
Transportes Basegar, S.L. (Note 2.7.5) - 103 424 65
Distribuidora de Publicaciones del Sur, S.L. 153 30 123 22

Oiras entities 158 51 108 -

Total 1,185 417 1,927 71

The changes in this heading in 2015 and 2014 were as foliows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Beginning balance 1,927 1,714 :
Exits of the scope of consolidation (Nota 2.7.5) {(529) -
Acquisition of non-controling interests - 42
Change due to profit for the year 417 171
Ending balance 1,815 1,927

17. _Financial Risk Exposure

The management of the financial risks to which the Logista Group is exposed in the course of its business
constitutes one of the basic pillars of its activities aimed at preserving the value of the Group’s assets at ali
the business units and in all the countries in which it operates (mainly Spain, ltaly, France, Portugal and
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Poland) and, as a resuit, the value of its shareholders investments. The risk management system is
structured and defined fo achieve the strategic and operating objectives.

The Group’s activities are exposed to various financial risks: market risk (including exchange risk), credit
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group’s financial risk management is centralised in the Carporate Finance Divislon. This Division has
the required mechanisms in place to control, based on the Group's financial position and structure and on
the economic variables of the environment, the exposure to interest and exchange rate fluctuations and to
the credit and liquidity risks, establishing, when necessary, the related credit limits and setting the policy
for the doubtful debts allowance.

Credit risk

The Company's main financial assets are cash, loans fo Group companies and trade and other
receivables. In general, the Group holds its cash and cash equivalents at banks with high credit ratings.
Also, the Group is exposed to the credit risk or counter-party risk of the group Imperial Tobacco Group,
PLC, as a result of the cash transfer agreements entered into therewith.

The Group controls the risks of doubtful debts and default by sefting credit limits and establishing
demanding conditions with respect to collection periods; this commercial risk is distributed among a large
number of customers with short collection periods and historically very low rates of non-payment and,
therefore, the exposure to credit risk vis-a-vis non-Group third parties is not significant.

The Group considers that at 30 September 2015 the level of credit risk exposure of its financial assets is
not significant.

Interest rate risk

in relation to its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, the Group is exposed to interest rate
fluctuations which might affect its profit and cash fiows. However, due to the Group's low borrowing level,
Management considers that the effect would not be material under any circumstances.

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7, the Group performed a sensitivity analysis in
relation to the possible interest rate fluctuations which might occur in the markets in which it operates,
Based on these requirements, the Group considers that each interest rate drop of 10 basis points would
give fise to a decrease in the Group's finance income of EUR 1.3 million.

Foreign currency risk
The level of exposure of equity and the income statement to the effects of future changes in the foreign
currency exchange rates in force is not significant because the volume of the Group's transactions in

currencies other than the euro is not material (see Note 26).

The Group does not have significant investments in foreign entities which operate in currencies other than
the euro and it does not carry out significant transactions in countries whose currency is not the euro.

Liquidity risk

The Group has to meet payments arising from its activities, including significant amounts relating to excise
duties and VAT.

Also, as a result of the difference between the average collection and payment periods, at 30 September
2015, the Group had a working capital deficiency amounting to EUR 1,025,491 thousand (30 September
2014 EUR 1,063,817 thousand).

In any event, the Group, for the purpose of ensuring fiquidity and enabling it to meet all the payment
obligations arising from its business activities, has the cash and cash equivalents disclosed in its
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consolidated balance sheet, together with the cash-pooling facilities with companies in the Group to which

it belongs.

18. Provisions

The detall of the balance of short- and long-term provisions in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at 30 September 2015 and 2014 and of the main changes therein in the periods is as foliows:

2015
Thousands of Furos

Balance at . . Provisions Balance at

30-09-14 Additions | Reversions Used Transfers 30-09-15
Customs and excise duty assessments 16,478 516 - (3,418) - i 13,576 |
| Obligations to employees 14,124 2,469 (an (773} (200) | 15,601 |
 Provision for restructuring costs 2,483 - - (583) - 1,900 |
[ Provision for contingencies and charges 13,782 130 (9,279 (778) - 5,380
OQther 8.411 1,671 (989 (670} | (344) 6,554
Neon-current provisions 55,278 4,786 (10,285) (6,224) | (544) 43,011
Provision for restructuring costs 10,737 8,925 - (9,384) - 10,278
Customer Refunds 2,453 197 - - - 2,650
Qther 2,959 3,832 (1,514) {2,420) 1,010 3,867
Current provisions 16,149 12,954 (1,514) (11,804) 1,010 16,795

2014
Thousands of Euros _ i

Balance at | . . Provisions : Balance at

30-09-13 Additions | Reversions Used Transfers 30-09-14
Customs and excise duty assessments 109,755 9,301 (47,249) (55,329) - 16,478
Obligations to employees 14,209 1,534 (374} (701) (544) 14,124
Provision for restructuring costs 12,925 | 1,550 - - (11,992) 2,483
Provision for contingencies and charges 18,608 8,285 (3.504) {4,624) (3,058) 13,307
Others 5,683 212 (1,005) (31 2,027 6,886
Non-current provisions 161,189 20,882 (52,532) {60,685) {13,567} 55,278
Provision for restructuring costs 5,138 5,096 91 (11,480) 11,992 10,737 |
Customer Refunds 2,436 | 17 - - - 2,453 |
Other 829 1,393 (406) (1,240) 2,383 2,959
Current provisions 8,403 6,566 (415) (12,720} 14,375 16,149

Provision for excise tax on tobacco products and for customs duty assessments

Compafia de Distribucién Integral Logista, S,A,U, has recognised provisions for assessments as a result
of audits by the Spanish customs authorities of the returns for excise fax on tobacco products for 2007 to
2008. The Company signed the assessments on a contested basis and filed appeals against them,
however, it has recognised provisions for the possible deficiency and interest in this connection in order o
cater for the possibility of unfavourable decisions being handed down on the appeals.

During 2015, the Company has paid EUR 3,418 thousand related to the customs duly and import VAT
2003, and debited to the related provision accrued for in prior years for this purpose. Also during the same
period has received proceedings relating to settlement of customs duty for the year 2012 and 2013

37



amounting to EUR 3,188 and 9,400 thousand, respectively. The Group, based on the opinion of its
external advisors has not accrued it, no provisions were recognised in refation to the former and payment
of the latter was recognised as an asset in the accompanying balance sheet at 30 September 2015, since
it was considered that the appeals filed would be successful.

In 2014 the Central £conomic-Administrative Tribunal handed down favourable judgments to Compafiia de
Distribucion Integral Logista, 8,A,U, regarding the settlement of 2006 excise tax, Since none of the parties
invalved filed an appeal against the aforementioned judgment within the statutory deadline, the Company's
Directors considered these judgments to be final and, accordingly, reversed the provision related thereto
amounting to approximately EUR 47,249 thousand, of which EUR 39,123 thousand related to the amount
initially claimed by the public authorities and the remaining EUR 8,126 thousand to the late-payment
interest accrued since the tax assessment commenced, The impact of this reversal is recognised under
“Procurements” and *Finance Income” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

In addition, during the same period the Supreme Court dismissed several appeals lodged by Compafia de
Distribucion Integral Logista, $.A.U., in relation fo certain of the aforementioned excise duty assessments
for the years 2004 and 2005 as well as some customs assessments, consequently, the Company paid the
amount of these assessments, which totalled EUR 55,329 thousand, and was debited to the related
provision.

On the basis of the most recent judgments received, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U 's
Directors re-estimated the level of provision related to the tax assessments under appeal and recognised
an additional amount of EUR 9,301 thousand in view of their revised estimate of the related risk, of which
EUR 8,201 thousand related to the principal and initial claim and interest related to the excise duty
settlements for 2007, 2008 and 2008 and were charged to ‘Procurements” in the accompanying
consclidated income statement, The remaining EUR 1,100 thousand related to the late-payment interests
accrued by the opened litigations as of 30 September 2014, and were charged to “Finance costs” of the
consolidated income statement.

Provisions for employee benefit obligations

This line item includes mainly the present value of the obligations assumed by Compaiifa de Distribucion
integral Logista, S.A.U. in relation to long-service bonuses and the “tobacce gift', as well as the retirement
bonus obligations recorded by the subsidiaries of the Group in order to cover the relirement benefits. Of
the provision recognised in 2015, EUR 1,124 thousand were recorded with a charge fo “Reserves of
Consclidated Companies”, since they relate to changes in the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the
present value of the total obligation assumed by those companies.

Provision for restructuring costs

This account includes mainly the estimate of the payments to be made in relation to the restructuring plans
that are being implemented at the Group. In 2015 and 2014, provisions were recognised amounting to
EUR 8,925 thousand and EUR 6,646 thousand, respectively, and indemnity payments were made
amounting fo EUR 9,967 thousand and EUR 11,480 thousand, respectively, with a charge to the
provisions that were recognised for that purpose.

The Company's Directors consider that both processes will be completed at short term and, therefore, in
2015 the related provision was reclassified fo current fiabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet.

Provisions for contingencies and charges

This heading includes mainly the various litigation proceedings in progress involving the Group and third
parties. In 2015 provisions were reversed amounting to EUR 9,279 thousand since the favourable
judgments received by the Group had been made final.

Provisions for customer refunds

The customers of publishing sector are entitied to the refund of those products which are finaily not sold,
and the Group may in turm exercise this entitlement to a refund vis-a-vis its suppliers. At each year-end,
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the Group recognises a provision based on past experience of the refunds on sales with a view to
cotrecting the margins obtained in the course of the book and publications sales activity.

19. Tax matters

Consolidated Tax Group

Certain Group companies file consolidated tax returns with Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U. (see Note
4.16). in addition to Imperial Tobacco Espaiia, S.L.U., the companies included in the consolidated tax
group for income tax purposes are as follows: Compafia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U.,
Compadia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A., Distribérica, S.A.U., Publicaciones y Libros,
S.A., Distribuidora de las Rias, S.A., Logista-Dis, 5.A.U., La Mancha 2000, S.A.l., Dronas 2002, S.L.U.,
T2 Gran Canaria, S.A.U., Logista Pharma, S.A.U., Cyberpoint, S.L.UJ., Distribuidora del Noroeste, S.L.,
Compariia de Distribucion Integrat de Publicaciones Logista, $.1..U., Distribuidora del Este, S.AU., S.A,
Distribuidora de Ediciones, Logesta Gestion de Transporte, S AU. and Be to Be Pharma, S.A.U, together
with other Imperial Tobacco Espafia Group companies.

In addition, Logista France, S.A.S., Société Allumetiére Frangaise, S.A.S., Supergroup, S.AS. file
consclidated income fax returns in France as part of the group headed by Logista France, S.A.S.

Also, Logista Italia, S.p.A., Terzia, S.p.A. and Logesta italia, S.r.l. file consolidated income tax returns in
ltaly as part of the group headed by Logista italia, S.p.A.

The Group's other subsidiaries file individual tax returns in accordance with the tax legislation in force in
each country.

Law 27/2(H4 introducing certain amendments to tax legislation in relation to income tax was published in
Spain on 27 November 2014, and came into force on 1 January 2015. The principal change introduced,
which directly affects the amount of deferred tax assets recognised by the Parent at 31 September 2014,
arises from the reduction in the standard tax rate from 30% to 28% for the tax period beginning
immediately following 1 January 2015 and to 25% for the tax periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

As a result of this change, the Parent adjusted its deferred tax assets and liabilities to the corresponding
tax rate on the basis of when they are expected to be reversed. The impact of this adjustment on the
income tax expense for 2015 totalled EUR 8,651 thousand.

Years open for review by the tax authorities

At 30 September 2014, the Parent Company had the last three years open for review for income tax, since
2014 or customs duties, since 2013 for excise duties, and the remaining four years for the ofher taxes
apphicable to it.

In general, the other consolidated companies have the last four years open for review by the tax authorities
for the main taxes applicable to them in accordance with the specific legisiation of each country.

In 2014 the tax authorities initiated a tax audit of income tax for 2009, 2010 and 2011, VAT and personal
income tax withholdings for 2010, 2011 and 2012, excise tax for 2011 and tax on foreign trade for 2012,

In 2014 the tax authorities initiated tax audits of income tax for 2009, 2010 and 2011, VAT and personal
income tax withholdings for 2010, 2011 and 2012, excise duty for 2011 and tax on foreign trade for 2012.
In addition, in 2015 the tax authorities initiated an audit of foreign trade activities relating to 2013.

The situation at the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements is as follows:

- The audit of income tax for 2009, 2010 and 2011 gave rise to two adjustments, The first relates
to a reduction of the base of the financial goodwill that may be applied by the Group and the
second to the amounts deducted as a result of the application of the policy relating to the
collective layoff procedure of 2001/2002 which wilt be deducted in future years, The net effect of
the tax assessment totalled EUR 1.4 million, no penalties or late-payment interest were incurred
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and it is not payable to the Tax Agency since it will be offset against the tax losses of the part of
the Group that reports directly {o Imperial Tobacco Espafia.

- In relation to the audit of VAT and personal income tax withhoidings for 2010, 2011 and 2012,
the tax authorities’ agreed with the amounts recognised by the Group except in refation to
personai income tax withholdings for 2012 for which an assessment of EUR 1 million was issued
which the Group signed on an uncontested basis and paid,

Lastly, in relation to the audit of the tax on foreign trade for 2012 and 2013, assessments signed on a
contested basis totalling EUR 3.2 million and EUR 9.4 million, respectively, were issued (see Note 18).

The Company’'s directors consider that the tax returns for the aforementioned taxes have been filed
correctly and, therefore, even in the event of discrepancies in the interpretation of current tax legislation in
refation to the tax treatment afforded to certain transactions, such liabilities as might arise would not have a
material effect on the accompanying financial statements,

Tax receivables and payables

The detail of the tax receivables at 30 September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2015 2014
Deferred tax assels:
[ Provision for restructuring costs 6,615 12,477
|Goodwill 8,789 12,747
Impairment losses and other 10,933 17,143
Provision for third-party liability 3,438 3,064
Other deferred tax assets 11,129 13,531

40,904 58,962

Tax receivables (current):

VAT refindable 8915 8,873
Income tax refundable 526 2,179
Other 2,454 4,164

11,935 15,216

The deferred tax assets relate mainly to provisions recognised for restructuring plans, termination benefits
and obligations to employees that will become tax deductible in the coming years, as well as to
adjustments due to the application of transitional tax legislation in 2013-2014 as a result of which 30% of
the depreciation and amortisation charge was not deductible but will become so in future years.
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The detail of the tax payables at 30 September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Deferred tax liabilities:
Assets contributed by Logista 732 884
Revaluation of land owned by the Parent (Note 14d) 7,125 8,550
Goodwill 83,180 95,640
Business Combination 230,732 250,282
Other 4,362 2,159
328,131 357,515
Tax payables (current):
Exc¢ise duty on tobacco products 3,624,775 3,581,735
VAT payable 888,973 867,808
Customs duty settlements 4,801 4,507
Income tax, net of prepayments 26,835 29,375
Personal income tax withholdings 3,716 2,772
[ Social security taxes payable 16,827 15,758
Tax retention to tobacconists (France) 30,002 30,748
Other 5,054 4,717
4,600,983 4,537,420

Short-term balances include mainly the “Excise Duty on Tobacco Products” accrued by Compaiia de
Distribucion Integral Logista, $.A.U., Logistra France, S.A.S. and by Logista ltalia, S.p.A. and pending
payment to the tax authorities.

Until 2011, each year Compafila de Distribucién Integral Logista, 3.A.U decreased its taxable profit by one
twentieth of the implicit goodwill included in the acquisition price of its subsidiary in ltaly. These reductions
are considered to he temporary differences. On 30 March 2012, Royal Decree-Law 12/2012 came into
force, introducing various tax and administrative measures aimed at reducing the public deficit. These
measures include limiting the tax deductibility of such goodwill to 1% per year.

Reconciliation of the accounting profit to the taxable profit

The reconciliation of the accounting profit before tax to the aggregate taxable profit and of the accounting
profit before tax to the income tax expense resulting from the application of the standard tax rate in force in
Spain for the years ended 30 Septernber 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014

Accounting profit before tax 167,943 153,229
Permanent differences:

- Individual companies (13,472) 2,657
Temporary differences:

- Individual companies (15,026) 2,333

- Consolidation adjustments 53,165 52235
Taxable profit 192,610 | 210,454

The temporary differences arising from consolidation adjustments relate mainly to the depreciation and
amortisation of assets recognised in the accounting for the acquisition of Logista France, S.A.S.
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Thousands of Buros

2015 2014
Accounting profit before tax 167,943 153,229
Permanent differences {13,472 2,657
Tax charge at 30% 46,341 46,766
Effect of different tax rates 10,621 8,572
Tax adiustment and Other adjustments 2,345 -
Tax credits:

Reinvestment of gains - (378) |

Other {1,274 (1,009)
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 58,033 53,951

The Group is affected by the different income tax rates fo which the Group companies' activities are

subject:

- Spain: the tax rate for 2015 is 30%, reduced from 28% and 25% for 2016 and subsequent years

pursuant to Law 27/2014, of 27 November 2014.

- France: the standard tax rate is 38%, although certain companies are taxed at 33.33% and there is
also a supplementary business tax {CVAE TAX) which can represent an additionat 2%-3%.

- ltaly: the income tax rate is 27.5% and, as in France, there is a supplementary business tax which

can represent an additional 4,6651%.

- Portugal: the income tax rate is 26.5%, and there is an obligation to make pre-payments even if an

entity is reporting a loss.

- Poland: the income tax rate is 19%.

Breakdown of the income tax expense

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Current fax:
Continuing operations 69,359 73,223
:Deferred tax: -
Continuing operationg (2,675) (19,533)
Tax adjustment {8,651) -
Total tax expense 58,033 53,670

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities

The changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:
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2015

Thousands of Euros
Balance at | Change in Tax rate Balance at
30/09/14 | profit or loss | adjustments | 30/09/15
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for restructuring costs 12,477 (5,331 (331 6,615
Goodwill 12,747 (2,783)| (1,173 8,789
Impairment losses and other 17,143 (4,984) {1,226) 10,933
Provision for third-party liability 3,064 391 an 3,438
Other deferred tax assets 13,531 (1,621) (781) 11,129
58,962| (14,330) (3,728) 40,9064
Deeferred tax liabilities:
 Assets contributed by Logista (884) 27 125 (732)
Revaluation of land (8,550) - 1,425 (7,125
Goodwill {95,640) (325) 10,785] (85,180
Business combination (250,282) 19,550 - (230,732)
Other (2,139) {2,247) 44 {4,362)
(357,515) 17,005 12,3791 (328,131
2014
Thousands of Euros
Balance at | Changein | Balance at
30/09/13  |profitor loss| 30/09/14
Deferred tax assets: :
Provision for restructuring costs 11,189 1,288 12,477}
Goodwill 14,763 (2,016) 12,747}
Impairment losses and other 15,267 1,876 17,1431
Provision for third-party liability 3,577 {313) 3,064
Other deferred tax assets 11,868 1,663 13,531
56,664 2,298 58,962
Deferred tax liabilities;
Assets contributed by Logista (916) 32 (884)
Revaluation of land (8,550) - {8,550)
Goodwill (94,098) (1,542)] (95,640)
Business combination {269,138) 18,856] (250,282)
Other {2,009) (150) {2,159
(374,711) 17,196 (357,515)

Tax credit and tax loss carryforwards
At 30 September 2015, the Group did not have any unused tax credits.
The Group's tax loss carryforwards at the end of 2014 were basically as follows:

- Spain: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 6.4 million and were incurred mainly mainly by
Distribuidora de Ediciones, S.A. and Logista Pharma, S.A.U.
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- Portugal: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 7.4 million and were incurred mainly by Logista
Transportes, Transitarios e Pharma, Lda.

- France: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 2.8 million and were incutred by Strator, S,A.S,,
absorbed by Logista France, S.A.S during 2015. (Note 2.7 5)

- Poland: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 4.6 million.

20. Other current financial liabilities

This line item includes mainly the balance at Compafiia de Distribucién Integral Logista, S.A.U relating to
the credit facility granted by it to “Compafiia de Distribucion integral Logista, S.A.U. y GTECH Global
Lottery, S1.U., Unién Temporal de Empresas”, which amounted to EUR 30,909 thousand at 30
September 2014 (30 September 2014: EUR 31,108 thousand). This amount represents the balance
payable by the Group to "Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U and GTECH Global Lottery
S.L.U., Unidn Temporal de Empresas” as a result of the account payable to the other venturer of the UTE
assumed by the Group (see Note 9).

21. _Trade and other payables

The detail of “Trade and Other Payables” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at 30
September 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Accounts payable for purchases and services 716,810 783,887
Notes payable 18,685 19,771
Payable to related cormpanies (Note 27) 162,142 164,470
Advances received on orders 3 186
i 897,640 968,314

Trade and Other Payables" includes mainly the amounts outstanding for frade purchases and related
costs. The average payment period for frade purchases in 2015 and 2014 was approximately 40 days {38
days in 2014).

22. Other current liabilities

At 30 September 2015 and 2014 “Other Current Liabilities” includes mainly the remuneration payable to
the employees of the various Group companies, deferred fiabilities and other non-trade payables as well
as a bank deposit received on the part of two manufacturers of tobacco, amounted EUR 51,722 thousand.

23. _Guaranfee commitments to third parties

At 30 September 2015, the Group has been provided with bank guarantees fotalling EUR 171,865
thousand (30 September 2014: EUR 154,060 thousand) which, in general, secure the fulfilment of certain
obligations assumed by the consclidated companies in the performance of their business activities.

Also, the Group has provided guarantees for its ordinary trading operations: in this regard, the Parent's
directors consider that any liabilities not foreseen at 30 September 2015 that might arise from the
aforementioned guarantees would not in any event be material.

At 30 September 2015, the Group had taken out insurance policies to cover possible contingencies for
transport and storage in factories and representative offices, fire and third-party liability for alt its work
centres. The insured sum adequately covers the aforementioned assets and risks.
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Income and expenses

a} _Income

The detail of "Revenue” in the consolidated income statements for 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

b) Staff costs

Thousands of Euros

2015 2014
Iberia 2,576,708 2,546,017
Ttaly 2,518,937 2,529,752
France 4,406,866 4,454,496
Corporative 10,976 10,781
Adjustment due to inter-segment sales {42,497) (41,710)
Total 9,470,990 9,499,336

The detail of the Group's “Staff Costs” in 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
:Wages, salaries and similar expenses 181,142 186,345
Termination benefits 13,136 3,690
Employer social security costs 61,488 62,677
Other employee benefit costs (Note 4.12) 2,828 1,692
Other social costs 12,980 14,110
271,874 (% 268,514

{*) ‘Research Expéhditifre” includes EUR 1,357 thousand of staff costs.

The average number of employees at the Group, by professional category, in 2015 and 2014, as well as

the number of employes as of 30 September 2015 and 30 September 2014 was as follows:

2015
Category _ Number of Persons
_Average Headcount Headcount at 30/09/1%
Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees | Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees
Men | Women Men Women Men Women Men Women
Management 221 2 - - 20 2 - -
Line personnel and clerical staff| 1,449 1,144 119 138 1,458 1142 160 160
Messengers 1,556 592 354 86 1,527 776 379 81
3,027 1,738 473 244 3,005 1,720 578 241
TOTAL 4,765 697 4,725 780
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2014

Number of Persons
Average Headcount Headcount at 30/09/14
Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees | Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees
Category Men ‘Women Men Women Men Women Men Women

Management 25 1 - - 25 1 - -
Line personnel and clerical staff 1,493 1180 127 158 1,472 1,163 110 132
Messengers 1,568 577 315 89 1,557 603 324 92

_ 3,086 1,758 442 247 3,054 1,767 434 224
TOTAL 4,844 689 4,821 658

The average number of disabled employees with a handicap higher than 33% at the Group in 2015 and
2014 was 62 and 64, respectively.

Remuneration of senior executives
The senior executive functions are discharged by members of the Management Committee.

The remuneration eamed in 2015 by the members of the Management Committee of the Parent
amounted to EUR 5,480 thousand (2014: EUR 5,136 thousand). The aforementioned amounts include
the amounts vested in the members of the Management Committee in 2015 and 2014 under the
incentive plan described in Note 4.12.

The period contributions to the pension plans for members of the Management Committee for 2014
and 20156 amounted to EUR 45 thousand.

¢) Other operating expenses

The detail of "Other Operating Expenses” in the consolidated income statements is as follows:

Cost of logistics networks
__:'Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Leases 32,867 32,955
Security and cleaning 14,950 15,524
Utilities 17,615 19,879
Other operating expenses £8,018 108,417
Total 153,450f 176,775

Commercial expenses

' Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Leases 2,490 2,461
Seccurity and cleaning 15 i7
Utilities 662 795
Other operating expenses 18,905 22,125
Total ' 22,072 25,308
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Head Office costs

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Leases 4,684 4.997
Security and cleaning 718 695
Utilities 473 471
Other operating expenses 27,828 29,353
Total 33,703 358,516

d}l_Operating leases

The Group has the following future rental payment commitments, classified by year of maturity, without
considering future contingent rent revisions (in thousands of Euros):

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Within one year 24,345 29,245
[Between one and five years 60,507 56,441
More than five years 14,657 10,211
Total 99,509 95,897

¢} Finance income

‘The detail of “Finance Income” in the accompanying consolidated income statements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Interest income (Note 27) 10,897 11,321
Other finance income 1,473 10,458
12,370 21,779

In 2014 EUR 8,126 thousand were recorded under “Other Finance Income” relating to the reversal of
the provision for excise tax assessments for 2006 (see Note 18),

f} _Finance expenses

The detait of “Financial expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Accrual for late payment interests and
financial update of provisions (Note 18) 516 2,034
Negative exchange differences - 76
Other financial costs 3,768 4,807
4,284 6,917




q} Other disclosures

in 2015 and 2014 the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the Company's
consolidated financial statements auditor, Deloitte, S,L,, or by & company related to such auditor as a
result of a relationship of control, common ownership or common management, as well as the fees for
services invoiced by other auditors of the stand-alone financial statements of companies under the
scope of consolidation, and the companies related to such other auditors as a result of a relationship of
control, common ownership or common management were as follows (in thousands of Euro):

Services rendered by the main Services rendered by other
auditor auditors
2015 2014 2015 2014
Audit services 1,614 1,071 228 209
Other attest services 57 525 - -
_____Total audit and related services 1,071 1,596 228 209
Tax advisory services 88 143 - -
Other services 40 6 - -
Total professional services 1,199 1,745 228 249

25. Segment reporting
Basis of segmentation

Segment reporting is structured by geographical segment, The Group's business activities are Jocated
mainly in Spain, Portugal (Iberian Peninsula), France and ltaly, “Corporate and Others” includes Poland.

Basis and methodology for segment reporting

The segment reporting below is based on monthly reports prepared by Logista Group management which
are generated through a computer application which categorises the transactions by geographicail area.

The segment's ordinary revenue relates to the ordinary income directly allocable to the segment plus the
relevant proportion of the Group general revenue that can be allocated thereto using reasonable allocation
bases. Each segment’s ordinary revenue does not include interest or dividend income or gains arising from
sale of investments.

The expenses of each segment are determined as the directly allocable expenses arising from its
operating activities plus the relevant proportion of the expenses which may be allocated to the segment
using reasonable allocation bases. The expenses allocated do not include interest or losses arising from
the disposal of investments; similarly, they do not include the income fax expense or the head office's
general administrative expenses that are not related to the segments' operating activities and, therefore,
that cannot be allocated using reasonable allocation bases.

The segment profit or loss includes interest income, dividends and gains or losses on sale of investments,
and it is presented before any adjustment for minority interests.

The assets and liabilities of the segments are those that are directly related to their operations plus those
that can be directly attributed to them on the basis of the aforementioned allocation system, and include
the proportional part of joint ventures. Segment liabilities do not include income tax liabilities.
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26.  Foreign currency fransactions

The Logista Group's foreign currency transactions in 2015 and 2014, measured in euros al the average
exchange rate for the year, were as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2015 2014
Sales 16,115 13,330
Purchases 9,099 7,049
Servicesreceived | 4,920 5,498

27. _Balances and transactions with related parties

The balances at 30 September 2015 and 2014 with related companies were as follows:

2015
_ Thousands of Furos
Receivables Payables
Credit Accounts | Accounts L.oans
Facilities | Receivable Payable
Altadis, S.AU. : - 1,575 26,386 -
Altadis Canarias, S.A. - 635 6,918 -
imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited 1,737,144 - 142 -
Imperial Tobacco International Limited - . 512 18,147 -
Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.1..U. 6,344 - - -
Seita, S.A.S. - 1,024 82,368 -
Imperial Tobacco Halia, Srl - 215 24,858 -
Otros - 2,096 3,324 449
1,743,488 6,077 162,143 449
2014

B Thousands of Euros

~ Receivables Payables
Credit Accounts | Accounts

Facilities |Receivable! Payable

Altadis, 5.A.U. - 1,072 29,795
Aladis Canarias, S.A. - 1,102 9.510
Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited 1,630,593 - -

Imperial Tobacco International Limited - - 19,709
Imperial Tobacco Espafla, S.L.U. 5,072 - -

Seita, S.A.S. - 956 84,887
Imperial Tobacco Htalia, Srl - 90 17,034
Otros 1,201 2,899 3,535

1,636,866 6,119 164,470

The accounts payable and accounts receivable stem from balances payable and receivable, respectively,
related to commercial transactions, mainly purchases of tobacco and refated products, between Logista
Group companies and Imperial Tobacco Group companies.
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The “credit facilities” with Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U., the head of the Imperial Tobacco tax group in
Spain, o which Logista belongs, correspond to the account receivable related to the settiement of income
tax.

The "Credit Facilities” with Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited relate to cash agreements that
existed in 2015 and 2014 among Logista Group and the Imperial Tobacco Group PLC, as described in

Note 0.

The transactions with related companies in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015
Thousands of Euros _
Other
Operating Finance Operating
Income Results Purchases | Expenses
Altadis, S.AU. 7,511 - 397,815 21
Altadis Canarias, S.A 5,990 - 40,444 -
Tabacalera S.L.. Central Overheads 4,592 - - -
Imperial Tobacco laly, sr.l. 1,627 - 65,111 -
Imperial Tobacco Polska, §.A, 3,158 - 6 -
Imperial Tobacco Manufacturing Polska, S.A. | 1,405 - 1 -
Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited | - 10,883 - -
Imperiat Tobacco International Limited 1,880 - 34,730 -
Imperial Tobacco Portugal SPPLC 928 - - -
Macotab, S.A.S. - - - 378
SEITA, S.A. 8,045 - 443,153 165
Otros 9,137 14 357 154
‘Total 44,273 10,897 981,617 718
2014
Thousands of Euros
Other
Operating Finance Operating
Income Results Purchases | Expenses

Altadis, S.AU. 8,801 1,761 396,972 -
Altadis Canarias, S.A 6,546 - 31,590 -
Tabacalera S.L. Central Overheads 4,513 - - -
Imperial Tobacco Italy, s.r.L 933 - 53,169 -
imperial Tobacco Polska, S.A. 3,227 - - -
Imperial Tobacco Manufacturing Polska, S.A. 796 - - -
Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited - 9,560 - -
Imperial Tobacco International Limited 1,664 - 29,994 -
imperial Tobacco Portugal SPPLC 403 - - -
Macotab, S.AS. - - - 383
SEITA, S.A. 7,470 - 457,127 438}
Otros 10,697 42 313 200]
Total 45,050 11,363 969,165 1,021

Operating income and other operating expenses relate to services provided by Logista for the handiing,
logistics and storage of goods, In addition, statistical and market information services are occasionally

provided.
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The purchases are included as a result of acquiring tobacco and related products, as well as convenience
products related to tobacco. Specifically, the transactions with Altadis, S.A.U., Imperial Tobacco Italia, Srl,
Imperial Tobacco international, Lid, Altadis Canarias, S.A. and Seita, 5.A.S. relate to purchases of tobacco
and related products from these companies to then be subsequently sold in the markets where the Group
operates.

28. Remuneration of directors
Remuneration of the Parent’s directors

In 2015 the remuneration earned by the members of the Board of Directors as a result of their membership
thereof or of any of its executive committees in all connections, including the remuneration received by the
members of the Board who in turn are executives, amounted to EUR 3,439 thousand (2014: EUR 2,929
thousand).

in addition, the employer contributions to pension plans for the executive directors amounted to EUR 11
thousand in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The fife insurance premium corresponding to the Board of Directors amounted to EUR @ and 4 thousand in
2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Board’s composition is nine male directors and one female.

Information regarding situations of conflict of interest involving the directors

Pursuant to Article 229 of the Spanish Capital Companies Law, the directors have not reported any
situations of direct or indirect conflict of interest that either they or persons related to them might have with

the interests of the Group.

Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers. Additional Provision Three “Disclosure

obligation” provided for In Law 15/2010, of 5 July

Thousands of Euros Amounts Paid and Payable at Year-End
2015 _ 2014

Amount % Amount Y%

Paid within the maximum payment period| 3,616,773 9976 2,647.484] 99,68%

Remainder 8,699 0,24 8.4421 0,32%

Total payments made in the year 3,625,474 100 2,665,926/  100%

Paments at year-end not made in the 778 906

maximum payment period

The figures shown in the foregoing table relate to suppliers of goods and services for the Spanish entities
under the scope of consolidation which, attending o their nature, are classified as frade creditors for loans,
therefore, they include the figures relating to "Accounts payables for purchases and services” and “Notes
payable” of the epigraph “Accounts Payable for Purchases and Services - Trade and Other Payables”
under current liabilities in the attached Consolidated balance sheet.

The weighted average period of late payment was calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the result
of multiplying the payments made to suppliers past due by more than the maximum payment period by the
number of days of late payment and whose denominator is the total amount of the payments made in the
year outside the maximum payment period, The weighted average period of late payment has been 14
days in 2015 and 2014,

The maximum payment period applicable to the Company in 2015 under Law 11/2013, of 26 July, which,
from the date it came into force, provides for a maximum period of 30 days unless the parties have entered
inte an agreement for a maximum period of 60 days.
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30. . Environmental matfers

In-force environmental legisiation does not significantly affect the activities carried on by the Group and,
therefore, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, income, grants, assets, provisions or
contingencies that might be material with respect to the Group's equity, financial position and resulfs,
Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

31. _Events after the reporting period

No significant events have taken place since the end of 2015.

32. Explanation added for translation to English

These consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group (see Nofe 2.1.). Certain accounting practices applied by the Group that
conform with that regufatory framework may not conform with other generally accepted accounting
principles.
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Compaiiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Consolidated Directors Report for
financial year
ended on September 30th 2015

1. EVOLUTION OF GRUPO LOGISTA IN 2015 AND POSITION OF THE GROUP,

The Group recorded during fiscal year 2015 a very positive evolution of results. Main highlights:

« Board of Directors intends to propose to the General Shareholders Meeting the distribution of a
final dividend of €0.50 per share

=  Positive evolution of Net Income, +8.7% growth
+  Revenues almost flat, down by 0.3%

= Despite good performance of the recurring activity the evolution of Economic Sales'reflected the
positive impact of non-recurring in fiscal year 2014 and declined by 1.8%

¢ Adjusted Operating Profit in spite of positive non-recurring impact last year recorded a slight
increase of 1.1% while Profit from Operations increased by 15.5%

Financial overview

Data in million euros Oct, 2074-Sept. 2015 | Oct. 2013-Sept. 2014 | % Change
Revenues 8.471.0 9,489.3 0.3%
Economic Sales 1,010.1 1,028.7 (1.8)%
Adjusted Operating Profit 222G 220.6 1.1%
Margin over Economic Sales 22 1% 21.4% +70 b.p,
Profit from operations 159.9 138.4 15.5%
Net Income 109.2 102.3 B8.7%

{*} Restated

The macroeconomic environment in the main countries in which the Group operates continued during the
year a similar trend to 2014 closing. The Spanish economy showed a strong acceleration of GDP growth
contrasting with the shight recovery experienced by that indicator in France and italy. In particular,
consumption in France recorded an irregular evolution along the quarters, not showing at any moment
clear upturn signals in the small stores’ channel, where the Group mainly operates.

In this context, the Iberia and ltaly segments registered a positive performance (excluding in the first case
the impact of non-recurring results) while the France segment recorded a weak performance,

The evolution of Group’s Revenues was marked by the increase in Tobacco and related and Transport
businesses in Iberia. These increases almost fully offset the decline in Other businesses in Spain (due to
change in scope of lottery’s contract) and France, and in Tobacco and refated in France and Haly derived
from the tobacco volumes drop and the evolution of retail selling prices in tobacco. During the fiscal year,
no price increases were registered in France and in ltaly were burdened by the higher relative weight of
low-price brands.

The tobacco sector in the total Group registered much lower drops in volumes than over the last few years
being 0.4% (cigarettes and Roil-Your-Own) against the 3.0% registered in the previous fiscal year.

! Economic Sales: This term equals Gross Profit and is used without distinction by the Management to refer to the
figure resuiting of subtracting Procurements to the Revenue figure,
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This better performance in volumes was accompanied by a scenario of moderate prices with slight
increases in Spain, lack of increases in France and the increase of prices, for the first time in the last 3
years, in ltaly. At the same time, the increase of relative weight of low price segments’ trend was kept in
ltaly and, to a lesser extent in Spain.

Economic Sales were below last year mainly as a consequence of the impact that the favourabie
setflement of some litigations during the previous year in lberia had on the comparison between both
periods. Excluding this non-recurring effect, Economic Sales grew more than 1%.

The important growth recorded in ltaly and the good performance of Transport and Pharma in lberia offset
the lower tobacco retail selling price increases and the negative evolution of the Other businesses in
France,

The operating costs reduction, despite growth in the recurring activity, resulted on a 1.1% growth in
Adjusted Operating Profit.

As has been customary, the vertical wholesaler business model that Group operates, as welt as the
constant review of operations to adapt the cost structure to the level of activity so to increase its efficiency
transtated, once more in an increase of the operating margin. Thereby, the Adjusted Operating Profit
margin over Economic Sales reached 22.1%, 70 basis points ahead of the 21.4% margin obtained in 2014.

The lack of impairment of non-current assets results due fo a better economic context and the recovery
experienced by the Share of Results of Companies (that includes now the results from the Books
distribution activity) translated into a substantial improvement of Operating Profit that grew by 15.5%
despite higher restructuring charges.

Thanks to these growths Net Income increased by 6.7%, although Financial Result reduced by 45.6%
compared to the previous year, due lower interest rates during the period vs. previous year and the impact
that during that year had the previously mentioned litigation settlement.

These results confirm the Management expectations, already announced at first half closing, for low single
digit growth in Adjusted Operating Profit during this fiscal year due to tobacco retail selling prices stability.

Revenues Evolution (By Segment and Activity)

Data in million euros Oct. 2014 - Sept. 2015 | Oct. 2013 ~ Sept. 2014 (*) | % Change
iberia 2,576.7 2,546.0 1.2%
Tobacco & Related 2,2181 2,182.7 1.6%
Transport Services 329.5 316.3 4.2%
Other Businesses * 116.5 128.3 (9.3)%
Adjustments (87.4) (81.3) (7.6Y%
France 4,406.9 4,454.5 {1.1)%
Tobacco & Related 4,193.0 _ 4,224.9 {0.8)%
Other Businesses 221.6 240.8 (8.0)%
Adjustments (1.7} {(11.2) 31.0%
Haly 2,518.9 2,529.8 {0.4)%
Tobacco & Related _ 2,518.9 25298 {0.4)%
Corporate & Others {31.5) (30.9) (1.9)%
Total Revenues 2.471.0 9,499.3 (0.3)%
(*} Restafted

210 appliance of IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, data related to the Fiscal Year 2014 of this document have been
restated, to make them comparabie fo fiscal year 2015 data.

® Redefinition of activities included in this line: this line includes Pharma activities, lottery and publication distribution
{these last activities were previously included in "Other and Adjustments” line) and dees not inciude the book
distribution, which is separated from this line and it is consclidated under the equity method. Data related to the fiscal
year 2014 of this document have been restated with the goal of being comparabie with the data for the fiscal year 2015,
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Economic Sales Evolution {By Segment and Activity)

Dafa in million euros Oct. 2014 — Sept. 2015 | Oct. 2013 — Sept. 2014 | % Change
"

Iberia 489.5 515.2 {5.0)%
Tobacco & Related 2451 283.2 {13.5)%
Transport Services 220.2 207.7 6.0%
Other Businesses” 66.4 63.0 5.3%
Adjustments (42.2 (38.7) (9.00%

France 284.2 288.9 {4.3)%
Tobacco & Related 2386 248.3 3.9%
Other Businesses 51.7 57.6 (10.2)%
Adjustments {6.2) {9.0) 31.8%
{taly 230.2 2104 9.4%
Tobacco & Related 230.2 2104 9.4%

Corporate & Others 6.3 6.2 (0.7)%

Total Economic Sales 1,010.1 1,028.7 (1.8)%

(*} Restated

Adjusted EBIT Evolution {(By Seament}

Data in million euros Oct. 2014 - Sept. 2015 Oct. 2013 — Sept. 2014 {*) | % Change

tberia 98.1 109.2 {10.2)%

France 73.3 78.4 (6.4)%

Italy 63.1 44.9 40.8%

Corporate & Others (11.8) (11.8) 1.7%

Total Adjusted EBIT 222.9 220.6 1.1%

(*) Restated

Adjusted Operating Profit (or indistinctly Adjusted EBIT) is the principal indicator used by Management fo
assess the recurring results of operations of the business. This indicator is basically calculated by
deducting from the Profif from Operations all those expenses that are not directly linked fo the Revenue
obtained by the Group during each period, which facilitates the analysis of the evolution of operating
expenses and fypical margins of the Group. In the following table reconciliation between Frofit from
Operations and Adjusted Operating Profit for fiscal year 2015 and 2014 is shown:

Data in million euros Oct. 2014 ~ Oct. 2013 -
_ Sept. 2015 Sept. 2014 (%

Profit from Operations 158.9 138.4
Restructuring Costs 12.7 8.5
Amortization of Assets Logista France 52.2 52.2
Net Loss of Disposal and Impairment of Non-Current (1.7) 16.1
Assets

Share of Results of Companies and Others (0.2 4.3
Adjusted Operating Profit 222.9 220.6

(*} Restated

2. BUSINESS REVIEW

1. IBERIA: Spain and Portugal

Revenues in Iberia reached €2, 576.7 million compared to €2,546.0 million in 2014, recording 1.2% growth.
Economic Sales were €489.5 million declining by 5.0% from €515.2 million in the previous year. However,
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excluding the non-recurring impact recorded in Economic Sales in 2014 fiscal year, these grew a ¢. 1% in
2015.

Revenues in Tobacco and related products registered a positive performance growing by 1.6% despite
the decline of tobacco volumes in Spain and the growth of the low price segment. This positive
performance was due to the impact of retail selling price increases of these products in the fourth quarter
fast year and second quarier of current year and the good performance of Revenues in Portugal that
allowed offsetting the negative factors previously mentioned.

Although cigarette volumes distributed in Spain continued declining, the rate of fall was significantly lower
than in previous years due to, amongst other factors, a lower price increases’ situation and to the constant
measures against illicit trade that was 10.6% compared to 12.6% in December 20147,

Thus, cigarette distributed volumes were 0.8% below last year compared fo a 3.8% reduction recorded in
fiscal 2014 vs. fiscal year 2013,

As for RYO volumes, they declined at a substantially lower rate than in the previous year {-0.8% compared
to -12.3%) while cigar volumes declined by 1.2% vs. 2.4% in fiscal year 2014,

With respect o tobacco distribution contract renewals, it is worth noting that as is customary, contracts
expiring during the year are renewed. This was the case during fiscal year 2015 for Philip Morris Spain’s
contract that was renewed for 5 years.

Tobacco distribution gross margin growth per unit derived from higher distribution complexity, higher
inveicing of value added services used by manufacturers and the evolution of sales of other products to
the tobacconists’ channel allowed offsetting to a large extent the impact of volumes fall on Economic Sales
that, however, including the release of the litigation provision already mentioned, reduced by 13.5% to
£€245.1 million.

The sales evolution of non-tobacco related convenience products has been very positive recording high
double digit growth. During the fiscal year, special emphasis was given to increasing our presence at the
point of sale.

The sales of tobacco (RYQ) related products, however, expetienced a drop compared to last year,
reflecting the strong decline in volumes recorded throughout 20714 and the sluggishness that has
characterised fiscal year 2015. Sales of e-cigarettes reduced significantly.

The incorporation of new products and clients in e-fransactions allowed mitigating the impact of the
declining trend that continued recording the telephony top-ups because of the great competition on prices
dominating the sector in the last few years.

During the fiscal year a new line of point of sale terminals adapted to the needs of the Spanish
tobacconists started to be commercialised under the Strator name (brand owned by the Group and leader
in tobacconists channel in France).

This launch is a step further in the omni-channel commercial strategy of the Group looking for facilitating
the access of retailers to the products, in this case through a terminal that allows on-line communication
with point of sales, for ordering, completing electronic transactions, implementing instant promotions, etc.

Revenues in Transport reached €329.5 million up 4.2% compared to the previous year due to a better
macroeconomic environment in lberia and the incorporation of new clients and contracts’ extensions in the
international full load activity, Economic Sales also grew significantly, increasing 6.0% to €220.2 million. All
the activities in transport (long distance, parcel and courier) recorded increases both in Revenues and
Economic Sales.

It is to be noted that industrial parcel volumes grew around 8% and in courier, shipments increased above
10%.

Revenues in Other Businesses (which includes Pharma, lottery and publications distribution activities)
decreased by 9.3% reaching €116.5 million while Economic Sales went up by 5.3% to €66.4 million.

2 According to data included in tha empty packs’ survey run by IPSQOS {September 2015)
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in appliance of IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” the activity of our subsidiary Logista Libros participated 50%
by the Group is being consolidated using the equity method and not the proportional method and as a
consequence, sales of this activity are neither included in Group Revenues nor in Group Economic Sales.

On the other hand, in order to facilitate interpretation of the performance of consolidation adjustments in
Iberia, it was decided to separate them from the distribution of lottery and publications, jointly reported in
the past and to include these activities in the Other businesses line. Al 2014 data has been restated
considering these two effects to make them fully comparable to 2015 figures.

The Pharma activity recorded an important increase, with double digit growth, thank to the recovery
experienced by the pharmaceutical sector and the increase of market share in distribution to hospitals and
especially in distribution to pharmacies.

During the year 3 new agreements for distribution to pharmacies were reached with pharmaceutical
companies {(Merck, Talika and Procter & Gamble).

These agreements will contribute to the development of the distribution to pharmacies in the next years, as
it facilitates the regular access to c. 11,000 pharmacies {more than half of the existing pharmacies in
Spain) through the portfolio of products of some of the companies having a greater presence worldwide in
the OTC and healthcare category. it is worth noting that the personal care segment experienced the
highest growth rate within the pharmacies’ sector’ during this year.

The incorporation of new products (fow-packs) to the Publications activity partially offset the impact
derived from the sector situation that continued declining.

With respect to sales of the Lottery these were affected during the first quarter of the fiscal year by the
change in scope of the contract with ONCE which from December 2043 only includes point of sales’
administrative management and logistic services.

Operating expenses reduced significantly despite growth in activity reducing headecount in warehouses,
improving productivity both in the tobacco central warehouse in Madrid and in handling activities,
reorganising transport routes, consolidating the reusable boxes project and having benefited from cross
synergies.

Adjusted Operating Profit reached €98.1 million, down by 10.2% compared to previous year, despite the
good general performance recorded by the businesses, as a consequence of the provision movements in
both periods and, mainly, due to the effect of the litigation provision release on second quarter results last
year.

Profit from Operations reached €91.6 million versus €92.1 million recorded in the previous year, down by
0.5%, including a similar level of restructuring costs (around €6 million in both years), but not impairment
resulis that reached €10.6 million in the previous year.

2. FRANCE

Revenues in France declined by 1.1% fo €4,406.9 million while Economic Sales reached €284.2 million
falling by 4.3%.

The drop in tobacce consumption and the fack of retail selling price increases on these products caused a
slight decline in Tobacco and related products Revenues in addition to the rationalisation of customers’
portfolic and the weak general consumption that drove to a reduction in Other businesses Revenues.

Tobacco and related products Revenues were down by 0.8% to €4,193.0 million due to the contraction
experienced by distributed tobacco volumes that, nevertheless, was much lower than during 2014.

The stability in retail selling prices during the year and the measures adopted by the Government to controf
illicit trade favoured a much softer drop in distributed cigarette volumes in France than in the previous year
{-0.5% versus -4.6%). During the fiscal year there were no retail selling price increases while in fiscal year
2014 there was an increase of 20 cents per pack in the second guarter.

However, the RYQ category registered a change in trend in respect of previous year increasing by 4.4%
vs, a drop of 2.7% during that year.

? According to estimates from hmR Espafia, the accumulated growth rate in value during the period January-August
2015 was 8% vs. 0.8% in prescription products.
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The sales of electronic transactions declined well below the telephony top-ups sector's decline thanks to
the growth in other e-transaction products whereas the evolution of convenience products reflected the
weak general consumption, more pronounced in channels offering a somehow higher retail sefling price.

Sales of e-cigarette were substantially lower than the precedent year, contrasting with the good
performance of the smoking items category (paper, filter, etc.).

Economic Sales reduced by 3.9% to €238.6 million due to the lack of retail selling price increases already
mentioned and the reduction in consumption of tobacco products and the weak evolution on the rest of the
progucts.

Revenues in Other Businesses (wholesale distribution of convenience products in non-tobacconist
channels) declined by 8.0% to €221.6 million and Economic Sales were down 10.2% to €51.7 million.

During the year, a progressive rationalisation was carried out over the customers’ portfolio incorporated
after the disappearance of one of the sector's players in 2014. Most of the contracts not reaching the
profitability lever usually required by the Group were renegotiated so that those not adjusted to the
required parameters were discontinued. This fact and the consumption weakness that affected during the
year especiaily to the small retail stores were the main factors causing the negative performance in this
line of activity.

In respect to operating costs, the measures fo adapt the cost structure to the reduction of the activity level
undertaken in fiscal year 2014 favoured to some extent a better operafing margin performance. Also, given
the weak consumption situation during fiscal year 2015 we continued advarncing in such measures,
through the reorganisation of the operations in the South East region of the country.

On the other hand, measures to improve productivity and service level in convenience products distribution
and a new ERP (SAP) in our subsidiary dedicated to distribution of other products to the tobacconist
channel were implemented during the year.

Adjusted Operating profit in France reduced to €73.3 million versus €78.4 million in the previous year, a
drop of 6.4%.

Profit from Operations that during the fiscal year 2014 was €23.8 million reached €17.8 million due to
higher restructuring charges (as a consequence of reorganisation measures undertaken to counteract the
last quarters’ activity contraction) amounting €5.3 million compared to €1.8 million last year. The Assets
Amortization related to the | ogista France’s acquisition was €52.2 million in both years,

3. ITALY

Revenues in italy amounted €2,518.9 million compared to €2,528.8 million last year, down by 0.4%.

The 20 cents per pack increase of retail selling price implemented by manufacturers in January, after three
years without retail selling price increases in the market, did not fully offset the impact that the progressive
growth in market share of the low price brands’ segment and the reduction in fobacce consumption had
over Revenues.

Cigareftte distributed volumes declined by 0.7% compared to the 0.4% drop recorded [fast year, probably
due to the impact of the above mentioned retail selling price increase in a very competitive pricing
environment and in which the economy was recovering at a slow pace.

RYO volume grew by 4.2% vs. an increase of 3.4% in the precedent year.

The sale of convenience products to the tobacconist channel! continued registering a strong increase in all
categories of products thanks to the higher commercial strength derived from the business model that
since last year is similar to the business model used in the rest of countries.

Furthermore, this good sales performance was accompanied by the extension of some additional services
contracted by manufacturers as well as the incorporation of new contracts for these services. All of it
allowed to more than offset the effect of the drop in tobacco distributed volumes over Economic Sales.

Economic sales in Italy reached €230.2 million compared to €210.4 million in the previous year 2014,
growing by 9.4%.

Adjusted Operating Profit recorded an important growth. i reached €63.1 million from €44.9 million

during 2014, what represents a 40.8% increase. Profit from operations was €62 .4 million vs. €43.8 million
in the precedent year.

66



This improvement was due fo the good performance in Economic Sales thanks to more services to
manufacturers and the expansion of the convenience activity as well as fo an important reduction of costs.

As it was indicated in 2014 closing, during that fiscal year there was certain costs duplicity with the aim of
ensuring at all times the service level both over the process of changing the business model and during the
first months of its operations. During fiscal year 2015 we continue advancing in the network restructuring
through continuous measures that will therefore continue in the future thanks 1o the advantages derived
from the vertical business model the Group operates,

In fiscal year 2015, once these duplicities were ceased, and thanks to the progressive incorporation of
sales of convenience products, the Adjusted Operating margin over Economic Sales reached levels more
in {ine with that obtained for the same activity in the rest of the Group.

4. CORPORATE AND OTHERS

Adjusted Operating Profit in this segment that includes corporate expenses and the Polish operations
was practically in line with the previous year, slightly improving by 1.7% to reach -€11.6 million.

FINANCIAL RESULT EVOLUTION

Financial results reduced from €14.9 million to €8.1 million mainly due to two factors, lower interest rates
and the settlement of litigations during the second quarter of last year mentioned before. The impact of this
second factor on the Financial results last year was €7.0 million.

Regarding the evolution of the interest rate used as a reference in the treasury agreement with our majority
shareholder, during 2014, the European Central Bank base rate (over which a 75 b.p. spread is obtained
under the previously mentioned agreement) moved between 0.5% (until beginning of November 2013),
0.25% (effective during most of November and until beginning of June 2014) and 0.15% (in force until
beginning of September 2014) and 0.05% during most of September that year.

During the whole fiscal year 2015 the reference rate was 0.05%, without registering any movement by the
European Central Bank. In the same way, the spread continued being 75 b.p. as is set in the contract.

The average cash position during the fiscal year was €1,341 million compared to €1,126 million in the
previous fiscal year.

NET INCOME EVOLUTION

Earnings before Taxes increased by 7.3% to €167.6 million, while Net Income increased by 8.7%. The
effactive tax rate of the period was 34 6% vs. 35.0% in 2014 mainly due to a lower relative weight of the
results in France that holds the highest corporate income tax among the countries in which the Group
operates.

Earnings per Share were €0.82.
The graphs below show the evolution of main indicators for the fiscal year 2015 (October 2014 -
September 2015) compared to indicators on fiscal year 2014 (October 2013 — September 2014%):

Revenue (million €) Profit from operations {(million €)
9.499 8,562

160

2014 2015 2014 2015
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Profit for the period {million £€) Average headcount

108

5.5633 54672

(*) Restated
CASH FLOW

The seasonality of the Group’'s business results in a negative cash flow during the first and second
quarters of the fiscal year that is recovered during the second half, usually reaching its peak around year
end.

During 2014, €53.9 million were paid as a consequence of negative resolutions of litigations mentioned
before. This and the increase of results allowed a 1.3% growth in free cash flow generation in 2015,
reaching €152 million.

During the second quarter, dividends amounting €74.3 million were paid charged to the premium share
and during the fourth quarter, €31.9 million were paid as interim dividend on EY15 results.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board of Directors of Logista intends to propose to the General Shareholders Meeting the distribution
of a final dividend of €66 million for fiscal year 2015 (€0.50 per share) that will be paid at the end of second
guarter of fiscal year 2016.

Therefore, total dividend for fiscal 2015 will reach €98.2 milfion euros (0.74 euros per share), representing
90% of Net profit of the year.

2. OUTLOOK

During the next fiscal year the Group will continue centering its actions on four main axes:

¢ Reinforcement of its leadership position as distributor to proximity point of sales in Southem
Europe

s Keeping a differentiated offer through the extension of the portfolio of added value services to
clients

» Increasing market share in distribution of convenience products and in distribution to pharmacies
and

+«  Constant improvement of efficiency in operations

A slightly higher rate of decline in tobacco distributed volumes compared to fiscal year 2015 is expected in
the Iberia segment with to some extent higher retail selling price increases and no significant variations in
these products’ taxation.

The enlargement of the portfolio of convenience products that can be sold through the tobacconist channal
and the different measures that are being launched to boost market share in these products provide an
opportunity for short term growth in the Tobacco and related products line to compensate the impact that
the declining trend in tobacco consumption could have in the segment sales during the fiscal year.

The Spanish macroeconomic situation and the GDP growth expectations published by different organisms
allow anticipating & positive performance of the Transport activity although at a more moderate multiple on
GODP growth due o the strong growth recorded in fiscal year 2015.

The new agreements reached with pharmaceutical companies for the distribution of its personal care
products to the pharmacy channel that facilitates the recurring access to an important number of Spanish
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pharmacies could represent a boost for the distribution to pharmacies that together with the fact that the
lottery distribution will not be affected by the change in the distribution contract scope will favour a
significant growth in the Other businesses line in fiscal year 2016.

It is expected that the evolution of tobacco distribution in the France segment is marked by a slight
increase in the declining rate of volumes with respect to fiscal year 2015 and similar retail selling price
increases to those traditional in the market. No significant variations in tobacco taxation or in tobacconist
fee are expected as neither is expected any significant impact from the potential plain packaging
implementation (that will come into force presumably in fiscal year 2017).

The slight recovery expected in consumption and the various commercial measures undertaken {similar to
those in the Iberia segment) would translate into an increase of the Tobaceco and related products line.

The above mentioned foreseeable improvement in the economic situation of the country and the gradual
stabilization of clients’ portfolio would contribute to increase sales of the Other businesses line.

Operating profit will benefit as weli from the efficiency improvement measures that are being implemented
in the country.

The ltaly segment would experience another growing fiscal year, after the important growth recorded in
2015, based on moderate tobacco distributed volume drops, retail selling price increases on these
products below previous fiscal year, no significant variations on taxation and constant capture of market
share in the distribution of convenience products to the tobacconist channel.

The next phase in the restructuring of the distribution network in ltaly, planned for the first half of the fiscal
year will translate into a new improvement of margins and will contribute to Operating profit growth of the
segment.

As previously mentioned, the continuous productivity improvement measures in all segments would result
in a slight increase of Adjusted EBIT margin over Economic sales than in addition to the expected
performance of Economic sales would translate into Adjusted operating profit {Adj. EBIT) growth in the
rage of 4-5%.

If the activity performs in the way mentioned lower restructuring costs can be also expected translating into
a significant Operating profit growth. The slight reduction of the average Corporate income tax rate for the
Group derived from the new Spanish rate would aliow once more to obiain an important growth of the Net
profit (reaching almost double digit) and therefore in the distributable dividend that, axceplional situations
excepted, will be 90% of Net profit of the fiscal year.

RISK EXPOSURE

The Group complies with all the requirements to operate in the various markets and industries in which it
carries on its business activities, and it has established, through its organisational structure, the
appropriate procedures and controls fo enable it to identify, prevent and mitigate the risks of change in the
regulatory framework and, similarly, to comply with the obligations imposed by the various legislations
applicable to it. Although in this management report we will focus on the risk management and control
systems on a summarized manner, for a broader description of risk management and control systems of
the Group see point E of the Annual corporate governance repori. Also, in point F, the Infemal Control
Systerm for the Group's financial information is described.

The main risks and uncertainties facing the Group are related to possible reguiatory changes in the
industries in which it operates, the normal operational risks arising in the ordinary course of business,
which are insured externally, and counterparty risks, highlighting:

The Group’s Businesses are subject to compliance of numerous general and industry laws and
regulations, with European, national, regional and local reach, in every country where it operates,
exposing the Group to potential failures to comply and the corresponding sanctions or claims and, on the
other hand, to increasing costs for supervision of compliance and controi.

European Directive 2014/40/UE (3 April 2014) establishes tighter rules for tobacco products, that could
affect the sold volume, related among others, to labelling, ingredients, track and trace and cross-border
trade. The transposition pericd in their respective member States ends on May, 20th 2016.

Liberalization in the main markets where the Group operates as tobacco derived products authorized
distributor where currently exists a State monopoly for retail sale of these products could affect results, if
the measures already planned by the Group were not implemented.
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- Main operational risks may occur are related to theft of tobacco in facilities and during transport
associated to increases in insurance premiums, as well as to technological risks associated to the lack of
{or faulty) availability of the Information System.

The Group could also be affected by the risks arising from the adverse economic climate worldwide and their
possible impact on consumption in the markets and industries in which the Group is present.

From a financial perspective, the Group's main financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and investments. These items represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. So,
the main financial risks for the Group could be summarized in:

¢  Safeguarding of assets: the Group's Financial Management has as one of its main objectives to safeguard
the Group's assets value in all business units and countries where it operates (Spain, France, Italy,
Portugal and Poland, mainly) through the risk analysis and prevention and optimizing the management of
the main claims. The financial department analyses the accidental risks which could affect the Logista
Group, in its assets and also in its activity, and according to these risks, establishes the external insurance
coverage contracts which considers necessary.

e  Credit risk: The main financial assets of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, credits to Group
companies, trade receivables and other receivables. In general, the Group deposits its cash and
cash equivalents in entities holding a high credit rating. The Group presents as well a exposure to
credit or counterparty risk with the Imperial Tobacco Group by virtue of the subscribed treasury
agreements.

The Group controls the insolvency and delinquency risks establishing credit limits and through the
establishment of demanding conditions in respect to collection periods; that commercial risk is spread
among a high number of clients with short collection periods, being the main Group's clients
newsstands and tobacconists. So, the credit risk exposure to third parties is not very significant, and
the Group has, always if considered, Insurance Policies to mitigate the impact of possible defaults,
although this default rate in all geographies in which the Group operates is very low.

The Group estimates that at 30 September 2015 the leval of exposure to credit risk of its financial
assets is not significant.

«  With regard to liquidity risk, the Group maintains enough cash and cash equivalents to face the
payments derived from its usual activities. Also, if punctually financing is required, the Group has
available credit lines.

» Respect the exposure to interest rate risk, considering the low fevel of the Group’s financial debt, the
Management of the Parent Company considers the impact from a potential increase in interest rates
which could have in the consolidated annual accounts is not significant. However, the remuneration
that the Group obtains on its daily cash positions is linked as well to interest rates evolution and could
benefit from a potential increase on them.

e Also, the level of exposure 1o the net equity and the P&L account in terms of future changes in the
current exchange rates is not relevant; due fo the volume of transactions of the Group in non-Ewro
currencies is not significant.

The risk management to which is exposed the Logista Group in the performance of its activities is one of the
basic comerstones of its management in order to preserve the Group’s value assets. With a focus on a global
management of the Group’s risk, the risk management system is structured and defined to reach the strategic
and operational ohjectives. This risk conirol system is monitored and supervised by the Audit and Control
Committee of the Board of Directors. This Audit and Control Committee delegates these competencies in the
Internal Control Committee.

This Internal Control Committee is chaired by the Group's Financial Management and has the double
objective of i) to ensure the continuous development and implementation of the Group's Internal Control
System in all countries and businesses, as well as ii) to promote and coordinate the work for annually updating
the Group’s risk map and propose approval to the competent bodigs.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group seeks, develops and implements the best sustainable practices, minimizing the impact of its
activity on the environment through the services provided by the different business units. This bet on
environmental sustainability is reflected in the Corporate Policy for Quality, Environment and Energy efficiency
articulated through the Environmental Corporate Strategic Plan 2012-2016.

The Group has calculated and externally verified the carbon footprint for all its businesses and services,
inciuding the verification not only of the most usual categories (Scope 1 and 2) but the calculation of the report
has been voluntarily extended also to several categories of Scope 3.

The methodology applied is based on the GHG Protocol methodology and the UNE-EN-16258:2012 standard,
which allows the calculation of greenhouse effect gas emissions in the freight transport services. This
caiculation and amount of greenhouse effect gas emission has been externally verified according to UNE-ES
ISO 14064 standard.

In fiscal year 2015 is worth mentioning the extension to Scope 3 including new categories: emissions derived
from leaks during transport and distribution of electricity, the acquisition of goods and services, waste
generation and emissions derived from franchises.

The Group has defined as well a corporate program of energy efficiency in the frame of its Strategic Plan
2012-2018 which principal objective is to identify and prioritize the activities that allow a reduction in energy
consumption. The development of energy audits of its centers and main activities are planned as an
exhaustive technical analysis of those companies and sites in the Group offering a higher potential of energy
consumption reduction and identification of best practices.

Moreover, i is to be noted the green energy contract through which 100% renewable guaranteed of origin
electricity will be consumed in all centers directly managed in Spain, France, ltaly and Portugal in 2016.
Currently, the Group is already consuming 100% of renewable guaranteed of origin electricity in its Spanish
centers.

On the other hand, since 2012 Logista participates in the CDP's Supply Chain Program organized by Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP), achieving in its last yearly evaluation performed by this enfity a 98 over 100 score in
disclosure and maximum performance in 3 out of 4 existing categories. In 2015, Logista Group has given a
step further reporting for the first time publically and in an independent manner in the questionnaire of Climate
Change.

In respect to waste management, the implementation of an integrated system for the use, return and reuse
(URRS) of the cardboard boxes in Spain, France and ltaly with the goal of reducing cardboard waste through

the use of returnable and reusable boxes, could be highlighted. This project is fully implemented in France and
Spain and is in the implementation phase in ltaly.

The Group counts with quality and environmental management systems under internationally recognized
norms in various of its businesses as UNE-EN ISO 14001, UNE-EN 1SO 9001, and holds the CCQI certificate
{quality indicators of cold chain), GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) and GDP (Good Distribution Practice)
and Authorized Economic Operator (AEQO) among others.

3. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS FOR THE GROUP AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place after the reporting period that could affect a significant impact on the
accompanying consolidated financial accounis.

4. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Group invested in +D+i €4.7 million in fiscal year 2015. Most of these investments were made to adapt
the systems to enlarge the portfolio of services offered to its clients, automate processes and develop own
software.

5. TREASURY SHARES

At 30 September 2015, the Group did not have any treasury shares.
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6. USE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
No Group company uses derivative financial instruments.
7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT

tncluded below as a Consolidated Directors Reports separate section.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
‘OF LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

Free transtation from a report originally issued in Spanish.
Spanish version prevails over the English version

ISSUER IDENTIFICATION DETAILS

FISCAL YEAR-END DATE: 30/09/2015

C.0.F.: AB7008579

COMPANY NAME: ,
COMPARIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.

REGISTERED OFFICE;
CALLE TRIGO 39 -POLIGONO INDUSTRIAL POLVORANCA- 28914 LEGANES
(MADRID)




A OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

A1 Complete the following table about the share capital of the Company:

Date of last Share Capital (€) Number of shares Number of
amendment voting rights
04/068/2014 26,550,000.00 132,750,000 132,750,000

Please state whether there are shares of different classes with different rights attached thereto:

NO

A.2 List the direct and indirect owners of significant holdings in your company at the date of the fiscal year
end, excluding the Directors:

Name {person or company) of the Number of direct Number of indirect % on fotal of
shareholder voling rights voting rights share capital
ALTADIS SAU 92,925,001 0 70.00%
0
ALLIANZ GLOBAL INVESTORS GMBH 6.716.072 5,08%
FIDELITY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED o
1.392.458 1,08%
Name (person or company) of indirect Through: Name (person or company) of Number of voting
owner of shareholding direct owner of shareholding rights
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC ALTADIS SAU 92,925 001
ALLIANZ GLOBAL INVESTORS
ALLIANZ GLOBAL INVESTORS GMBH FUND 4.197.259

Indicate the most significant movements in shareholding structure that have taken piace over the fiscal year:

Name (person or company) Transaction date Transaction Description
of the shareholder

KAMES CAPITAL PLC 14/01/2015 Fell below the 3% share capital threshold

ALLIANZ GLOBAL INVESTORS GMBH | 15/05/2015 Surpassed the 5% share capital threshold
FIDELITY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 19/08/2015 Surpassed the 1% share capital threshold

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 27/06/2015 Fell below the 3% share capital threshold




A.3 Complete the following tables on the members of the Board of Directors of the company, who have
voting rights attached to shares in the company:

Taotal % of voting rights held by the Board of Directors 0.00%

Complete the following tables on the members of the Board of Directors who have rights over shares in the
company.

Number of direct voting Indirect Number of
Shareholder rights Voiing Rights|| equivalent shares Percentage
LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ 61.971 0 61.971 00,05%
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ 29.328 0 29.328 00,02%

A.4 Indicate, where applicable, the family, business, contractual or corporate relationships existing
between the owners of significant holdings, to the extent that they are known by the comparny, unless these
be scarcely relevant or stem from the ordinary course of trade:

A.B Indicate, where applicable, the business, contractual or corporate relationships existing between the
owners of significant holdings and the company and/or its group, unless these be scarcely relevant or stem
from the ordinary course of trade:

Name of the related person or company

IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUGION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, SA

Kind of refationship: Contraciual
Description: “ITG-L.OGISTA HOLDINGS RELATIONSHIP FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT”, dated June 12, 2014.

ITG undertakes to maintain and respect the freedom of managerment and decision making of the administrative and
managerial bodies of the Company, and the neutrality principle in its commercial and services relations with third
parties, also establishing the confidentiality of the business information of the Company and the separation of their
respective IT systems.

The Framework Agreement also regufates related transactions between both companies, and the government and
administration of the Company,

Name of the related person or company '

IMPERIAL TOBACCO ENTERPRISE FINANCE LIMITED

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA SAU

Kind of relationship: Contractual
Pescription: “INTRA GROUP LOAN FACILITY AGREEMENT", dated June 12, 2014

Agreement on a reciprocal credit facility, for five years (with a yearly tacit renewal), with a maximum disposat limit of
two thousand million euros.

According to this agreement, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista SAU (100% subsidiary of the Company)
will dally lend to ITG FINANCE its cash excess, at the base rate of the European Central Bank, plus a margin of
0.75%. if Logista has to get into debt to meet the needs of its working capital, it can reciprocally borrow the amount
from ITG FINANCE.

A.6 Indicate whether the company has been informed of any parasocial agreements affecting the company




pursuant to the provisions of sections 530 and 531 of the Act on Capital Companies {(“Ley de Sociedades
de Capital”). If so, describe them briefly and list the shareholders bound by the agreement:

NO

Indicate whether the company knows of the existence of concerted actions among its shareholders. If so, give a
brief account thereof:

NO

In the event that during the year any modification or breaking of those pacts or agreements or concerted actions
has occurred, indicate it expressly:

NIA

A.7 Indicate if there is any legal or natural person who exerts control or could exert control over the
company in accordance with section 4 of the Stock Exchange Act. If so, identify it/them:

YES

Name (person or company)

IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Remarks

INDIRECT PARTICIPATION OF 70% THROUGH ALTADIS SAU

A.8 Complete the following tables on the treasury stock of the company:

At fiscal year-end closing

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares(®) Total % on share capital

40.614 o 0,03%

{*} Through:

List the significant variations, in accordance with the provisions of Real Decrefo 1362/2007, occurred during the
fiscal year:

A9 Give details of the conditions and term of the current mandate given by the General Meeting of
Shareholders to the Board of Directors to issue, acquire or transfer company’s own shares

The General Meeting of Shareholders of June 4, 2014 authorised the Board of Directors to acquire Company's own
shares in the following terms;

To authorize the Board of Directors so that pursuant to the provisions established in Articie 146 of the Act on
Capital Companies {"Ley de Sociedades de Capital’), it may acquire, at all imes, shares in COMPANIA DE
DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A., provided that:

i) the face value of the shares acquired, in addition to those already held by the Company and/or its subsidiaries,
does not exceed 10% of the share capital of COMPARNIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS,
S.A., and

iiy the acquisition, including any shares that the Company or person acting in its own name but on behalf of the
Company may have acquired or previously held, does not result in the Company’s net equity falling below the share
capital amount plus any restricted reserves foreseen by the regulations or the By-laws,

Furthermore, to authorize the subsidiaries so that, notwithstanding the refevant authorisation of their General
Meeting of Shareholders, pursuant to said Article 146, they may at all times acquire shares in COMPANIA DE




DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A., provided that the face value of the acquired shares, in
addition to those already held by the Company and/or its subsidiaries, does not exceed 10% of the share capital of
COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.

Said acquisitions may be carried out through a purchase, swap, donation, allocation or non-recourse debt and, in
general, under any other form of acquisition for consideration. In any case, the shares to be purchased will be
circulating shares that are fully paid up.

The Board of Directors of COMPARNIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. or of its
subsidiaries may agree 1o purchase the Company's shares in one or more transactions, for a maximum price that
does not exceed 20% of their listed price, and for a minimum price that is not less than the face value of 0.20 Euros
per share.

This authorization is granted for a five-year term, calculated as of the date of this General Meeting. To expressly
aliow, for the purposes of Article 146.1.a), last paragraph, of the Act on Capital Companies (*Ley de Sociedades de
Capital’), that any share acquired by COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. arits
subsidiaries, further to this authorization, be used or attached, in whole or in part, for its transfer, amortization or
delivery to directors of the Company, and managers and other employees of COMPARIA DE DISTRIBUCION
INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. and its Subsidiaries Companies.

A.10 Indicate whether there is any restriction on the transferability of securities and/or any restriction on
voting rights. Namely, report the existence of any restrictions that might hinder the take-over of controf of
the company by purchasing its shares on the market.

NO

A1 Indicate whether the General Meeting of Sharcholders has resolved the taking of anti-takeover
measures in the event of a public tender offer pursuant to the provisions of Act 6/2007:

NO

If applicable, describe any measures that have been approved and the terms on which any restrictions will become
ineffective.

A12 Indicate whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on a Community regulated
market.

NO

If applicable, indicate the different share classes and the rights and obligations conferred by each.

B GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

B.1 Indicate and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the minimum requirements set out
in the Act on Capital Companies {ACC) in connection with the quorum required to hold a valid General
Meeting of Shareholders.

NO

B.2 Indicate and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the rules provided by the Act on
Capital Companies {(ACC) for the passing of corporate resolutions:

NO

Describe how they differ from the rules established in the ACC.




B.3 indicate the rules applicable to amendment to the Articles of Association. Namely, report the majorities
established to amend the Articles of Association, and, if any, the rules to safeguard shareholders’ rights
when amending such Articles.

The rules applicable are the ones provided in articies 285 to 294 of the Act on Capital Companies (Royal ~Law Decree
of duly 2, 2010).

B.4 Give the attendance figures for the general meetings held during the year to which this report refers
and the previous year:

Attendance data
Date GMS % attendance % attendance % distance voting Total
in person by proxy —
Electronic Vote Others
04/06/2014 0.06% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
1710272015 70,35% 12,56% 0,00% 0.00% 82,95%

B.5 Indicate whether there are any by-law restrictions requiring a minimum number of shares to attend the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

NO

B.6 Indicate whether it has been resolved that certain resolutions entailing a structural change of the
company {“subsidiarization”, trading of core operational assets, transactions equivalent to the liquidation
of the company, etc.,) must be put to the approval of the general meeting, even if not expressly required by
commercial laws.

YES

B.7 Indicate the address and means of access to the company’s website, to the information on corporate
governance and other information on the general meetings which must be made available to sharcholders
through the Company’s website.

The section "Shareholders and Investors”, included in chapter “Corporate Governance”, sub-chapter "Annual
Corporate Governance Reports”, of the corporate website (http://www.grupologista.com), provides the most
relevant information on the Company’s corporate governance and General Meeting of Shareholders.

C ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

C._1 Board of Directors.

C.1.1 Maximum and minimum number of directors provided in the Articles of Association

Maximum Number of Directors 15

Minimum Number of Directors 10




C.1.2 Compiete the following table with the members of the Board:

Name {person or company) of the Director | Representative | Post on the Board Date of first Date of latest Election
appointment appeintment procedure

GREGORIO MARANGN Y BERTRAN DE CHAIRMAN 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS
LIS

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ CEOQ 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ SECRETARY 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS

DIRECTOR
CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL DIRECTOR 04/06/2014 04/06/2014 GMS
EDUARDO ZAPLANA HERNANDEZ- SORO DIRECTOR 13/05/2014 13/08/2014 GMS
STEPHANE LISSNER DIRECTOR 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS
BY CO-OPTION

RICHARD GUY HATHAWAY DIRECTOR 240312015 24/03/2015

DAVID IAN RESNEKOV DIRECTOR 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS
JOHN MATTHEW DOWNING DIRECTOR 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS
NICHOLAS JAMES KEVETH DIRECTOR 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 GMS

Total number of Directors

10

Indicate the vacancies ocourred on the Board of Directors during the period;

Name (person or company) of the Director

Director type when the vacancy occurred

Date of leave

DON ADAM BRITNER

Proprietary Director

24/03/2015

C.1.3 Complete the following tables about the members of the board and their different categories:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Name (person or company) Committee which proposed that member's | Position in the

of the Director appointment organisational chart of the
Company

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION CEOQ

RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION SECRETARY

Total number of executive Directors

% on total Board members

20.00%




EXTERNAL PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS

Name (person or company) of | Committee which proposed that member's Name (person or company) of the
the Director appointment significant shareholder being

represented or who has proposed the
appointment

RICHARD GUY HATHAWAY | APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

DAVID IAN RESNEKOV APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

JOHN MATTHEW DOWNING | APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

NICHOLAS JAMES KEVETH | APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Total number of external proprietary Directors 4

% on total Board members 40.00%

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name (person or company) of the Director
GREGORIO MARANON Y BERTRAN DE LIS

Mr. Marafidn is the Chairman of Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings S.A. He also currently serves
as Chairman of Roche Pharma; Chairman of Universal Music (Vivendi), Director of Prisa and is member of its
Executive Committee and serves as Chairman of its Nominations and Remunerations Committee; Chairman of the
Advisory Board of Spencer & Stuart; member of the Advisory Board of Aguirre Newman. He is Chairman of the
Board and the Executive Committee of the Teatro Real opera house and the El Greco 2014 Foundation, and
Vicechairman and Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Ortega-Marafién Foundation. Mr. Marafion is also a
member of the Madrid Bar Association. Before taking on these roles, Mr. Maraiion was a member of the Board of
Argentaria and BBVA (1994-2004), Director of Altadis (2004 - 4 June 2014), Director of VISCOFAN (2002- Aprit
2014), General Manager at Banco Urquijo (1976-1983) and President of BANIF (1983-1984). Mr. Marafion received
his Bachelor of Laws in 1964 from Complutense University of Madrid, and his Master in Advanced

Management in 1978 from IESE Business School.

Name {person or company) of the Director
CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL
Profile

Ms. Garmendia is a Director of Compaitia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings S.A. Partner and Founder of
Ysios Capital Partners, Chairwoman of SYGNIS, a German-Spanish listed company; Founder of international
advisory firm Science & Innovation Link Office (SILO); Board member of the companies Everis, Seguros Pelayo,
Corporacion Financiera Alba and Gas Natural SDG; President of Grupo Genetrix; Advisory Board member of 188
World; Advisory Board member of Broseta Attorneys; Advisory Board member of the Professional Council of
ESADE Business School; Advisory Board member of the Foundation for Women in Africa; and Advisory Board
member of the NGO ONGAWA Engineering for Human Development. She is also a Board Member of the
University of Sevilla, a patron of Antonio de Nebrija University and the SEPI Foundation (2014), a Board member of
the Spain-Colombia Business Partnership (AEEC) and serves as an advisor on the Intemnational Advisory
Committee to the Productive Transformation Program (PTP) for the government of Colombia. She served as
Minister of Science and Innovation for the Spanish Government (2008-2011). She has a Doctoral degree in
Biologicai Sciences, with a specialization in Genetics and her MBA from IESE Business School, University of
Navarra.




Name (person or company) of the Director
EDUARDO ZAPLANA HERNANDEZ-SORO
Profile

Mr. Zaplana is a Director of Compafiia de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings S.A. He is currently an Advisor to
the President of Telefénica, S.A. Prior to his current roles, Mr. Zaplana held various positions in the Spanish Public
Administration, including Mayor of Benidorm (Alicante) (1991-1994), Deputy in the Parliament of Valencia (1991
2002), ); Spokesman for the Grupo Parlamentario Popular in the Parliament of Valencia (1991-1995), President of
the Generalitat of Valencia {1995-2002), First Deputy Chairman of the Committee of the Regions and Speaker of
the Delegation of the Committee of the Regions at the Convention on the Future of Europe (2002-2003), Minister of
Labor and Social Affairs of the Spanish government (2002-2004), Senator for the Comunidad Valenciana (2002-
2004), Government Spokesman Minister (2003-2004); Deputy for Valencia and Spokesman for the Grupo
Parlamentario (2004-2008), as President and founder of Decuria Consulting, S.L. (2008-2014) in strategic
consulting. Mr. Zaplana received his Bachelor of Laws in 1991 from the University of Alicante. He worked as a
lawyer to 1991,

Name (person or company) of the Director
STEPHANE LISSNER
Profile

Mr. Lissner is a Director of Compafia de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings S.A. Currently, he is the General
Manager of the Opéra Nationale in Paris. Prior to his present role, he served as Musical Director of the Wiener Fest
Wochen in Vienna, General Manager and Artistic Director of the Teatro alla Scala in Milan: Director of the Festival
International d’Aix-en-Provence (1998-2008); Co-Director of the Théatre des Bouffes du Nord with Peter Brook in
Paris (1998-2008), Director of the Teatro de la Opera de Madrid (1995-1998); General Director of the Orchestre de
Paris (1993-1995), Administrator (1983-1988) and General Manager (1988) of the Théatre du Chatelet in Paris,
Professor of Management of Cuitural Institutions at the Université Paris-Dauphine (1984), Director of the Printemps
du Theatre (1984), Director of the Centre Dramatique National in Nice (1978-1983); and Secretary General of the
Théatre d'Aubervillier (1977-1978). Mr. Lissner received his baccalauréat in 1971. He was appointed an Officier de
FOrdre National du Mérite, an Ufficiale Ordine al Merito of the italian Republic, and a Chevalier de la Légion
d'Honneur.

Total number of independent directors 4

Total % of Board members 40,00%

Indicate whether any director considered as an independent director receives from the company or from its group
any amount or benefit on any grounds other than the remuneration for his/her directorship, or maintains or has
maintained over the last year, a business relationship with the company or any company in its group, either in
his/her own name or as a significant shareholder, director or senior manager of an entity that maintains or has
maintained any such relationships.

N/A

Where applicable, include a reasoned statement from the board with the reasons why it deems that such director
can perform his/her duties as an independent director.

List the reasons why they cannot be considered proprietary or independent, as well as their ties, whether with the
company or its management or with its shareholders:

Name (person or company) of the Director

Company, officer or shareholder with whom the director has ties

Reasons:

Indicate the variations that, where appropriate, have occurred during the period in the category of each director:




C.1.4 Compiete the following table with information about the number of female directors over the last 4
years, as well as the nature of their directorship

Number of % of total director
female directors of each type

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fisc;[ Fiscal Fiscal

year 2015 | year 2014 | year 2013 | year 2012 | year 2015 | year 2014 | year 2013 | year 2012

Executive 0 0 N.A. N.A. 0.00% 0.00% N.A. NLA,
rProprietary 0 0 N.A. N.A. 000% 0.00% N.A. N.Ar.m
independent 1 1 N.A. NA 10.00% 10.00% NA. N.A.
Other external 0 0 N.A. N.A 0.00% 0.00% NA. N.A,
Total: 1 1 N.A. N.A, 10.00% 10.00% NA. N.A.

C.1.5 Explain the measures, if any, that have been taken to try to include on the Board of Directors a
number of female directors that would mean reaching a balanced presence of women and men.

Explanation of measures

As stated in section k) of Article 18.2 of the Board of Directors Regulations, the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee shall ensure that selection processes are not implicitly biased in such a way that female directors’
selection is prevented.

C.1.86 Explain the measures, if any, taken by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee o ensure that
selection processes are free from any implied bias hindering the selection of female directors and that the
company deliberately seeks and includes potential female candidates who meet the professional profile
sought:

Explanation of measures

N/A

When despite any measures that might have been taken, the number of female directors is low or zero,
explain the reasons:

Explanation of measures

The Company was incorporated on May 13" 2014, being appointed as Directors the majority of the Board of
Directors of Compafiia de Distribucion integral Logista S.A.U. (currently, 100% owned subsidiary of the Company),
On June 4™ 2014, a Member of the Board was withdrawn by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the unique
current femate Director was appointed.

C.1.7 Explain the form of representation of the board of shareholders with significant stakes:

Imperial Tobacco Group PLC is represented at the Board by four directors (Messrs. Downing, Hathaway, Keveth y
Resnekov), in accordance with the Framework Agreement of June 12, 2014, which rules the relations between
Imperlal Tobacco Group and the Company.

All other shareholders with a significant stake in the Company are not represented at the Board,

C.1.8 Describe, if applicable, the reasons why proprietary directors have been appointed at the behest of
shareholders whose stake is less than 5% in the share capital:

State whether formal petitions for presence on the Board have been received from shareholders whose
stake is equal to or greater than that of others at whose proposal proprietary directors have been
appointed. If so, describe the reasons why such petitions have not been satisfied:

NO

i0



C.1.9 State whether any director has stood down before the expiry of his/her term of office, whether the director
has given reasons to the Board and by through which channels, and in the event that he/she gave reasons in
writing to the full Board, describe at least the reasons given by the director:

Director Name

ADAM BRITNER

Reasons: Professional reasons derived from his position in Imperial Tobacco Group (whom he'represents at the
Board)), that prevent him from regularly attending the meetings of the Board of Directors.

C.1.10 Indicate, in the event that there are any, the powers that have been delegated fo the chief executive
officer{s):

Name of the CEO:

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ

Description:

He has been delegated all the faculties of the Board of Directors that can be delegated according to the Law and
the Bylaws, excluding the faculties that, according to Article 38 of the Bylaws of the Company, require the approval
of the resciution by, at least, the 70% of the members of the Board of Directors.

C.1.11 Identify, where appropriate, the members of the Board who hold the position of director or officer in other
companies that are part of the group of the listed company:

Name (person or company) | Company name of the entity of the Group Position

of the director

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA SAU EXECUTIVE
PRESIDENT

LUIS EGHDO GALVEZ LOGISTA ITALIA SpA DIRECTOR

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ BANCA ITB SpA DIRECTOR

RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA SAU SECRETARY
DIRECTOR

RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ LOGISTA PHARMA DIRECTOR

RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ LOGISTA ITALIA, SPA DIRECTOR

RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL DE CHAIRMAN

PUBLICACIONES LOGISTA S.L.
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ DRONAS 2002, SLU DIRECTOR

€.1.12 List in detail, where appropriate, the directors of your company that are members of the Boards of
Director of other companies that are listed on official stock markets in Spain that are not part of the group,
whose aforementioned membership has been communicated to the company:

Name of the director (person or company) Name of listed company Position

GREGORIO MARANON Y BERTRAN DE LIS PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. DIRECTOR

CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL CORPORACION FINANCIERA ALBA DIRECTOR

CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL GAS NATURAL 8DG, S.A. DIRECTOR

CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL SYGNIS AG CHAIRWOMAN
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C.1.13 State and, if applicable, explain whether the company has established rules regarding the number of
boards on which its directors may sit:

YES
Explanation of the rules

Persons involved in prohibition or legal incompatibifity processes may not be appointed as Directors of GRUPO
LOGISTA. Moreover, the Directors of GRUPO LOGISTA may become part at the same time, and with the limitation
provided by law, of a maximum of nine boards of directors of listed companies other than GRUPO LOGISTA.

C.1.14 State the Company’s general policies and strategies over which the Board in plenary session has
approval rights:

The investment and financial policy YES

The definition of the structure of the group of companies YES

Thé corporate govern:;nce policy ’ ” YES ]
}he corporate so&al responsibility policy M YES

The strategic or business Plan, as well as managemenf goals and annuat budgets YES

The policy regarding compensation and asséssment of performance of senior managers YES

The enterprise risk management and control policy as well as the periodic monitoring of the interna! | YES
information and control systems.

?he dividends policy és well as the treasury stock policy and especially the fimits thereto )YES ---------

C.1.15 Indicate the overall remuneration for the Board of Directors:

Remuneration of the Board of Directors {thousand euros) 3,460

Amount of overall remuneration corresponding to the rights accumulated by directors with 2,151
respect {o pensions (thousand euros)

Qverall remuneration (thousand euros) 5,611

C.1.16 Identify the senior managers who are not also directors and indicate the total remuneration accrued
in their favour during the fiscal year:

Name (person or company) Position
PASCAL AGERON { GENEERAE. NEANAGER - TOBACCO, TELECOMS & STRATOR FRANCE
JAN BABST CO?{PORATE PIRECTOR OF INFORMATION SERVICES

LAURENT BENDAVID PRESIDENT GENERAL MANAGER - LOGISTA FRANCE

ANTONIO GARCIA VILLANUEVA CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTOR

MIGUEL GOMEZ PRADO CEQ - LOGISTA PHARMA

RAFAEL MART! FERNANDEZ CORPORATE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR
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GLORIA MARTIN GIMENO

DIRECTOR

INVESTORS RELATIONS AND STRATEGIC ANALYSIS CORPORATE

DAVID MARTINEZ FONTANC CEC - LOGISTA ITALIA

FRANCISCO PASTRANA PEREZ

GENERAL MANAGER - TOBACCO AND CONVENIENCE IBERIA

PABLO REBOLLO PERICOT

GENERAL MANAGER - NACEX & INTEGRA 2

MANUEL SUAREZ NORIEGA CORPORATE FINANCE DIRECTOR

LAURA TEMPLADO MARTIN INTERNAL AUDIT DIRECTOR

Total remuneration senior managers (thousand euros)

5,480

C.1.17 Identify, if appropriate, the members of the board who also sit on the Board of Directors of companies of
significant shareholders and/or in entities of their group:

Nombre o

denominacion social | Denominacién social del accionista significativo Cargo

del Consejero _ _

JOHN DOWNING ATTENDFRIEND LIMITED DIRECTOR
BRITISH TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED | DIRECTOR
FONTEM UK LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL BRANDS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ALTADIS LIMITED BIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (1) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (2) DIRECTOR.
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (3) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (4) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ENTERPRISE FINANCE LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (1) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO INITIATIVES _ DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO IRELAND UNLIMITED COMPANY DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LACRCIX LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO MANAGEMENT (1) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO MANAGEMENT (2) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS POLSKA LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (1)
LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (2)
LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS LIMITED BIRECTOR
ITG BRANDS LIMITED DIRECTOR
JOSEPH & HENRY WILSON LIMITED DIRECTOR
NEWGLADE INTERNATIONAL UNLIMITIED COMPANY DIRECTOR
PARK LANE TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED DIRECTOR
RIZLA UK LIMITED DIRECTOR

NICHOLAS KEVETH

FONTEM UK LIMITED®

DIRECTOR
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IMPERIAL TOBACCO FINANCE PLC DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (2007) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBAGCO HOLDINGS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBAGGO LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (3)

LIMITED _ DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO SOUTH AFRICA, S.A. VICE PRESIDENT
ITG BRANDS LIMITED DIRECTOR

DAVID RESNEKOV ATTENDFRIEND LIMITED DIRECTOR
BRITISH TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED DIRECTOR
CONGAR INTERNATIONAL UK LIMITED DIRECTOR
FONTEM UK LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL BRANDS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ALTADIS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (1) DIREGTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (2) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACGO CAPITAL ASSETS (3) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (4) DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ENTERPRISE FINANGE LIMITED | DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO FINANCE PLC DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (1) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (2007) LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO INITIATIVES DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LACROIX LIMITED | DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS POLSKA LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (1)

LIMITED DIRECTOR |
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (2)

LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS (3)

LIMITED _ DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED | DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO PENSION TRUSTEES LIMITED DIRECTOR
IMPERIAL TOBACCO SOUTH AFRICA, S.A. CHAIRMAN
[TG BRANDS LIMITED DIRECTOR
JOSEPH & HENRY WILSON LIMITED DIREGTOR
LA FLOR DE COPAN UK LIMITED DIRECTOR
PARK LANE TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED DIRECTOR
RIZLA UK LIMITED DIRECTOR

TABACALERA DE GARCIA UK LIMITED

DIRECTOR
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Detail, if appropriate, the relevant affiliations other than those considered in the above paragraph that link
board members to significant shareholders and/or companies in their group:

Name (person or company) of the related Board member:
RICHARD GUY HATHAWAY

Name (person or company) of the related significant sharehoider:
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Relationship description:

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE STRATEGIC INICIATIVES

Name (person or company) of the related Board member:

JOHN MATTHEW DOWNING

Name (person or company) of the related significant shareholder:
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Relationship description:

COMPANY SECRETARY

Name (person or company) of the related significant shareholder:
NICHOLAS JAMES KEVETH

Name (person or company) of the related significant shareholder:
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Relationship description:

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP

Name (person or company) of the related significant sharehoider:
DAVID IAN RESNEKOV

Name {person or company) of the related significant sharehoider:
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP PLC

Relationship description:

IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP FINANCIAL CONTROLLER

C.1.18 State whether the regulations of the Board of Directors have been amended during the fiscal year:
YES
Description of the amendments

The Regulations of the Board of Directors were amended by resolution of the Board of Directors meeting of
December 16, 2014, to adapt them to the provisions of Act 31/2014, of December 3, of modification of the Capital
Companies Act to improve the Corporate Governance
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C.1.19 Indicate the procedures for the selection, appointment, re-election, assessment and removal of
directors. Give details of the authorised bodies, the procedures to follow and the criteria to be used in each
of the procedures:

Directors' Appointments

The appointment, ratification, re-election and removal of Directors correspond to the General Meeting, without
prejudice to the authority of the Board of Directors to make appointments by co-option.

If during the term for which a Director was elected that Director ceases to be a Director of the Company, for any
reason, the Board of Directors, to fill the vacancy, may appoint a Director by co-option,

The co-option will be governed by the provisions of law, with the Director appointed by the Board not necessarily
being required to be a shareholder of the Company.

The appoiniment of Directors by the system of co-option in accordance with the provisions of law will be effecfive
until the first foliowing General Meeting, which must ratify the appointment or designate the person that thereafter is
to filt the position, or until the holding of the next following Generat Meeting, if the vacancy occurs after the call of
the General Meeting, and before it is held.

Proposal of appointment or re-election of Directors corresponds to the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee, in the case of independent Direclors, and to the Board of Directors itself, in other cases.

A proposal of appointment, re-election or removal of any non-independent Director in addition must be preceded by
a report of the Appoiniments and Remuneration Commitiea.

The proposal in any event must attach a justifying report of the Board of Directors, which evaluates the
competence, experience and merits of the proposed candidate, which will be attached to the minutes of the General
Meeting or of the Board of Directors itself.

The provisions of this section also are applicable to individuals who are appointed as representatives of a Director
that is a legal person. The proposal of the individual representative must be submitted to a report of the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

The Board Regulations state the following competencies (among others) for the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee (Articles 18.2 a), ¢} and d) of the Regulations):

+ Evaluating the skills, knowledge and experience required on the Board. For these purposes, it will define the
functions and skills required of candidates that are to fill each vacancy and will evaluate the time and dedication
necessary for them to be able to effectively perform their duties.

« Making proposals to the Board of Directors of independent Directors to be appointed by co-option or for
submission to decision by the General Shareholders Meeting, and proposals for re-election or removal of those
Directors by the Meeting.

s [Inform about the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of non-independent Directors, as well as
the appointment and removal of the Managing Director/s and of the members of the Executive Committee, and
the permanent delegation of its relevant facuities to them.

Appointment of External Directors. Incompatibilities

The Board of Directors and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, within the scope of their
competencies, shall endeavour to ensure that the candidates are sefected from among persons of recognised
solvency, competence and experience, and that have the necessary availability for the proper performance of their
duties as Directors, and shall be particularly rigorous in choosing the persons fo cover the posts of Independent
Directors.

In the case a Director is a legal entity, the requirements indicated will also be applicable to the individual
representing the organisation, and, in addition, the Director duties set out in these Regulations will also be
enforceable on a personal level. Persons involved in prohibition or legal incompatibility processes may not be
appointed as Directors of the Company. Moreover, the Directors of the Company may become part at the same
time, and with the fimitation provided by Law, of a maximum of nine boards of directors of listed companies other
than the Company (Article 23 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations)
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Re-election of Directors

The proposals for re-election of Directors that the Board of Directors decides to present to the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be subject to a formal procedure, which must necessarily include a report issued by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee in which the quality of work and dedication to the post of the proposed
Directors during the preceding term of office is evaluated.

The Board of Directors shall endeavour to ensure that the External Directors who are re-elected do not always
remain assigned to the same Committee (Article 24 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations).

Term of office

Directors shall occupy their post during the period established in the By-Laws, which shall in no case exceed four
years, and may be re-elected.

Directors appointed by the Board of Directors by co-opting to fill a vacancy pursuant fo these Regulations shall
occupy their posts until the date of the next General Meeting of Shareholders, unless their appointment is ratified by
such General Meeting of Shareholders (Article 25 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations).

Board Assessment

The Board of Directors will dedicate at least one meeting a year fo assessing its operation and the quality of work
performed by Commitiees.

Debates and Voting

In accordance with the provisions in article 27 of the Board Regulations, Directors concerned with any appointment,
re-election or removal proposals will not intervene in debates and voling on those matters.

C.1.20 Indicate whether the Board of Directors has proceeded to assess its activity during the year:
NO

If so, explain to what degree the self-assessment has led to significant changes in its internal organisation and the
procedures applicable fo its activities:

€.1.21 indicate the circumstances under which directors must resign:

in accordance with the provisions of Article 26 of the Board Regutations, Directors shall leave their posts when the
term for which they were appointed ends and when is so decided at the General Meeting of Shareholders, or when
the Board of Directors requests it according to circumstances detailed below, in the use of the attributes accorded
them by Law or by the By-Laws.

Directors must place their post at the disposal of the Board of Directors and formally resign as a Director, if the
Board of Directors considers it appropriate based on the foliowing counts:

a) When they are removed from the executive posts to which their appointment as Directors was associated:
b) When they are involved in any of the scenarios of incompatibility or prohibition envisaged by the Law;

¢) When Directors have performed acts that are contrary to the diligence with which they are obliged to perform
their duties, infringed their duties and obligations as Directors;

d) When their presence on the Board couid jeopardise the interests of the Company or cause serious damage to
the Company's good name.

e) When, having been appointed on the proposal of a significant shareholder, the iatler notifies the Company, at
any time, of the decision of the shareholder not to reappoint him at the end of his term, or when the significant
shareholder transfers, all its shareholding in the Company.
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C.1.22 Explain if the function of chief executive of the company is incumbent on the office of chairman of
the Board. Where appropriate, indicate the measures that have been adopted to limit the risks of the
accumulation of power in a singie person:

NO

indicate and, if applicable, explain whether rules have been established whereby one of the independent
directors is authorized to request that a meeting of the Board be called or that other items be included on
the agenda, to coordinate and hear the concerns of external directors and to direct the assessment by the
Board of Directors:

YES
Explanation of the Rules

According 1o the provisions of Article 33 1.d} of the Board of Directors’ Regulations, a Director can urge those
people with the ability to summon meetings to call an extraordinary Board meeting or include the items in the
agenda of the first meeting that they deem appropriate to be discussed by the Board.

€.1.23 Are enhanced majorities, other than the legal majorities, required for any type of decision?
YES
Explanation of the differences

According to the provisions of Article 38 of the Company By-Laws, the Board shall approve resclutions by absolute
majority of the Directors attending the meeting, either in person or via proxy. Notwithstanding the above, the
adoption of any resclutions related to any of the matters set out below will require the positive volte of at least 70%
of the Directors, as rounded up in case that the application of that percentage does not result in a whole number of
Directors, that form part of the Board of Directors and will not be delegated:

a) any increase or reduction in the share capital of the Company in accordance with arficle 7 of these By-laws, or
the issuance by the Company of any bonds or securities pursuant to Title Hll of these By-laws.

b} the approval of an annual plan in relation to the capilal expenditure, investments and other funding commitments
to be carried out by the Company in the following year {the "Annual Capex Plan”);

¢) the acquisition of all or part of any business of any third party whether by way of the purchase {whether direct or
indirect) of shares, assets or other like interests of any third party (including by way of merger or business
comnbination) by the Company ot any member of its Group;

d) the disposal of all or part of any business to any third party whether by way of the disposal {(whether direct or
indirect) of shares, assets or other like interests (including by way of merger or business combination) by the
Company or any member of its Group;

e) any decision of the Company to enter into any partnership or joint venture or any other arrangement to share or
distribute profits or assets;

f) any decision of the Company to incur or agree to incur, whether directly or indireclly, any capital expenditure,
investment or other funding commitment in respect of any matter in excess of €1,000,000 in aggregate save to the extent
that such capital expenditure, investment or other funding commitment (including the amount of such capital expenditure,
investment or other funding commitment) is set out in the Annual Capex Plan for that period that has been approved
in accordance with section (b) above;

g) any decision of the Company o amend the terms of its borrowing or indebtedness in the nature of borrowing or
grant guarantees, or to create or incur borrowing or indebtedness in the nature of new borrowing

h) the creation of any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, assignment of any of such securities, hypothecation or other
security interest in relation to the Company, other than a security interest created by operation of law as a result of
the ordinary course of business of the Company; and

i) any decision to delegate any powers of the Board of Directors to a Managing Director, or to delegate any powers
of the Board to any Commitiee of the Board.
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For the purposes of counting the majority of members of the Board of Directors for the adoption of the
abovementioned resolutions, the members of the Board that may be under a conflict of interest and that shall
abstain from voting, shall be discounted from the total number of members of the Board on which shall be
calculated said majority.

C.1.24 Explain whether there are any specific requirements other than those relating to the Directors, in
order to be appointed chairman:

NO
C.1.25 Indicate if the chairman has a casting vote:
NO

C.1.28 Indicate if the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors’ regulations establish any age limits for
the directors:

NO

C.1.27 Indicate if the Articles of Association or the Board’s Regulations establish a limited term of office for
independent directors, other than those established by law:

YES

Maximum term of office

12

C.1.28 indicate whether the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors’ Regulations establish specific
rules for proxy vofing in the Board of Directors, the way this must be done and, namely, the maximum
number of proxies a direcfor may have and whether it is mandatory to grant proxy to a director of the same
type. if so, briefly give details on such rules.

According fo the provisions of Article 37 of the By-Laws and Article 20 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations, when
Directors are unable o personally attend a Board meeting, they shall endeavour to arrange for their representation
and vote to be granted in favour of another Board member, and to include appropriate instructions. The delegation
may be made by letter, fax, telegram or e-mail.

The number of delegations is not limited. Non-executive Directors may only delegate ancther non-executive
Director.

C.1.29 indicate the number of meetings that the Board of Directors has held during the fiscal year.
Likewise, state, where appropriate, the times that the Board has met without its Chairman being present. in
calcuiating this number, proxies granted with specific instructions will be counted as attendances:

Number of Board meetings 11

Number of Board meetings without the presence of the Chairman 0

indicate the number of meetings held over the fiscal year by the different committees of the Board:

Committee Number of meetings
APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 4
AUDIT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE 8
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C.1.30 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the fiscal year attended by all
its members. In calculating this number, proxies granted with specific instructions will be counted as
attendances:

Attendance of Directors

11

% of attendance over the fotal votes during the present year 100.00%

C.1.31 Indicate if the individual and consolidated annual accounts that are presented for approval to the
board are previously certified:

NO

idendify, i pertinent, the person or persons certifying the individual and consolidated annual accounts of the
company for their formulation by the Board:

C.1.32 Explain, where appropriate, the mechanisms established by the Board of Directors to prevent the
individual and consolidated accounts being presented to the General Meeting of Sharcholders with
qualifications in the auditors’ report:

tn accordance with the provisions of Article 47.4 of the Board of Directors’ Reguiations, the Board of Directors will
ensure accounts are prepared in such a way that there is no place for qualifications on the auditors behalf.
Nevertheless, when the Board considers that it must uphold its criterion, it shall publicly expfain the nature and
scope of the discrepancy.

C.1.33 Is the Secretary of the Board of Directors a Director?
YES

C.1.34 Describe the procedures for appointment and removal of the Secretary of the Board, stating whether
the appointment and removal thereof have been reported upon by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board in plenary session,

Procedures

According to the provision of article 13.1 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations, the Board of Directors, following the
proposal by the Chairman and the report of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee will appoint a
Secretary who need not be a Director. The same procedure will be followed to agree the removal of the Secretary.

Does the Appointments Committee report on the appointment? YES
Does the Appof'r;{ments Commi-tte;mr;port on removal? YES
Does the Board in piéﬁary session approve";ﬂé appoiniment?w - YES
Does the Board in plenary session approve removai? YES

Is the secretary of the Board responsible for especially ensuring compliance with good governance
recommendations?

YES
Remarks

As well as the functions assigned by Law and the By-Laws, the Regulation of the General Meeting of Shareholders
or by the Regulations of the Board of Directors, and the Internal Conduct Regulation of the Company in matters
relative {o securities markets, the Secretary will be entrusted with the following duties:

a) Keeping the records of the Board of Directors, reflecting the conduct of meetings in the minute books and
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certifying the content thereof and the resolutions adopted.

b) Ensuring that the actions of the Board of Directors comply with applicable regulations and with the
provisions of the By-Laws, the other internal regulations and the GRUPO LOGISTA corporate governance
criteria and principles, and in particular, with the rules stated in the Board of Directors Regulations.

¢} Assisting the Chairman in seeing to it that the Directors receive the relevant information for performance of
their duties, sufficiently in advance and in the appropriate format.

d) Verifying compliance with provisions arising from regulatory bodies and the consideration, if applicable, of
their recommendations.

C.1.35 Indicate, where appropriate, the mechanisms established by the company to preserve the
independence of the external auditor, the financial analysts, investment banks and credit rating agencies.

Relations of the Board with external auditors will take place via the Audit and Control Commitiee.

The Board of Directors shall refrain from hiring those audit firms whose projected fees including all items exceed
five per cent of its total revenues during the previous financial year. The Board of Directors shall make public the
total fees paid to the audit firm for services other than auditing.

in addition, the Audit and Control Committee has among its competencies, the following:

To establish appropriate relationships with external auditors or audit firms to gather information on those matters
which may put their independence at risk, for examination by the Committee, and any other matters relative to the
development of Account auditing, as well as any other communications schedules in Account auditing legislation
and Auditing technical regulations. In any event it must receive from the auditors or audit firms written confirmation
on an annual basis of their independence against the Company or entities directly or indirectly related thereto, as
well as information on additional services of any kind provided to such entities by such auditors or persons or
entities related thereto, pursuant to the Accounting Audit Law (“Ley de Auditoria de Cuentas").

C.1.36 Indicate whether during the fiscal year the Company has changed Hs external auditors. ldentify,
where appropriate, the external auditor and the outgoing one:

NO
If there have been any disagreements with the outgoing auditor, explain what they were about;

C.1.37 Indicate if the audit firm carries out work for the company and/or its group other than that of auditing
and, in such case, declare the amount of the fees received for said work and the percentage that it
represents of the fees charged to the company andlor its group:

YES
Company Group Total
Amount of work other than auditing (thousand euros) 0 185 185
Amount of work other than that of auditing / total amount charged by 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
the audit firm (in %)

C.1.38 State whether the audit report on the Annual Accounts for the prior fiscal year has observations or
qualifications. If so, state the reasons given by the Chairman of the Audit and Control Committee to explain
the content and scope of such cbservations or qualifications:

NO

C.1.39 Indicate the number of consecutive fiscal years that the current audit firm has been auditing the
annual accounts of the company and/or Hs group. Likewise, indicate the percentage that represents the
number of years audited by the current audit firm over the number of years in which the annual accounts
have been audited:
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Company Group
Number of consecutive years 2 14
Number of years audited by the present audit firm / Number of years 100.00% 100.00%
that the company has been audited (%)

C.1.40 Indicate and where appropriate give details whether there is any procedure for directors to get
external advice:

YES
Details of the procedure

in order to be assisted in performing their duties, External Directors may request that the Company hires the
services of legal advisors, accountants, financial experts or others.

This commission must necessarily refer to specific problems of a certain significance and complexity which arise in
the performance of their duties.

The decision to hire such experts must be reported to the Company's Chairman and may be rejected by the Board
of Directors if there is evidence of the following:

a) it is not necessary for the correct performance of the duties commissioned {o the External Directors:
b) its cost is not reasonable in relation to the significance of the problem and the Company’s assets and revernues,

¢) the technical assistance which is sought may be adequately provided by the Company’s own experts and technical
professionals; or

d} there is a risk for preserving the confidentiality of the information that must be given to the expert. (Article 29 of
the Board Regulations).

Also, in accordance with the provisions of articles 17.5 and 18.5 of the Board Regulations, the Audit and Control
Committee and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee may obtain external professional advice.

C.1.41 Indicate and, where appropriate, give details if there is a procedure to enable the directors to have
the necessary information to prepare the meetings of the administrative bodies in a timely manner:

YES
Details of the procedure

Summoning of ordinary sessions will be performed by letter, fax, telegram or e-mail, or by any other means which
provides evidence, and this notification will be authorised with the signature of the Chairman, or the person
substituting the Chairman, or the signatures of the Secretary or Deputy-Secretary following the Chairman’s orders.
The call will be effectuated with a minimum notice of two days. Except for justified cause, the call will include an
agenda for the meeting and will be accompanied by a summary of all the necessary information relevant to
deliberation and adoption of resolutions regarding the matters to be considered. Furthermore, Article 32 of the
Board Regulations sets as one of the obligations of the Director, to gather information and prepare suitably for
Board meetings as well as meetings of the delegated bodies or Commitiees he is 2 member of.

Finally, and according to Article 28 of the Board Regulations, Directors have the duly to demand and the right o
receive from the Company such appropriate and necessary information allowing them to fulfil their obligations. This
right to information is extensible to all the companies of the Company Group, whether these are nafional or foreign.

With the aim of not disturbing the ordinary management of the Company, the exercise of information duties will be
channelted through the Chairman, Managing Director or the Secretary of the Board of Directors, who will assist the
Director's request providing the information directly, facilitating contacts with the relevant department in the
organisation or deciding on the measures so that examination tasks may be performed in situ.
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C.1.42 Indicate and, where applicable give details, whether the Company has established any rules
requiring Directors to inform —and, if applicable, resign~ under circumstances that may undermine the
credit and reputation of the Company:

YES
Explain the rules

In accordance with article 26.2 of the Board Regulations, Directors must place their post at the disposal of the
Board of Directors and formally resign as a Director, if the Board of Directors considers it appropriate based on the
following counts;

a) When they are removed from the executive posts to which their appointment as Directors was associated;
b) When they are involved in any of the scenarios of incompatibility or prohibition envisaged by the Law;

¢) When Directors have performed acts that are contrary to the diligence with which they are obliged fo perform
their duties, infringed their duties and obligations as Directors;

d) When their presence on the Board could jeopardise the interests of the Company or cause serious damage to its
good name.

e} When, having been appointed on the proposal of a significant shareholder, the latter notifies the Company, at
any time, of the decision of the shareholder not {o reappeint him at the end of his term, or when the significant
shareholder fransfers, all its shareholding in the Company.

C.1.43 State whether any member of the Board of Directors has informed the Company that he has been
prosecuted or that an order for the commencement of an oral trial has been issued against him/her for any
offences covered in Section 213 of the Act on Capital Companies:

NO

indicate whether the Board of Directors has considered the matter. If so, give a reasoned explanation of the
grounds for the decision taken as to whether or not the director should refain his/her directorship or, where
applicable, describe the actions taken or planned to be taken by the Board of Directors as at the date of this report.

C.1.44 Detail significant agreements reached by the company that come into force, are amended or
terminated in the event of a change in control of the company stemming from a public takeover bid, and its
effects.

The Company has not reached any agreement that may come into force in the event of a change in contro! of the
Company from a public takeover bid.

C.1.45 identify in aggregate terms and indicate in detail any agreement between the company and its
directors, manager or emplioyees which include any indemnity, severance or golden parachute clauses, for
cases of resignation or wrongful dismissal or if the contractual relationship comes to an end as a result of
a public takeover bid or other kinds of transactions.

Number of beneficiaries: 14
Category of beneficiaries:
CERTAIN SENIOR MANAGERS
Agreement description:

+ Compensation in the case of wrongful dismissal (11 agreements). The compensation to pay, depending on the
case, will be of 3 months’ salary, or of 1 or 2 years of fix and variable salary, unless the legal compensation is
higher.

+ Compensation for post-contractual non-compete clause (14 agreements): 6 or 12 months of fix and variable
salary.

+ Compensation in case of change of control (4 agreements): minimurm of 24 months of fix and variable salary.
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Ali these agreements, excepling one, were executed before the admission to listing of the Company's shares.

Indicate whether these contracts have to be notified andfor approved by the company's bodies or those of its group:

Board of Directors

The General Meeting

Decision-making body approving the provisions

Yes

No

Shareholders?

Is information about these clauses provided to the General Meeting of

No

C.2 Committees of the Board of Directors

C.21 Give details of all the committees of the Board of Directors, their members and the proportion of

proprietary and independent directors in such commitiees:

APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Name Office Category

GREGORIO MARA%EON Y BERTRAN DE LIS CHAIRMAN !ndeper/:&ent -
AJOHN MATTHEW DOWNING MEMBER P}oprietary Director
STEPHANE LISSNER mt-\}EEMBER i;dependeat E;irector
EDUARDO ZAPLANA HERNANDEZ-SORO MEMBER Independ’;gt Director

% of executive directors 0.00%
% of proprietaryai;éctors 2500%
% of independent directors 75.00%
% of other external director;w“ {).00;/;w

AUDIT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE

Name Office Category

CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL CHAIRWOMAN | Independent
VW(V;‘:REGORIO MARANON Y BERTRAN DE-LiS MEMBER independent

DAVID AN RESNEKOV MEMBEE Proprietary Director
EDUARDO ZAPLANA HEI%KEEDEZSORO MEMBER independent Director

% of executive directors 0.00%
% of proprietary directors 25.00%
% of independent dir;;éar 75.00%
% of other external directors 0.00%

24




C.2.2 Complete the following table with information on the number of female directors sitting on board
commtittees over the last four years:

Number of female Directors
20'{ 5 201‘-4 2013 2012
Number % Number % Number % Number %
APPOINTMENTS AND 0 0.00% 0 O.OO%W 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
AUDIT AND CONTRBi COMMITTEE 1 7‘25,00% i 25.00% 0 000% 0 0.00”/:

C.2.3 State whether the Audit and Control Committee has the following duties:

Supervise the process of preparation and the integrity of the financial information relating fo the Company and, if
applicable, to the Group, monitoring compliance with legai requirements, the proper delimitation of the scope of
consotidation, and the correct application of accounting principles.

YES

Periodically review the internal conirol and risk management systems, in order for the main risks to be properly
identified, managed and made known.

Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the intemal audit function; make proposals regarding the
selection, appointment, re-election and withdrawal of the head of the infernal audit department; propose the
budget for such area; receive periodic information regarding its activities; and verify that senior management
takes into account the findings and recommendations contained in its reports.

Estabiish and supervise a mechanism whereby the employees may give notice, on a confidential basis and, if
deemed appropriate, anonymously, of any potentially significant irregularities, especially of a financial and
accounting nature, that they notice at the Company.

YES

Submit to the Board proposals for the selection, appointment, re-election and replacement of the external auditor,
as well as the contractual terms under which it should be hired.

YES

Regularly receive from the external auditor information regarding the audit plan and the results of the
implementation thereof, and verify that senior management takes its recommendations into account.

YES

Ensure the independence of the external auditor.

YES

C.2.4 Give a brief description of the organisational and working rules, as well as the responsibilities,
attributed to each of the commitiees of the board.

The Company has created the Audit and Control Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Article 43 of the
Company By-Laws, and the Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee, in accordance with Article 43 bis of the
Company By-Laws..

Common rules

Appointment of members of the Audit and Control Committee and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
shall be performed by the Board of Directors and they all must fulfil the condition of being non-Executive Directors.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the profile of the persons best suited to participate
i various Committees and shall make the corresponding proposals to the Board.

The Audit and Control and the Appointments and Remuneration Commitiees shalf appoint a Chairman from among
the Independent Directors.

Except in cases in which other majorities for adopting resolutions have been established, the Committees shall
approve resolutions by the majority of its present or represented members.

The conclusions or proposals formulated in its meetings shall be refiected in minutes which shall be accounted for
in & plenary session of the Board of Directors.
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The Audit and Control Commitiee

The Board of Directors will ensure that the members of the Audit and Control Commitiee and, in particular, its
Chairman have knowledge and experience in matters concerning accounting, auditing and risk management which
are suited to their responsibilities, without needing o be experts in these matters.

Notwithstanding other duties the Board of Directors may entrust it, the Audit and Control Committee will have the
following competencies:

a) Inform the General Meeting of Shareholders on the matters raised by the shareholders relating to the matters
under its competence,

b) Refer to the Board of Directors the proposals for selection, appointment, re-election and replacement of the
outside auditor, as well as the conditions of the engagement thereof

¢} Supervising internal audit services and activities and, in particutar, the Annua! Work Plan.

d) Supervising the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company, associated with relevant
Company’s risks.

&) Establish and supervise a procedure which allows employees from the Company group to confidentially report
irregutarities.

f) Establish appropriate retationships with extemal auditors or audit firms to gather information on those matters
which may put their independence at risk.

g) On an annual basis, prior to the audit report, issue a report on the independence of the auditors.

h) Inform the Board of Directors of the Company's Annual Financial Statements, as well as the regulated financial
information.

f) Monitor compliance with legal requirements and proper application of generally accepted accounting principles,
and report on proposals for modification of accounting criteria and principles suggested by Management, and on
and off balance sheet risks

i) Supervise the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the regulated financial information.

k) Examining and previausly reporting on the Corporate Governance Annual Report, on the compliance with the
Internal Code of Conduct on Securities Market and with the Board Regulations and, in general, with the Company’s
governance rules, as well as putting forward proposals for its improvement.

I} Drafting an Annual Report for the Board of Directors describing the activities of the Audit and Control Commitiee.
m) Any other reporting and proposat functions it is tasked with by the Board of Direclors.
n) Any other competence or function under the law, the By-Laws or the Regulations of the Board.

The Audit and Control Commitiee shall meet as periodically as determined, whenever called by its Chairman or
requested by two of its members, and in any event at least four times per year.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee will be comprised of non-executive Directors, and at least two of
its members must be Independent Directors. it will have the following competencies:

a) Assessing the necessary competencies, knowledge and experience on the Board of Directors.

bj Propose the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of External Independent Directors, and report
the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of the other Directors, as well as the appointment and
removat of the CEQ's.

c) Inform about the proposals for the appointment and removals of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary and
Deputy-Secretary of the Board of Directors.

d) Examining or organising, in the manner deemed suitable, succession of the Chairman and the first executive.

&) Reporting appointments and removals of Senior Managers which the first executive proposes to the Board of
Directors.

1) Proposing the foltowing to the Board of Directors for its approval;
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iy Compensation policies for Directors and senior management.
i} The Annual Report on Remuneration of Directors
iii) Individual compensation for Executive Directors and any other conditions pertaining to their contracts.
iv) The basic conditions in the contracts of Senior Managers.
g) Ensuring compliance with the Company’s remuneration policies.

h) Ensuring that selection processes are not implicitly biased in such a way that selecting female Directors is
prevented.

i} Any other competence or duty conferred by the Law, the By-Laws or Board Regulations.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee will meet every time it is called by #s Chairman or two of its
members request, and when the Board of Directors or its Chairman request the issuance of a report or the adoption
of agreements.

C.2.5 Indicate, where appropriate, the existence of rules for the Board’s committees, the place where they
are available for consultation and any medifications introduced during the fiscal year. In turn, please
indicate if an annual report has voluntarily been prepared on the activities of each committee.

The By-Laws of the Company (Articles 41 to 43 bis) and the Board of Directors’ Regulations (Articles 15 to 18)
contain the rules governing the Board Committees. See Section C.2.4 preceding.

A report about the activities carried out by the Audit and Control Commitiee and by the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee during the present fiscal year has been prepared and is available in the corporate web
page of the Company {(www.grupologista.com).

C.2.6 Indicate if the composition of the delegated or executive committee reflects the participation on the
Board of the different directors in accordance with their categories:

NO
if not, explain the composition of its Delegated or Executive Committee

The Company By-Laws (Articles 41 to 43) and the Board Regulations (Article 15 to 18) contain the rules governing
the Committees of the Board. No Executive Commitiee has been established.

D RELATED PARTIES AND INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.1 Identify the competent body and expiain the procedure, if any, to approve related- party and intra-group
transactions:

Competent body for approving Related-Party Transactions
The Board of Directors, subject to prior approval of the Audit and Control Commitiee.
Procedure to approve Related-Party Transactions

Article 39 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations state that the Board formally reserves the knowledge and
authorization, previous report of the Audit and Control Committee, of Related-Party Transactions, except for such
matters that are legally within the competence of the General Meeting. To authorise, if appropriate, the Related-
Party Transactions, the Board of Directors first and foremost shall serve the interests of the Company, evaluating
the transaction from the standpoint of equitable treatment of shareholders and market conditions.

No authorisation of the Board of Directors shall be required in connection with Related-Party Transactions that
simultaneously satisfy the following three conditions: (i) that they are conducted under coniracts whose terms and
conditions are standardised and apply on an across-the-board basis to many customers; (i that they are
conducted at prices or rates established generally by the parly acting as supplier of the goods or services in
question, (i} that the amount thereof does not exceed one per cent of the Company's annual revenues.

in the case of ordinary transactions, a general authorisation of the line of operations and s execution conditions
shall be sufficient. The Directors affected by the related-parly transaction, either personally, or to the shareholders
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whom they represent in the Board, in addition to not intervene in the decision or exercise or delegate their right to
vote, they will be absent from the mesting room, while the Board deliberates and votes on the refated-party
transaction.

The Company shall report on the mentioned related-party transaction mentioned, in the Annual Report on
Corporate Governance, in the regulated financial infermation, and in the notes to the Financial Statements, to the
extent by Law.

Likewise, Article 34 of the Board Regulations states that Directors shall report to the Board of Directors any
situations involving a direct or indirect conflict, either personally or through persons linked to him, with the interests
of the Company or the companies in its Group.

Also, the Framework Agreement dated 12 June 2014, signed between the Company and Imperial Tobacco Group,
establishes that all Related-Party Transactions and, in general, any transaction that may pose a conflict of interest
affecting the Group and the ITG Group should be arranged under market conditions that, according to the
circumstances, would have been reasonably stipulated by two independent operators and in accordance with the
principle of equal treatment of shareholders and the principle of neutraiity established in that same Framework
Agreement.

Explain whether the approval of Related-Party Transactions has been delegated, indicating the body or
parties in which said approval has been delegated, if any.

It has not been delegated.
D.2 Give details of any significant transactions on account of the amount involved or relevant on account

of their nature, carried out between the company, or entities of its group, and the significant shareholders
of the Company:

Name of the Name of the company or Nature of Type of Transaction Amount
significant entity of its group (person | the {thousand
shareholder (person | or company) refationship euros)
or company)
ALTADIS SAU COMPANIA DE Commercial | Purchase of finished 392.019
DISTRIBUCION or not finished goods
INTEGRAL LOGISTA, SAU
ALTADIS SAU LOGISTA-DIS, SA Commercial | Purchase of finished 5.796
or not finished goods
ALTADIS SAU COMPANIA DE Commercial | Sales of services 4.446
DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL
LOGISTA, SAU
imperial Tobacco COMPANIA DE Contractual | Financial interests 10.883
Group PLC DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL related to the
LOGISTA, SAl treasury agreement
Total 413.144

D.3 Give details of any significant transactions on account of the amount involved or relevant on account
of their nature, carried out between the company, or entities of its group, and the directors or officers of the
Company:

D.4 Give details of the significant transactions carried out with other companies belonging to the same
group, provided that these are not eliminated in the process of preparing the consolidated financial
statements and do not form part of the ordinary business of the company as regards its object and
conditions.
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In any event, provide information on any intra-group transaction with companies established in countries or
territories considered tax havens:

D.5 State the amount of the transactions carried out with other related parties.
624,361 (thousand euros).

D.6 Give details of the mechanisms established to detect, determine and resolve any potential conflicts of
interest between the Company and/or its group and its directors, officers or significant shareholders.

Article 34 of the Board Regulations rules the conflict of interest that may affect Directors and their related parties,
requiring both of them 1o (i) report to the Board of Directors any situation involving a direct or indirect conflict, either
personally or through persons linked to them, with the Company's interests and (ii) refrain from intervening in the
agreements or decisions relating to the transaction to which the conflict of interests refers. Related persons are the
persans described in article 231 of the Spanish Companies Act ("Ley de Sociedades de Capital”).

The Director should report any stakes held directly or indirectly and personally or by related persons in the share
capital of a company with the same, similar or complementary activity that constitutes the corporate purpose, as
well as positions or functions they discharge, as well as performing either personally or for another party similar or
complementary activities, to the ones which constitutes the social purpose of the Company.

Directors should abstain in engaging in professional or commercial transactions with the Company unless the
situation of conflict of interests is reported previously and the Board, subject to a report from the Audit and Control
Committee, approves the transaction.

Furthermore, Section 8 of the Company Internal Regulations for Conduct establishes the conduct regulations
regarding conflicts of interest. in particular, the Company Internal Regulations for Conduct establishes the general
principles of independence, abstention and confidentiality that persons subject to it must observe. These
Regulations also state the procedure that persons subject o them must follow to previously report any situation of
conflict of irderest. These transactions must be previously authorised by the Company Board of Directors, in case of
conflict of interests affecting Directors and Senior Management of the Company, and by the Company CEO, in all
other cases.

Also, the Framework Agreement provides that when a related-parly transaction personally affects a Director or the
shareholder he represents at the Board, he must abstain from intervening in the decision, as well as from voting or
delegating his vote. He will also leave the Board meeting room, while the Board deliberates and votes on such
related transaction. Nevertheless, the Proprietary Directors appointed by or representing Imperial Tobacco must be
present in each debate and voting regarding the Framework Agreement or the Treasury Agreements {(even though
they will not be able to vote regarding these matters).

0.7 Is more than one company of the Group listed in Spain?
NO

Identify the subsidiaries listed in Spain:

Listed subsidiaries

Indicate whether the respective areas of activity and any business relations between them, and any business
relations between the listed subsidiary and other group companies, have been publicly and precisely defined;

Describe any business relations between the parent company and the listed subsidiary, and between the listed
subsidiary and cther group companies.

Identify the mechanisms established to resolve any potential conflicts of interest between the listed subsidiary and
the other companies of the group:

Mechanisms for resolving possible confiicts of interest
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E RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

E.1 Describe the Risk Management System in place at the company.

The Corporate Risk Management System of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter, the Group) is set forth in the
General Internal Control Policy of February, 812012

This policy establishes a general action framework for controlling and management of intemal and external risks of any
nature, which may affect the Group, in accordance with the risk map in place at all times in the achievement of its
objectives (Corporate Governance risks, market risks, financial risks, regulatory risks, business risks, operational risks,
penal risks and reputational risks, among others) {*the Internal Contro! System”).

The infernal Control System, which forms an integral part of the Group risk management is a process designed in order to
provide a reasonable degree of securify in achieving the following objectives:

1) Reliability of Financial Reporting

2) Compliance with applicable group policies, plans, laws and standards
3) Safeguarding of assets

4) Economic and efficient use of resources

5} Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

The Group Internal Control Committee was set up in order fo develop this policy. Among its responsibilities, the
aforementioned Committee is intended to foster and coordinate the updating of the Group risk map.

E.2 Identify the bodies responsible for preparing and implementing the Risk Management System.

The Board of Directors

Among its non-delegable facuities, the Board of Directors has to approve the general policies and strategies of the
Group, and among them, the controf and risk management policy, including tax risks, as well as the supervision of
the internal reporting and control systems, in particular those for financial information.

Audit and Control Committee
Among others, the Audit and Contral Committee shalt have the following competencies:

f) Supervise the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group, related to relevant risks, review the appointment
or removal of people in charge, as well as to discuss with the accounts auditors or audit companies, the significant
weaknesses of the internal control system, detected during the auditing process

i) To inform the Board about the Annual Financial Statements as well as the financial information required by the
applicable regulations, which have to be sent to the market regulating or supervisory bodies (before its detivery},

iif) To monitor compliance with the legal requirements and the generally accepted accounting principles, as well as
inform on proposals by the Management to modify accounting principles and criterfa, and balance shest and off-
balance sheet risks.

internal Control Committee

The Grupo Logista Internal Control Committee is comprised of the Corporate Financial Director, who acts as
Chairman, the Group's Administration and Internal Control Director, the Human Resources Director, a
representative of the L.egal Department, the Corporate Resources Director as well as the General Managers of the
3 most important business units of the Group, and by the Internal Auditor, who shall act as Secretary, without voting
rights.

This Committee depends on the Audit and Control Committee of the Board of Directors, hierarchical and
functionally. The Committee has the following basic functions:

* To promote and coordinate the work for annually updating the Group’s risk map and propose approval to the
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competent bodies.
+ Analysis and evaluation of Internal Audits results and plans for implementation of recommendations.

» To validate the proposals of the Internal Control Process Owners or Coordinators, or Business or Corporate
Directors, for defining, updating and developing new processes or subprocesses, as well as the Control Objectives
and Control Activities.

* To standardize the reporting the Chief Executive Officer, Corporate Managers and Business Managers wish to
receive on a regular basis, in their respective areas.

In relation with the Penal Risks Prevention Model, the Internal Control Committee also acts as Unit of Controt and
Follow-Up of Penal Risks, in relation with the direct penal responsibility of the legal persons, established by Spanish
faws.

Process Manager or Process Owner: Employees responsible for the design, process development and detection of
risks and opportunities that may affect them. They are also responsible for the implementation of policies and
internat control standards. They should identify the Control Objectives and Confrol Activities to Control Owners,
reporting on it all to the Internal Control Coordinators.

internal  Control Coordinators: They are responsible for promoting the implementation, development and
coordination of the Internal Control System through Control Objectives and Activities. Generally, this function will be
oceupied by financial officers of the Business and Corporate Management that makes up the Group.

Controt Owner. Employees responsible for carrying out control on processes and informing, through reporting, on
checks made to the Process Owner. They should suggest improvements and corrective actions to the Process
Owner.

Corporate Finance Diregtorate
The Corporate Finance Director promotes risk management, requesting the completion of the risk assessment o
the Control Owners and to the Business General Managers, on the basis of single methodology and instructions,

Internal Audit Department
The Internal Auditor, besides its functions as such, fosters, coordinates and documents the proceedings and works
of the internal Control Commitiee.

E.3 Indicate the main risks which may prevent the company from achieving its targets.
The methodology applied by the Group classifies main risks in four main categories:

* Operational risks are those directly associated with the execution of transactions and its due administration and
control including, among others, risks associated fo information systems (technological risks), environment, human
resources, legal risks, compliance with industrial regulations, as well as penal risks. Financial risks are included in
this category, being understood as risks relating to the Group exposure to price variations and variable market,
such as exchange rate, interest rate, efc..., credit risks derived from coniract obligations, as well as tax risks derived
from the Group operations.

* Project risks are those associated with major changes taking place in Businesses, including new systems
implementations, changes of location to new warehouses and launch of new business or products initiatives, etc,
having, basically, ait of them in common, that at the end of the project the risk disappear.

+ Strategic risks are those risks associated with developing activity in its specific sector, including exposure to
regulatory changes and adaptation of strategy and business model to changes in its activity environment.

* Emerging risks are those derived from the political and macroeconomic situation, which affect many companies
and organisations.

Particularly, in the Group Risk Map the following risks were identified, among others:

Operational risks:

¢ Theft of tobacco in facilities and during transport associated to increases in insurance premiums.
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s Technological risks associated to the lack of (or faulty) availability of the Information Systems.

s Risk of impairment of fair value of assets, in relation with goodwill high carrying value

= Commercial credit risk derived from the usual business operations with customers

¢ Tobacco illicit trade and contraband impacting in distributed tobacco volumes.

¢ Penal risk {(commission of crimes within the company and/or in the benefit of the Group) or Risks associated to
litigation in which the Groups is currently part, either as plaintiff or defendant

Project risks:

* Delays or mistakes in implementation of new systems and business initiatives could lead to additional costs to the
Group and to delay or even impede the achievement of the strategic objectives, due fo the setilement of unrealistic
or too ambitious deadlines, deficient planning and project management methodology that sets aside the risks
arising throughout the project execution, etc.

Strategic risks
+ Regulatory change risks:

- The Grupo Logista Businesses are subject to compliance of numerous general and industry laws and
regulations, with European, national, regional and local reach, in every country where it operates, exposing
the Group to potential failures to comply and the corresponding sanctions or claims and, on the other hand, to
increasing costs for supervision of compliance and control.

- European Directive 2014/40/UE (3 April 2014) establishes tighter rules for tobacco products, that could affect
the volume sold, related among others, to labelling, ingredients, track and frace and cross-border trade. The
transposition period in their respective member States ends on May, 20th 2016.

- Liberalization in the main markets where the Group operates as tobacco products authorized distributor where
currently exists a State monopoly for retail sale of these products could affect results, if the measures already
planned by the Group were not implemented.

Emerging risks;

+ Group’s business could be adversely affected by the deterioration of the economic conditions in the markets in
which it operates (mainly Spain, Portugal, France and Htaly).

£.4 Identify if the company has a risk tolerance level.

Group risk management methodology considers different risk {olerances when rating gross risks, both with
guantitative and qualitative criteria, and assessing the risk impact which allocate each risk in the general scheme of
risk appetite. Criteria used by the group are: regulatory compliance, financial-economical impact, safety and
security, impact in processes and reputational impact.

These criteria, together with ratings over likelthood rating, are added to the tools used for risk management (risk
register and risk map), on order to report and monitor and adequate follow-up of key risks by the corresponding
bodies.

General Risk management Policy defined the position of the Company regarding a risk typology, such as:
Group has a low tolerance regarding law and regulation compliance, including tax regulation,

in general, due to the particularity of the business and trhe markets where the Group Is present, has & moderate
risk profile, therefore risk management has o be done considering the following:

A} Achieve those strategic objectives defined by the Group, keeping a levet of uncertainty under control,
h) Maximize the level of guarantee to shareholders.
¢} Protect Group financial results and reputation.

d) Take care of stakeholders interests (sharehoiders, customers and manufactures).
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Highlight that in the sfrategic Group framework, providing high added value logistical services with a high leve! of
technological innovation, presents higher leve! of tolerance considering the technological risks that could occur.

E.5 Identify any risks which have occurred during the year,

Regular operational risks, in the ordinary course of business, parficularly theft of tobacco in the company facilities
and during transport, not affecting the Group’s financial results as the merchandise was properly insured.

Liabilities for the resolution of fiscal litigation processes, ruled against the Group, not affecting the Group's financial
results, as they were properly provisioned in previous fiscal years.

E.6 Explain the response and monitoring plans for the main risks the company is exposed to.

The methodology to elaborate the Group Corporate Risk Map, based on the individual risk evaluation of the
businesses, forces the evaluators to assess the risks before and after considering the mitigating controls and action
plans established for each case, ending up with the residual risk classification (Severe, High, Moderate or Low).

See below the main existing controls for the risks identified in the E.3 section:

Operational risks

+ Theft of tobacco in the company facilities and during fransport.

The foilowing measures reduce both the impact and the likelihood to a tolerable risk levet:
o Follow up of maximum security standards.

o Insurance Policies.

- Technological risks:

o Existence of Contingency Plans periodically tested, analyzed and monitored by the Information Security
Commitiee.

o The Group Data Centers are permanently monitored
+ Regarding the goodwill high carrying value, the Group undertakes impairment test according to the IFRS.

* Regarding tobacco illicit trade and contraband, the Group is developing projects together with the manufacturers
to establish more demanding track and trace protocols, in compliance with the European Directive of April, 3rd
2014.

* In refation to Compliance and Crime Prevention within the Group's companies, the following controls currently
exist:

o The Group has a Code of Conduct and periodically asks employees to undertake training on its contents.

0 The Group has an Internal Channel for denounces and irregularities, with policies and procedures available to
every employee in the Group intranet.

o The Corporate Legal Department centralizes supervision of most significant contracts all across the Group.

o There are Policies for investment, expenditures, indebtedness and other transactions, that require a strict
approval and communication workflow.

o Also, adapted to the specific characteristics of the penal codes in Spain and ltaly, in addifion to the Group Code of
Conduct, there are specific Manuals for crime prevention in these countries according to which, in case of lack of
compliance with the controls and general behavior principles stated in them and in the Group Code of Canduct,
disciplinary actions could be taken against the offenders.

o There are specific procedures for preventing money laundering in the Group, being the Regulatory Compliance
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Diractorate the body in charge addressed as the valid interlocutor with the SEPBLAC.
Project risks

+ The Group uses project management methodologies based on best practices, follow strict investment approval
procedures and formally manages the available capacity and the change or migration risk.

Strategic risks
+ Risk of regulatory changes

o The Corporate Legal Department centralizes the review of the most relevant contracts within the Group, to ensure
that they strictly comply with Laws, and that the third parties contracting with the Company comply with the
principles of the Code of Conduct.

o The effect of fiberalizing the main markets in which the Group operates as tobacco-related products authorized
distributor where currently there is a State monopoly for retall sale would, if there is a negative effect, mitigated by
the business diversification strategy followed by the Group, and the capacity to sell tobacco through the large
capillary point of sales network,

Emerging risks

« The markets most affected by the poor economic evolution, and the Businesses most exposed to its customer
credit risks, are reinforcing the procedures for the recovery of debts fo shorten the terms, as well as reducing and
tightly monitoring the credit limits, fostering the obiaining of bank guaraniees.

F INTERNAL SYSTEMS FOR THE CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT OF RISKS
RELATED TO THE PROCESS OF FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICOFR)

Describe the mechanisms which constitute the systems for the control and management of risks related to
the process of financial reporting (ICOFR) in your entity,

F.1 The entity’s control environment
Report on the following as a minimum, indicating their main characteristics:

F.1.1 The bodies or departments responsible for (i} the existence and maintenance of adequate and
effective ICOFR; (ii) the implementation of those ICOFR and {iii}the supervision of those ICOFR.

The Grupo Logista system for the internal control of financial reporting (hereinafter ICOFR’) forms part of the Grupo
Logista internal cortrol system and consists of the whole of the processes carried out by the Board of Directors, the
Audit & Control Commiftee, Senior Management and the Grupo Logista personnel to provide reasonable security in
relation to the reliability of the financial information which is released o the markets.

Article 5 of the Rules of the Board of Directors of 16th December, 2014, entitled ‘The general role of supervision’,
lays down as one of its responsibilities the definition and approval of The Grupo Logista policies and general
strategies, and in particular, the policy on control and management of risks, including fiscal risks, and the
supervision of the internal systems of reporting and control, and in particular, of financial reporting. It also defines
the ultimate responsibility of the Board of Directors over the financial information which, as & quoted company, the
Company has to publish regularly, and its responsibility to formulate the annual accounts and present them to the
General Shareholders’ Meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Article 43 of the By-Laws, the Grupo Logista has an Audit & Control
Committee, whose responsibilities in relation to the ICOFR, according to Article 17.2 of the Board’s Rules, are the
following:

¢« To supetvise the effectiveness of the Grupo Logista systems of internal control, and in particular of the
financial reporting and the systems for risks management, including the fiscal risks of the Grupo Logista, to
review the appoiniment and replacement of its managers, and fo discuss with the Auditors of Accounts or
Auditing Companies the weaknesses in the internal control system that were detected during the auditing.

34



o Toreport to the Board of Directors on the Grupo Logista Annual Accounts, and on the financial information
which the Grupo Logista has to publish regularly and send o the bodies which regulate or supervise the
markets.

« To keep watch over the compliance of the legal requirements and the correct application of the generally
accepted accounting principles, and to report on the Management's proposals for the modification of
accounting principles and criteria, and on the risks on and off the balance sheet.

« To supervise the preparation of the mandatory financial information, its completeness and its presentation.

e To make proposals to the Board of Directors concerning the selection, appointment, re-election and
repiacement of the external auditor, and also the terms and conditions of his engagement, and to collect
from him regutar information about the Audit Plan and its execution, and also preserving his independence
in the exercise of his functions.

e To supervise the services and activities of internal Audit, especially the Internal Audit Annual Plan and the
appeintment and replacement of its manager, who will functionally report to the Chairman of the Audit and
Control Commiitee,

Among other functions, the Internal Control Committee establishes the responsibility to validate the proposals of the
internal control process managers or co-ordinators, or of corporate or business managers, o define, update and
develop new processes or sub-processes and the objectives of control and control activities, including alf those
which are related to the ICOFR.

The Finance Corporate Directorate is the body responsible for defining the systems of internal control over financial
information. In this regard, it establishes and defines the policies, guidelines and procedures related to the
generation of the said information, in order to guarantee the quality and authenticity of the financial information
generated and monitors its compliance.

In addition, among the functions defined in the rules of Internal Auditing, the Management of the Internal Audit
Department has that of providing the Grupo Logista, and in particular its Senior Management, its Board of Directors
and its Audit and Control Committee, with a reasonable degree of assurance in refation to the following points:

o  That the significant risks of the Grupo Logista are identified and managed effectively and efficiently, and
that proposals are made to the competent bodies of any strengthening measures that are considered
necessary in any of the component parts of The Grupo Logista Internat Control System (Control
Environment, Risk Evaluation, Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Supervision);

o Thatin particular, there is adequate supervision of the system for the internal control of financial reporting
{ICOFR).

F.1.2. If they exist, especially in connection with the process of preparing financial information, the
following elements:

Departments and/or mechanisms entrusted with: (i}the design and review of the organisational structure;
(ii) clearly defining the lines of responsibility and authority, with an appropriate distribution of tasks and
roles; and (i) ensuring that the procedures for disseminating this information throughout the entity are
sufficient.

According to Article 8 of its Rules, the general purpose of the Board of Directors of the Grupo Logista is to
determine and supervise the Grupo Logista business and financial objectives, agreeing on the strategy, the plans
and the policies by which to achieve them, propelling and supervising the management of the Group and the
achievermnent of the established objectives, and ensuring the existence of adequate management and organisation,
under effective supervision of the Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the policy of the Board is to delegate the ordinary management of the Group to the
executive bodies and the management team, except in those matters which, according to the Law, the By-Laws or
the Board's Rules, cannot be delegated.

For this reason, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee has the responsibility, among others, to advise
on the proposals for the appointment or severance of senior directors which the Chief Executive proposes to the
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Board.

Among the roles of the senior management are the design and review of the organisational structure of the different
units of corporate business, for the purpose of identifying needs, inefficiencies and areas for improvement in the
design of those sfructures, and the definition of the lines of responsibility and authority, and the appropriate
distribution of tasks and roles.

The Corporate Directorate of Human Resources has procedures for updating the organisational structures af
corporate level and of each of the Grupo Logista subsidiaries. These procedures are documented in organisation
charts, which show the lines of authority up to a certain organisational level.

The Grupo Logista has a range of internal regulations governing the allocation and division of responsibilities and
the segregation of functions in the different areas of the Company. The system of evaluation of the Grupo Logista
performance contains, in an individualized manner, the main responsibilities of each job.

Specifically, the Corporate Financial Directorate has organisation charts showing the composition of the Financial
Departments of each of the subsidiaries and business units; it also has regulations and procedures containing
information about the tasks carried out by the different members of those departments, and in its systems for
performance evaluation it has information about the responsibilities included in the jobs of the key personnel
involved in the preparation of the financial statements.

Dissemination is through the corporate Intranet which is used for internal communications, and through which the
Grupo Logista regulations, procedures and instructions, as well as information about the most important changes
occurring in the organisational structure, are disseminated. Furthermore, in the Corporate Intranet Directory one
may find complete information about each of the employees of the Grupo Logista, including the post occupied and
the reporting lines.

According to Framework agreement of 12" June 2014, signed by the Company and imperial Tobacco Group PLC,
internal control systems of the Grupo Logista, including those over financial information and internal audit
standards, are coordinated with systems and standards of Imperial Tobacco Group, if necessary, fo facilitate
tmperial Tobacco Group the developments and dissemination of their own regulated financial information.

e The code of conduct, the approving body, the degree of dissemination and instruction, the
principles and values included {with an indication of whether there are specific references to the
record of operations and the preparation of financial information), the body responsibie for
analysing breaches and proposing corrective actions and sanctions.

The Grupo Logista has adopted the Code of Conduct issued by its controlfing shareholder, imperial Tobacco Group
PL.C, which has been approved by its Board of Directors, There is, in addition, a Code of Conduct which applies
specifically to The Grupo logista companies in Haly (the '‘Codice Etico’), approved by the Board of Directors of
Logista ltalia, S.P.A.,, within the framework of Legislative Decree 231/01, which govemns the regulation of
compliance in the matter of criminal risks, and which describes in detail all the processes of the Grupo logista
ltalian companies, including the preparation of financial information, which are in turn analysed by the govemning
and control bodies legally required in [taly.

The Grupo Logista Code of Conduct may be consulted on the Corporate intranet.

All the employees of the Grupo Logista have to commit themselves o its compliance and as a prove of that, they
must sign a ‘recognition’ document, confirming that they have read the Code of Conduct and will observe its
provisions. The Group Logista has versions of this document in English, Spanish, French, ltalian, Portuguese and
Polish, so that it can be correctly disseminated and understooed in all the countries in which it operates.

The Code of Conduct lays down the principles of responsible behaviour which alf the employees have to observe,
and offers a practical guide to the way in which important ethical and legal matters should be dealt with. As
fundamental values it includes business integrity, responsible commerciat practice, trust, respect and responsibility.
Each of the general principles is elaborated on in the body of the Code.

In particular, within the principle of responsible commercial practice, there is a section on accuracy in accounting
and the keeping of financial records and notifications, of which the main obligations are explained below:

¢ Toreport and record all our financial information accurately and objectively.
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»  To ensure that accurate and complete financial and commercial records are kept.

o To ensure that all the financial reports, notifications, forecasts and analyses for which we are responsibie
are transmitted honestly and accurately.

+ To observe all of the laws, external requirements and procedures of the Company when transferring
financial and commercial information.

« To co-operate openly with the Grupo Logista Compliance Department and with our external auditors.

e To strive to identify any potentially erroneous representation of the accounts, data or records, or any
occurrence of potential fraud or deception, and to inform the local, regional or departmental heads of
finances, the Director of Accounting, Forecasting and Taxation or the Grupo Logista Compliance Manager
of any worry or doubt about the accuracy of the financial reporis,

The Code of Conduct itself and its complaints procedure tay down a procedure for notifying, recording and
investigating possible breaches of the Code of Conduct as well as the principles of the investigations and the
disciplinary measures, including dismissal, and the rights of appeal.

The body ultimately responsible for these activities is the Audit and Control Committee itself.

¢ The complaints channel, which enables notifications of financial and accounting irregulatities, of
any possible breaches of the Code of Conduct, or of any irregular activities in the organisation to
be made to Audit Committee, together with, if appropriate, information about their confidential
nature.

The Grupo Logista has a Policy and Procedure for Complaints or Irregularities (“Whistieblowing™), which is an
adaptation of that of its controlling shareholder Imperial Tobacco Group PLC.

The said procedure, which may be consulted by any employee of the Grupo Logista, serves fo denounce any
irregularity, breach or behaviour that is unethical, illegal or contrary to the Group's policies, and defines the
channels of communication of the Code of Conduct and the method of dealing with claims, including those relating
to any kind of financial or accounting irvegularity.

With regard to the confidentiality of complaints, the procedure is that when an employee asks for the report to
remain confidential, all reasonable efforts will be made to profect the employee’s name and to find other,
independent evidence relating to the case. If internal or external circumstances arise which prevent the
investigation from proceeding without the employee’s name being revealed, the employee’s consent will be sought
first.

The Rules of the Board of Directors assign to the Audit and Control Committee the responsibility for establishing
and supervising a procedure which enables employees of the Grupo Logista, confidentially and, if appropriate,
anonymously, to denounce potentially important irregularities, especially financial or accounting ones, which they
notice within the Company.

« Programmes for the training and regular updating of staff invoived in the preparation and
reviewing of financial information, and in the evaluation of the ICOFR, covering at least the
following: accounting principles, auditing, internal control and management of risks,

Within the system for annually assessing performance, personal development is encouraged, and any need for
training in the said subjects is detected and then reflected in the Annual Training Plan.

The Human Resources Department, in collaboration with each of the business units, is responsible for defining the
Grupo lLogista Annual Training Plan, in which the training needs of the staff, including those involved in the
generation and issue of financial information, and the internat control and management of risks, are identified.

In this way, training courses are given annually to those of the staff who are involved in the preparation and
reviewing of financiat information.

In order to ensure that the regulatory modifications and updating which are required to guarantee the reliability of
financial information are understood and applied, the departments involved in the preparation and supervision of
financial information keep themselves permanently informed of any such modification through different institution’s
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builetins.

Specifically, the Departments of intemal Audit and Internal Control, responsible far the preparation and supervision
of the ICOFR, attend training courses and seminars on subjects related to internal auditing, internat control, risks
management and regulatory compliance.

£.2 Evaluation of risks in financial reporting
Report on at least the following:

F.2.1. The main characteristics of the process of identifying risks, including those of error or fraud, in
relation to:

* Whether the process exists and has been documented.

The Grupo Logista has a specific internal control policy for the process of identifying risks in the Group. It is an
interactive and continuous process, and is incorporated into strategy and planning, and a procedure for the
management of risks. The policy and the procedure together define the basic principles and methods to be followed
in the Group, and they are reflected in the Grupo Logista map of risks.

The said map of risks is prepared from assessments of the impact and probability of each risk, made by those
responsible for the processes in all the Grupo Logista companies, who take into consideration variables both
quantitative and qualitative; there is a map of the Grupo Logista risks and there are also maps of specific risks for
each company and business unit.

in the model that has been introduced for risk management, the important internat and external risks of a financial
nature which can affect their activities have been identified and prioritised, using a pre-defined methodology.
Among these, the risks of fraud and risk of error in valuation and financial reporting are considered to be relevant
when categorising the financial risks.

= Whether the process covers all of the objectives of the financial assertions (existence and
occurrence; completeness; valuation; presentation, breakdown and comparability; and rights and
obligations}, whether it is updated, and if so, how often.

in the methodology used for the preparation of the risk and control matrices of the ICOFR, the Group has
established the identification and description of each of the risks in the processes that are relevant for the purposes
of the ICOFR, and their effect on the objectives of the financial assertions, which are to ensure that the
transactions, facts and events fulfil: existence and occurrence; completeness; valuation, presentation, breakdown
and comparability; and rights and obiligations.

The Grupo Logista has developped an instruction for maintenance of SCHF documentation, in which is reflected
that the review of these documentation must be a continuous and constantly updated process. Nevertheless, at
least annually, at the beginning of the fiscal year, process owners will do a review of the documentation in order to
guarantee a proper maintenance.

Those General Principles are explicitly formulated at the “Best practices of financial internal control” instruction,
mandatory for all the Grupo Logista and in the Accounting Manual for the Grupo Logista.

® The existence of a process of identification of the consolidation perimeter, taking into account,
among other aspects, the possible existence of complex corporate structures, instrumental or
special-purpose entities,

The Grupo Logista consolidation perimeter is determined monthly by the Financial Corporate Directorate, based on
the consolidation procedure called “accounting principles, vatuation rides and table of consolidated accounts”. This
procedure establishes the system to be followed to define the consolidation perimeter and to ensure that it is
correctly updated, so that nothing is omitted from the consolidated financial information.

in the applicable consolidated financial statements at the close of the financial year, in accordance with the

38



methods of inclusion applicable in each case, all those companies belonging to the Grupo Logista, joint businesses
and companies associated with it were included in accordance with the content of the IFRS. For that purpose, the
Consolidation Department has a detailed checklist of all the companies belonging to the Grupo Logista, and carries
out a specific, regular analysis of the consolidation criteria to be applied.

+  Whether the process takes account of the effects of other types of risk (operational, technological,
financial, legal, reputational, environmental, etc.) to the extent that they affect the financial
statements,

Ir its system of Risk Management, the Grupo Logista considers the following categories of risk, which may be
distinguished according o their nature or their consequences:

+ Operational risks are those directly associated with the execution of transactions and its due administration and
control including, among others, risks associated to information systems {technological risks), environment, human
resources, legal risks, compliance with industrial regulations, as well as penal risks. Financial risks are included in
this category, being understood as risks relating to the Grupo Logista exposure to price variations and variable
market, such as exchange rate, interest rate, elc..., credit risks derived from contract obligations, as well as tax
risks derived from the Group operations.

* Project risks are those associated with major changes taking place in Businesses, including new systems
implementations, changes of location to new warehouses and launch of new business or products initiatives, etc,
having, basically, alf of them in common, that at the end of the project the risk disappear.

« Strategic risks are those risks associated with developing activity in its specific sector, including exposure fo
regulatory changes and adaptation of strategy and business model to changes in its activity environment.

+ Emerging risks are those derived from the political and macroeconomic situation, which affect many companies
and organisations.

The Grupo Logista has also introduced a Model for the Prevention of Criminal Risks, covering the legal risks
considered in the Manual for the Prevention of Offences, and also a Crime prevention system in their ltalian
subsidiaries to comply with Legislative Decree 01/231.

¢« The Entity's Governing Body which supervises the process.

The Board of Directors of the Company, through its Audit and Control Committee, is the body ultimately responsible
for supervising the process of evaluating risks.

The Grupo Logista Risk Management process is led by the Chairman of the Grupo Logista Internal Control
Committee (the Corporate Financial Director), and is ¢co-ordinated and supervised by the Management of internal
Auditing.

F.3 Control activities
Indicate whether the entity has at least the folowing, and if so, indicate their main characteristics:

F.3.1. Procedures for the review and authorisation of the financial reporting and the description of the
ICOFR, for publication in the securities markets, identifying their managers, and documents describing the
flows of activities and controls (including those related to the risk of fraud) of the different types of
transaction which can materially affect the financial statements, including the procedure for accounts
closure and the specific review of the relevant opinions, estimates, valuations and projections.

The regulated financial information to be sent to the markets complies with the provisions of Royal Decree
13622007 of 18th October, and Circular 1/2008 of 30th January of the CNMV (Comision Nacional del Mercado de
Valores : National Securities Market Commission).

The Grupo Logista has a series of procedures for ciosing and reporiing, and instructions on Good Practices for
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internal Financial Control which define a series of manual and automatic checks that are used to verify financial
information, prevent fraud, and ensure compliance with current legislation and the generally accepted accounting
principles. There is also a formal procedure for accounts closure in which the financial information is prepared by
each economicffinancial manager of each subsidiary company or business, which is verified by the Consolidation
and Reporting Department, and approved, before publication, by Grupo Logista Corporate Management of
Finances. It is also checked by the external auditors. Finally, it is analysed by the Audit and Control Committee,
which reports to the Board of Directors, the lafter being the body which finally approves i and agrees to its
publication and dissemination to the markets, as explained in section F.1.1.

With regard to the specific review of the relevant opinions, estimates, valuations and projections, the Grupo Logista
has an Instruction about financial Provisions which describes the manner of dealing with each of the provisions
which the companies in the Grupo logista may make, and which is designed to reduce the risk of error in
processes related to speciic transactions.

In addition, every quarer, the Financial Directors and Controllers of the Grupo Logista Businesses and/or
Companies issue a certificate in which they declare that the Grupo Logista General Policy on Internal Control has
been complied with as regards reconciliation of key accounts and controls. Every year, they also issue a
representation letter in which they certify:

- That they were themselves responsible for preparing the financial statements reported at the close of the
financial year, and for any other breakdown produced,

-  That the financial statements were obtained from the Company's accounting records, which reflect all its
transactions and its assets and fiabilities.

- That the Company's accounting records correspond to what was produced by the consolidation tool in
accordance with the local accounting standards plus the adjustments necessary o align them with the
IFRS.

- That the concepts included in each account correspond to those in the Group's Accounting Plan and
Manual.

~  That the estimates and important decisions were made on the basis of the latest information available in
the business and are sufficiently well documented and justified.

- That responsibility is accepted for the reliability of the information contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company or subgroup (where applicable)at the close of the financial year.

Furthermore, and with regard to the documentation describing the flows of activities and controls of the different
types of transaction which can materially affect the financial statements, the Grupo Logista has prepared the
required documentation which describes the control activities which cover all the purposes of controlling financial
reporting for the Grupo Logista, by means of its corresponding ICOFR risk and control matrices, in accordance with
the recommendations made by the CNMV in its "Guia de Conirol Intemno sobre Ia informacion Financiera de las
Entidades Cotizadas” (Intemali control guide on the financial information of the listed companies).

The aforementioned risk and control matrices contain information about, among other matters, the activity of
control, the risk which has to be reduced, how often it has to be carried out and by whom, and the definition of
critical control and fraud controt,

F.3.2. Policies and procedures for the internal control of information systems ({including security of access,
management of changes, implementation of the same, operational continuity and segregation of functions)
which support the entity’s processes connected with the preparation and publication of financial
information.

The Grupo Logista uses information systems to keep an adequate record and control of its operations, so their
correct functioning is crucial for the Grupo Logista.

The Management of Information Systems within the Management of Corporate Resources is responsible for the
Grupo Logista information and telecommunications systems. Among its functions is that of providing the Information
Systems Depariment with a set of policies, procedures and technical and organisational means to ensure the
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completeness, availability, confidentiality and continuity of the corporate information, including the financial
information.

The regulations relating to the internat controt of the information systems are available to all the employees through
the Grupo Logista intranet, and consist of;

- The General Policy on Internal Control

- The strategic framework of the Information Systems

= The Protection of the information Systems

~  The Policy governing the Security of the information Systems
- The Security Procedure for the Information Systems

- The IS Standards Manual.

The General Policy on Internal Control establishes the guidelines and directives relating to the mmanagement of
the risks associated with the management and use of information systems and, specifically, in areas such as the
control of access, the management of changes, the implementation of the same, operational continuity and the
segregation of functions. This General Policy on internal Control is complemented by the pertinent internal
regutations established for that purpose.

The control of access is based on the setting-up of mechanisms of identification and authentication, on the
establishment of profiles based on the minimum and indispensable requirements of the workstations, and on the
segregation of functions through the definition of the incompatibilities existing between the functions carried out by
the business areas and the resulting complementary activities.

The creation, modification or revocation of users or profiles is subject to an authorisation procedure controlled by
the managers concerned.

Changes in the information systems and their subsequent aperation are regulated by an internaf policy which
defines the turning-points, the requirements and the bodies governing the life span of the changes, with the aim of
ensuring continuity in the Grupo Logista operations and the refiability and confidentiality of the changes made.

The availability of the information systems and the continuance of their functioning following an incident are
guaranteed by a recovery plan for use in cases of corporate disaster. The plan establishes levels of criticality for
each of the information systems, based on the risk associated with it, and on the maximum times for recovery
defined by the Grupo Logista. To prepare for the eventuality of an incident, procedures have been designed and
tested to identify the situations, in which the plan should be implemented, the scale of operation of each particular
manager, and the method of implementing the plan. There is an annual calendar of tests of the plan for recovery
from disasters affecting the Grupo Logista information systems,

The Grupo Logista has designed and implemented a matrix for the segregation of functions which segments the
privileges of the users according to the minimum resources and information that are indispensable for the correct
performance of the tasks associated with the workstations in the users’ areas. In addition, and to complement the
matrix for the segregation of functions, a set of measures andfor activities complementary to the segmentation of
privileges has been established, such as the inciusion in the model of a group of users with greater privileges, with
the aim, after an express request and while keeping track of the operations carried out, of supporting the operations
of the corresponding users’ area.

F.3.3. Policies and procedures of internal control designed to supervise the management of activities
subcontracted to third parties, and of those aspects of evaluation, calculation or valuation entrusted to
independent experts, and which can materially affect the financial statements,

For the current financial year, none of the processes resulting in the presentation of financial information with a
material impact on the individual or consolidated financial statements of the Grupo Logista have been externalised,
so the Grupo Logista has not required reports about the effectiveness of the controls established by entities outside
the Grupo Logista, other than the requirements of the policies for contracting third parties which the Grupo Logista
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uses in its Purchasing Policy.

However, as the result of the valuations is not significant, the Grupo Logista does repeatedly use reports of
independent experts for the valuation of certain commitments to employees’ benefits, and for the valuations of
certain properties.

The Corporate Management of Finances monitors the work of those experts in order to check: competence,
training, accreditation and independence, the validity of the data and methods used, and the reasonableness of the
hypotheses used, i applicable.

F.4 Information and communication
Indicate whether the entity has at least the following, and if it has, indicate their main characteristics:

F.4.1. A specific function to define the accounting policies and to keep them up-to-date (an area or
department of accounting policies) and to resolve doubts or conflicts arising from their interpretation,
while maintaining fluid communication with those responsible for the operations in the organisation, and a
manual of accounting policies which is updated and communicated to the units through which the entity
operates.

The functions of the Management of Consolidation and Reporting, belonging to the Finance Corporate Directorate,
are to define and communicate the accounting poficies and keep them up-to-date, and it also has to answer
enquiries about the accounting standards and their interpretation.

The Management of Consolidation and Reporting keeps abreast of changes in the accounting standards by means
of communications with the external advisors and through the training which they themselves receive. These
changes have to be analysed, and when they are applicable, the Accounting Policies defined in the accounting
manual have to be updated.

The issue of all types of accounting standards is centralised in the Finance Corporate Directorate through their
Management of Consolidation and Reporting department, which will be responsible for following and, if appropriate,
applying, the modifications published in the regulations.

The Grupo Logista has a Manual of Accounting Policies, the purpose of which is o establish and describe the
accounting policies and the Accounts Plan to which the financial information of all the Grupo Logista companies,
the management information and the forrnation and formulation of the Grupo Logista Individual and Consolidated
Annual Accounts must mandatorily be submitted.

in this way, it is intended to ensure that the content of the financial information and of the Individual and
Consolidated Annual Accounts of the Grupo Logista are homogenous, consistent, accurate and harmonised, and
that they are prepared on time.

F.4.2. Mechanisms for collecting and preparing financial information in homogenous formats, for
appiication and use by all the units in the entity or the Group, and which support the principal financial
statements and the notes, and the information given ahout the ICOFR.

The Grupo Logista main ERP tool is the 'SAP’, which is used to record, at individual level, the accounfing
transactions from which financial information is obtained for the subsidiaries of the Grupo Logista. All the
commpanies which constitute the Grupo Logista work in accordance with the same plan of accounts, which is
homogenous and common to the whole Grupo Logista, contained in the Accounting Manual, and updated
continuously.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared centrally from the financial statements which are reported in the
established format by each of the Grupo Logista subsidiaries. To do that, the Grupo Logista has HFM consolidation
software, which the Grupo Logista subsidiaries and companies use for reporting, and which enables the data to be
aggregated, homogenised and analysed at individual and consolidated levels. In the consolidation process there
are checks to ensure the correciness of the conselidated financial statements.
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In addition, the Consolidation and Reporting Department has a series of intemal guidelines — such as the
procedures for consolidation, for inter-company fransactions and for reporiing, which are applicable to all the
companies which constitute the Grupo Logista — which establish the mechanisms for collecting and preparing
financial information in homogenous formats, the general rules, rules for the inserfion of entries, for the approval of
manual entries, opinions and estimates (including valuations and relevant projections) and a system for
communicating financial information to the senior management and ensuring the homogeneity of the process of
drawing up financial information.

F.5 Supervision of the functioning of the system
Report on at least the following, indicating their main characteristics:

F.5.1. The supervisory activities of the ICOFR carried out by the Auditing Committee, and whether the entity
has an internal auditing function which has among its responsibilities that of supporting the Committee in
its work of supervising the system of internal control, including the ICOFR. Also report on the scope of the
evaluation of the ICOFR that was carried out during the financial year, and on the procedure by which the
person responsible for carrying out the evaluation communicates its results, on whether the entity has a
pian of action which details any necessary corrective measures, and on whether its impact on the financial
reporting has been considered.

Given that the current financial year is the Grupo Logista first complete year as a quoted entity, the Grupo Logista
has drawn up a plan of action to update its mechanisms for the intemat control of financial reporting using the
recommendations in the CNMV's Circular on the subject of the ICOFR. In this regard, through the Management of
Internal Auditing, the Audit and Control Committee has been informed of the degree of fulfitment of the said plan of
action. In addition, the Audit and Control Committee has reviewed the report of the External Auditor's opinion on
this subject, and the information about the ICOFR which is included in the Annual Report on Corporate
Governance.

The Grupo Logista has a Corporate Internal Auditing Department, with functional dependence on the Chairman of
the Audit and Control.

in its Internal Audit Charter, approved by the Board through its Audit and Control Committee, the purpose, authority
and responsibility of the aclivity of Internal Auditing, and its position within the organisation are defined. Among the
responsibilities of the said function are the following (among others):

¢ To evaluate whether the processes, activities and aims of internal control which constitute the Grupo
Logista System of Internal Control are adequate, effective and efficient, and guarantee the Group, the
Audit and Controt Committee, and the Board of Directors of the Grupo Logista the effective supervision of
the system of managernent and control of risks, if necessary making recommendations, either directly or
through the Grupo Logista Management of Internal Control, for its strengthening:

¢ In particutar, to ensure that there is adequate supervision of the system of internal control of financial
reporting (ICOFR).

With regard to planning, communication with the Audit and Control Committee, and implementation of corrective
measures, the following responsibilities are defined in the Internal Audit Charter:

» In an open dialogue with the Management and the Audit and Control Committee, the drawing-up of an
Annual Plan for Internal Auditing based on an appropriate method of risk management, and, if appropriate,
oh the needs expressed by the Businesses or Corporate Directorates. The work involved in the Annual
Plan must be mainly orientated towards the GROUP's important risks. The Plan must envisage work for
special, ad hoc requirements during the year. The Annual Plan, and any updatings of the Plan, wilt be sent
to the Audit and Control Committee for its approval;

« The performance of the work described in the approved Auditing Plan, and the activities of verification,
inspection and review described in the Internal Auditing Plan;

s The preparation and despatch of regular (at least gquarterly) summary reports to the Audit and Control
Commitiee, on the results of the aclivity of Internal Auditing in fulfiment of the Annual Plan for Internal
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Auditing, or of other actions not included in the Plan, and on the monitoring by the Businesses and the
Corporate Directorates or the Senior Management of the recommendations made:

«  Collaboration with the Businesses and/or Corporate Directorates in the definition of the plans of action to
comply with their recommendations, and supervision of their correct starting-up and implementation;

In view of the special circumstances of the current financial year, which is the first complete year as a quoted
company, the scope of the evaluation of the ICOFR by the Internal Audit Department was the following:

¢ The drawing-up of a diagnosis of the degree of internal contro! of financial reporting existing in the Grupo
Logista in relation to the ‘Guide 1o the preparation of reports on the management of quoted entities issued
by the CNMV', and the establishment of a plan of action with the pertinent corrective measures to align the
control systems with the aforementioned Guide.

o The regular monitoring of the degree of fulfilment of the said plan of action and its communication o the
Audit and Control Committee by means of the regular activity reports of the Internaf Audit Department.

« The reviewing of the modeis for the internal control of financial reporting, and in particular, the
identification of financial risks and the adequate design of internal controls to reduce them.

« The beginning of the fieldwork in one of the material processes for the ICOFR, after the approval by the
Audit and Control Committee of that activity as a complement to the Auditing Plan for the financial year.

F.5.2. Whether the entity has a discussion procedure by which the accounts auditor (in accordance with
what is established in the NTA), the function of internal auditing and other experts can inform the senior
management or the entity’s administrators of the significant weaknesses in internal contro! that were
identified during the annual review of the accounts or during any other processes that were entrusted to
them. And also, whether the entity has a plan of action aimed at correcting the weaknesses observed or
mitigating their affect.

The Audit and Control Committee meets at least quarterly with the aim of obtaining and analysing the necessary
information in order to fulfil the responsibilities entrusted to it by the Board of Directors. There is a plan of the
subjects which have to be dealt with in the agendas of the Auditing Committees, including the sessions attended by
the Management of Internal Auditing, the Accounts Auditor, and fiscal experts or other experts when this is
considered necessary. In this regard:

« The external auditors are present at, and report on, alf the sessions of the Committee in which regulated
financial information and accounts formulations are analysed. In those sessions, the external auditor
reports to the Committee on important Auditing and Accounting matters, and on the recommendations
identified as those which would enable the internal control system o improve. He also presents the
planning of the Accounts Auditing, its methodology, legislative innovations, and any other information
considered to be useful.

e The Management of Internal Auditing has full access to the Audit Committee, attending its sessions as a
guest, and issuing information, at least weekly, both about detected significant weaknesses in internal
control and about the state of the action plans arising out of the audits with a view to correcting the
detected weaknesses in internal control.

In addition, the Chairman of the Audit and Control Committee has private discussions with the Management of
Internal Auditing and with the External Auditor, in order to obtain information about the scope of their work, its
resuits and the content of their reports, and any other information considered to be useful.

F_6 Other relevant information

Not applicable.
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F.7 The External Auditor's report
Report on:

F.7.1. Whether the information about the ICOFR that has been sent to the markets was subject to review by
the external auditor, in which case the entity should include the corresponding report as an annexe. If it
was not reviewed, the entity should explain the reasons for this.

The Grupo Logista has submitted for review by the external auditor the information about the ICOFR that was sent
to the markets for financial year 2015. The scope of the auditor's review procedures was in accordance with
Circular E14/2013 of 10th July, 2013, of the Institufo de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de Espafia, in which the
‘Guide to Action and Model Auditor's Report relating to the system of internal Control of Financial Reporting
(ICOFR) in quoted entities’, which is attached as an annexe, was published.

G DEGREE TO WHICH THE GOOD GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE
BEEN FOLLOWED

indicate the degree of conformance of the company to the recommendations of the Unified Good
Governance Code.

If any recommendation is not complied with or complied in part by the Company, a detailed explanation of
the reasons should be included, providing shareholders, investors and the market in general with sufficient
information to assess the company’s course of action. General explanations will not be acceptable.

1. The By-Laws of listed companies do not limit the maximum number of votes that can be cast by a single
shareholder, or impose other obstacles to the takeover of the company by means of the acquisition of its shares on
the market.

See sections: A.10,B.1, B2, C.1.23 and C.1.24.
Complies

2. When both the parent company and a company controlled by it are listed companies, they both provide detailed
public disclosure on:

a) Their respective areas of activity, and any business dealings between them as well as between the controlled
listed company and other companies belonging to the Group;

b) The mechanisms in place to resolve any conflicts of interest that may arise.
See sections: D.4 and D.7
Not applicabie

3. Even if not expressly required under applicable commercial Laws, fransactions involving a structural change of
the company and, in particular, the following, are submitted o the shareholders at the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval:

a} The transformation of listed companies into holding companies through “subsidiarization” or realiocating core
activities to controlled entities that were previously carried out by the company itself, even if the latter retains full
ownership of the former;

b) The acquisition or disposal of key operating assefs, whan it involves an actual change in the corporate purpose;
¢} Transactions whose effect is tantamount to the liquidation of the Company.
See section: B.6

Complies

4. Detailed proposals of the resolutions fo be adopted at the General Meeting of Shareholders, including the
information to which recommendation 27 refers, are made public at the time of publication of the notice of the
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General Meeting of Shareholders.
Complies

5. Matters that are substantially independent are voted on separately at the General Meeting of Shareholders, in
order to allow the shareholders to express their voting preferences separately. This rule applies, in particular:

a) To the appointment or ratification of Directors, issues which shall be voted on individually;

b} In the event of amendments of the Articles of Association, to each article or group of articles that is substantially
independent of one anocther.

Complies

8. Companies allow spiit votes so financial intermediaries who are recorded as having shareholder status but act for
different clients can divide their votes in accordance with the instructions given by such clients.

Complies

7. The Board performs its duties with a unity of purpose and independent judgment, affording equal treatment to all
shareholders in furtherance of the corporate interests, which shall be understood to mean the optimization, in a
sustained fashion, of the financial value of the Company.,

It likewise ensures that in its dealings with stakeholders, the Company abides by the laws and regulations, fulfils its
obligations and contracts in good faith, respects the customs and good practices of the industries and territories in
which it operates and upholds any other social responsibility standards fo which it has voluntarily adhered.

Complies

8. The Board assumes responsibility, as its core mission, for approving the company's strategy and the
organization required to put it into practice, and to supervise and control that Management meets the goals set
while pursuing the company's inferest and corporate purpose. As such, the Board in plenary session reserves for
itself the right to approve;

a) The company’s policies and general lines of strategy, and in padicular:

i} The strategic or business Plan as well as the management goals and annual budgets:
i} The investment and financing policy;

iy The desigh of the structure of the corporate Group;

iv} The corporate governance policy,

v} The corporate social responsibility policy;

vi) The policy for compensation and assessment of the performance of senior managers;

vii) The risk controf and management policy, as well as the periodic monitoring of internal information and control
systems.

viii} The dividend policy and the policy regarding treasury stock and, especially, the limiis thereto.
See sections: C.1.14 and E.2
b) The following decisions:

i) At the proposal of the chief executive of the Company, the appointment and, if applicable, removal of senior
managers, as well as their severance packages.

i} The compensation of Directors and, in the case of executive directors, the additional compensation to be paid for
their executive duties and other terms of their contracts.

fi) The financial information that the Company must periodically disclose publicly due to its status as listed
company.
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iv} Investments or fransactions of all kinds which are strategic in nature due to the large amount or special
characteristics thereof, unless approval thereof falls upon the shareholders at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

v} The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose entities or entities registered in countries or territories
regarded as tax havens, as well as any other transactions or operations of a similar nature whose complexity might
impair the transparency of the Group.

¢} Transactions made by the company with Directors, with significant shareholders or shareholders with Board
representation, or with other persons related thereto (“Related-Party Transactions™).

However, Board authorization need not be required in connection with Related-Party Transactions that
simultaneously meet the foliowing three conditions:

1* They are governed by standard-form agreemsnts applied on an across-the-board basis to a large number of
clients;

2 They are conducted at prices or rates generally set by the party acting as supplier of the goods or services in
question;

3™ The amount thereof is not higher than 1% of the annual revenues of the Company.

It is recommended that Related-Parly Transactions be approved by the Board after favourable report of the
Audit and Control Committee or, where appropriate, such other commitiee handling the same function; and that
the Directors affected thereby should neither exercise nor delegate their votes, and should be absent from the
meeting room while the Board deliberates and votes on the transaction.

It is recommended that the powers granted herein to the Board are conferred without the power of delegation,
except for those mentioned under b) and c) above, which may, for urgent reasons, be adopted by the Executive
Commitiee subject to subsequent ratification by the Board in plenary session.

See sections: D1 and D6
Complies

9. In order to operate effectively and in a participatory manner, the Board ideally is comprised of no less than five
and no more than fifteen members.

See section: C.1.2
Complies

10. External proprietary and independent directors are a vast majority on the Board and the number of executive
Directors is the minimum necessary number, bearing in mind the complexity of the corporate Group and the
percentage interest held by the executive Directors in the company’s share capital.

See sections: A.3 and C.1.3.
Complies

11. Among external directors, the relation between the number of proprietary directors and independent directors
reflects the proportion existing between the share capital of the company represented by proprietary directors and
the rest of s capital.

This strict proportionality standard can be relaxed so that the weight of proprietary directors is greater than would
correspond to the total percentage of the share capital that they represent:

1* In large cap companies, where few or no equity stakes attain the legal threshold as significant, but there are
shareholders holding interests with & high absolute value.

2" In case of companies with a plurality of shareholders represented on the Board but not otherwise related.
See sections: A2, A3and C.1.3

Explain
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Imperial Tobacco Group, indirect holder of 70% of the share capital of the Company, is represented at the Board by
four directors, in accordance with the Framework Agreement dated 12 June 2014, that governs the relations
between both Companies. The Framework Agreement establishes the following, regarding the Board composition:

i) the number of members of the Board may not be less than ten nor greater than the maximum statutory limit of
fifieen,

i} the maximum number of Executive directors will be two; and

fii) the number of Proprietary Directors representing Imperial Tobacco on the Company’s Board of Directors will not
exceed the number of independent Directors by more than two, providing that other proprietary directors have not
been appointed to represent shareholders other than Imperial Tobacco. Nevertheless, if there are proprietary
directors on the Company Board other than the ones appointed by Imperial Tobacco, Imperial Tobacco reserves
the right to appoint new directors, so that the number of the latter comprises the absolute majority of the members
of the Board.

12. The number of independent directors represents at least one-third of the total number of directors.
See section: C.1.3
Complies

13. The status of each direcior is explained by the Board at the General Meeting of Shareholders at which the
shareholders are {o make or ratify their appointment and that such status is confirmad or reviewed, as the case may
be, annually in the Annuat Corporate Governance Report, after verification by the appointmenis commitiee. Said
report also discloses the reasons for the appointment of proprietary directors at the proposal of shareholders
controlling less than 5% of the share capital, as well as the reasons for not having accommodated formal petitions,
if any, for presence on the Board from shareholders whose equity stake is equal to or greater than that of others at
whose proposal proprietary directors have been appointed.

See sections: C1.3and C. 1.8
Complies

14, Where female directors are few or non-existent, the appointments commitiee takes steps to ensure that, when
new vacancies are filled;

a) Recruitment processes do not have an implied bias that hinders the recruitment of female directors;

b} The company deliberately seeks women with the target professional profile and includes them among the
potential candidates.

See sections: C1.2,C14,C1.5,C16,C22andC24
Complies

15. The Chairman, being responsible for the effective running of the Board, ensures that Directors receive adequate
information in advance of Board meetings; promotes debate and the active involvement of Directors during Board
meetings; safeguards their rights to freely take a position and express their opinion; and, working with the chairmen
of the appropriate committees, organizes and coordinales regular assessmenis of the Board and, where
appropriate, of the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer,

See sections: C.1.19 and C.1.41
Complies

16. Where the Chairman of the Board is also the chief executive officer, one of the independent Direclors is
authorized to request the calling of a Board meeting or the inclusion of new items on the agenda; to coordinate and
echo the concerns of external Directors; and to lead the Board's assessment of the Chairman.

See section: C.1.22

Not applicable
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17. The Secretary of the Board takes particular care to ensure that the Board's actions:

a) Adhere to the letter and the spirit of Laws and their implementing regulations, including those approved by the
regulatory authorities;

b) Comply with the Articles of Association and the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board
of Directors” Regulations and other regulations of the company;

¢} Are informed by those good governance recommendations included in this Unified Code as the company has
subscribed to.

And, in order to safeguard the independence, impartiality and professionalism of the Secretary, histher appointment
and removai are reported by the Appointments Committee and approved by the Board in plenary sessicn: and that
such appointment and removal procedures are set forth in the Board's Regulations.

See section: C.1.34
Complies

18. The Board meets with the frequency required to perform its duties effectively, in accordance with the calendar
and agendas set at the beginning of the fiscal year, and that each Director is entified to propose items of the
agenda that were not originaily included therein,

See section: C.1.29
Complies

19. Direclors’ absences are limited to unavoidable cases and quantified in the Annual Corporate Governance
Report. And when there is no choice but to grant a proxy, it is granted with instructions.

See sections: C.1.28
Complies

20. Where Directors or the Secretary express concerns about a proposal or, in the case of the Directors, regarding
the running of the company, and such concerns have not been resolved at a Board meeting, such concerns are
recorded in the minutes at the request of the person expressing them.

Complies

21. The Board in plenary session assesses the following on a yearly basis:
a} The quality and efficiency of the running of the Board;

b) On the basis of the report submitted by the Appointments Committee, the performance of their duties by the
Chairman of the Board and by the chief executive officer;

¢} The running of its Committees, on the basis of the report they submit;
See sections: C.1.19 and C.1.20
Explain

During this fiscal year, the Board has not celebrated any session to evaluate its activity.

22. All directors are able to exercise the right to request any additional information they require on matters within
the Board's competence. Unless the Articles of Association or the Board's Regulations provide otherwise, such
requests are addressed to the Chairman or the Secretary of the Board.

See section: C.1.41
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Complies

23. Alt Directors are entitfed to call on the company for the advice they need to carry out their dufies. The company
provides suitable channels for the exercise of this right, which, in special circumstances, may include externai
advice at the company’s expense.

See section: C.1.40
Complies

24. Companies organize induction programs for new Directors fo rapidly and adequately acquaint them with the
Company and its corporate governance rules. Directors are also offered refresher training programs when
circumsiances so advise.

Explain

The Board Regulations {(Art. 22.3) state that the Company will provide necessary support to new Directors so that
these may acquire swift and sufficient knowledge on the company as well as its corporate governance rules,
Likewise, the Company may establish, if necessary, help programmes for Directors.

Until now, the Company has not established any help programme for Directors.

2b. Companies require that Directors devote sufficient time and effort to perform their duties effectively, and, as
such;

a) Directors inform the Appointments Committee of their other professional duties, in case they might detract from
the necessary dedication;

b} Companies lay down rules about the number of boards on which their Directors may sit.
See sections: C.1.12, C.1.13 and C.1.17
Complies

26. The proposal for the appointment or re-election of Directors that the Board submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders, as well as their interim appointment through the co-opting system, are approved by the Board:

a} On the proposal of the Appointments Committee, as regards independent Directors;
b) After report of the Appointments Committee, as regards the remaining Directors.
See section: C.1.3

Complies

27. Companies post the following information regarding Direclors on their websites, and keep such information
updated:

a) Professional and biegraphical profile;
b) Other Boards of Directors of listed or unlisted companies on which they sit;

c) Indication of the Director's category, stating, as regards proprietary Directors, the shareholder they represent or
to whom they are related.

d) Date of their first and subsequent appointments as a company Director; and
&) Shares held in the company and options thereon held by them.
Complies

28. Propristary Directors tender their resignation when the shareholder they represent sells its entire shareholding
interest. The appropriate number of them does likewise when such shareholder reduces its interest 1o a level that
requires the reduction of the number of its proprietary Direclors.
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See sections: A2 ,A3and C.1.2
Complies

29. The Board of Directors does not propose the removal of any independent Director prior o the expiration of the
term, set in the Articles of Association, for which he/she was appointed, except where good cause is found by the
Board upon a prior report of the Appointments Committee. In particular, good cause shall be deemed to exist
whenever the Director has failed to perform the duties inherent in his /her position or comes under any of the
circumstances leading him/her to no longer being independent, pursuant to the provisions of Order EEC/461/2013.

The removal of independent Directors may alsc be proposed as a result of Tender Offers, mergers or other similar
corporate transactions that entail a change in the share capital structure of the company, when such changes in the
structure of the Board follow from the proportionality standard mentioned in Recommendation 11.

See sections: C.1.2,C.1.8,C.1.18 and C.1.27
Complies

30. Companies establish rules obliging Directors to report and, if appropriate, fo resign in those instances as a
result of which the credit and reputation of the company might be damaged and, in particular, they require that such
directors report to the Board any criminal charges brought against them, and the progress of any subsequent
proceedings.

If a Director is indicted or tred for any of the crimes described in Section 213 of the Act on Capital Companies, the
Board examines the matter as soon as practicable and, in view of the particular circumstances thereof, decides
whether or not it is appropriate for the Director 1o continue to hold office. And the Board provides a substantiated
account thereof in the Annual Corporate Govemance Report,

See sections: C.1.42 and C.1.43
Complies

31. All Directors clearly express their opposition when they feel that any proposed resolution submitted to the Board
might be contrary io the best interests of the company. And in particular, independent directors and the other
directors not affected by the potential conflict of interest do likewise in the case of decisions that could be
detrimental to the shareholders lacking Board representation.

Where the Board adepts material or reiterated resolutions about which a Director has expressed serious
reservations, such director draws the pertinent conclusion and if he/she chooses to resign, sets out the reasons in
the letter referred to in the next Recommendation.

This Recommaendation also applies o the Secretary of the Board, even if hefshe is not a Director.
Complies

32. Directors who give up their place before their tenure expires, through resignation or otherwise, explain the
reasons in a letter sent to all members of the Board. Without prejudice {o such withdrawal being commeunicated as a
relevant fact, the reason for the withdrawal is explained in the Annual Corporate Governance Report.

See section: C.1.9
Complies

33. Remuneration paid by means of delivery of shares in the company or companies that are members of the
Group, share options or instruments indexed to the price of the shares, and variable compensation linked to the
company’s performance or pension schemes is confined to executive directors.

This recommendation shall not apply to the delivery of shares when such delivery is subiect o the condition that the
Directors hold the shares until they cease to hold office as diractors.

Complies

34. The remuneration of external Directors is such as is necessary to compensate them for the dedication,
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qualifications and responsibility required by their position, but is not so high as to jeopardize their independence.
Complies

35. The compensation linked io company results takes into account any qualifications included in the external
auditor's report that reduce such earmnings.

Explain

The Company does not have any internal rule in that sense, but in accordance with article 46.4 of the Board
Regulations, the Board of Directors will ensure accounts are prepared in such a way that there is no place for
exceptions on the auditor's behalf.

36. In the case of variable compensation, compensation policies include limits and technical safeguards o ensure
that such compensation reflects the professional performance of the beneficiaries thereof and not simply the
general performance of the markets or of the industry in which the company does business or circumstances of this
Kind.

Complies

37. Where there is an Executive Commitiee {hereinafter, the “Executive Commitiee”), the breakdown of its
members by director category is simitar to that of the Board, and is secretary is the Secretary of the Board.

See sections; C.2.1and C.2.6
Not applicable

38. The Board is always kept informed of the matters dealt with and the resolutions adopted by the Executive
Commiitee, and all members of the Board receive a copy of the minutes of the meetings of the Executive
Committee.

Not applicable

39. In addition to the Audit Committee mandatory under the Stock Exchange Act, the Board of Directors forms a
single Appointments and Remuneration Commiitee, or an Appointments Commitiee and a Remuneration
Committee.

The rules governing the make-up and operation of the Audit Commitiee and the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee or committees are set forth in the Board's Regulations, and include the following:

a) The Board appoints the members of such Committees, taking into account the knowledge, qualifications and
experience of the Directors and the responsibilities of each Committee, discusses its proposals and reports, and
receives a report, at the firsi meeting of the full Board foliowing the meetings of such commitiees, on their activities
and the work.

b) These Committees are formed exclusively of external Directors and have a minimum of three members. The
foregoing s without prejudice io the attendance of executive Directors or senior managers, when expressiy
resolved by the members of the Committes.

¢} The Chairmen of the Committee are independent Directors.
d) They may receive external advice, whenever they feel this is necessary for the discharge of their duties.
e) Minutes are prepared of their meetings, and a copy sent to all Board members.
See sections: C.2.1and C.2.4
Complies

40. Supervising compliance with internal codes of conduct and corporate governance rules is entrusted fo the Audit
Committee, the Appointments Committee or, if they exist separately, to the Compliance or Corporate Governance
Committee.

See sections: C.2.3and C.2.4
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Complies

41. The members of the Audit Commitiee and, particuiarly, the Chairman thereof, are appointed taking into account
their knowledge and experience in accounting, auditing or risk management matters.

Complies

42. Listed companies have an internal audit function which, under the supervision of the Audit Committee, ensures
the smooth operation of the information and internal control systems.

See section: C.2.3
Complies

43. The head of internal audit submits to the Audit Committee his/her annual work plan; reports to it directly on any
issues arising in the execution of such plan; and submits an activities report to it at the end of each fiscal year.

Complies
44. Risk control and management policy specifies at least:

a) The different types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal, reputational, efc.) the company is exposed
to, including contingent liabilities and other off-batance sheet risks among financial or economic risks.

b) The determination of the risk level the company sees as acceptable;
¢} Measures in place designed to mitigate the impact of the risks identified, should they materialize;

d) The intemal reporting and control systems to be used to monitor and manage the above risks, including
contingent liabilities and off-balance sheet risks.

See section: E

Complies
45. It is incumbent on the Audit Committee:
1% With respect to the internal control and reporting systems:

a) To periodically review internal control and risk management systems so main risks are properly identified,
managed and disclosed.

b) To ensure the independence and efficacy of the internal audit function; propose the selection, appointment,
reappointment and removal of the head of the internal audit service; propose the depariment's budget; receive
regular reporls on its activities, and verify that senior management takes into account the findings and
recommendations of its reporis.

c) To establish and supervise a mechanism whereby staff can report, confidentially and, if appropriate,
anonymously, potentially significant irregularities within the company that they detect, in particular financial or
accounting irregularities.

2™ With respect to the externat auditor:

ay To receive regular information from the external auditor on the audit plan and the results of the implementation
thereof, and check that senior management takes its recommendations into account.

b) To monitor the independence of the external auditor, to which end:

B The company reports a change of auditor fo the CNMV as a relevant fact, accompanied by a statement of any
disagreements with the oufgoing auditor and the reasons for the same.

i} In the event of resignation of the external auditor, the Commitiee investigates the circumstances that may have
given rise thereto.

See sections: C.1.36, 2.3, C24andE2
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Complies

46, The Audit Committee may cause any employee or officer of the company fo appear before it, and even order
their appearance without the presence of any other manager.

Complies

47. The Audit Committee reports to the Board, prior to the passing thereby of the relevant resolutions, on the
following matters specified in Recommendation 8:

a) The financial information that the Company must periodically make public due fo its status as a listed company.
The Committee should ensure that interim financial statements are prepared under the same accounting standards
as the annual financial statements and, to this end, consider whether a limited review by the external auditor is
appropriate,

b) The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose enfities or entities registered in countries or ferritories
considered tax havens, and any other transactions or operations of a comparable nature whose complexity might impair
the transparency of the group.

€) Related-party transactions, unless such prior reporting duty has been assigned to ancther supervision and
control Committee.

See sections; C.2.3and C.24
Complies

48. The Board of Directors endeavours to present the annual accounis to the General Meeting of Shareholders
without reservations or qualifications in the auditor's report and, in the exceptional cases where they do exist, both
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the auditors give a clear account fo the shareholders of the content and
scope of such reservations or qualifications.

See section: C.1.38
Complies

49. The majority of the members of the Appointments Commitiee —or of the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee, if one and the same— are independent direciors.

See section: C.2.1
Explain
See Recommendation 12.

50. The Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee has the following duties, in addition to those stated in the
earlier Recommendations:

a) To assess the qualifications, knowledge and experience needed in the Board, fo define, as a consequence, the
duties and qualifications required of the candidates to fill each vacancy, and decide the time and dedication
necessary for them to properly perform their duties.

b} To examine or organize, in the manner it deems appropriate, the succession of the Chairman and the chief
executive officer, and if appropriate, make proposals to the Board for such succession o take place in an orderly
and well-planned manner.

¢} To report on senior manager appoiniments and removals that the chief executive officer proposes to the Board.
d} To report to the Board on the gender diversity issues discussed in Recommendation 14 of this Code.
See section: C.2.4

Complies

51. The Appointments Committee consults with the Company’s Chairman and chief executive officer, espedially on

54



matters relating to executive Directors.

And that any Director may request that the Appointments Committee consider possible candidates to fill vacancies
for the position of Director, if it finds them suitably qualified.

Complies

52. The Remuneration Commitiee is responsible for the following duties, in addition to those set forth in the earlier
recommendations:

a} To propose to the Board of Directors:
i} The compensation policy for Directors and senior managers;
iy The individual compensation of executive Directors and other terms of their contracts.
i} The basic terms and conditions of the contracts with senior managers.
b) To ensure compliance with the compensation policy set by the company.
See sections: C.2.4
Complies

53. The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company,
especially on matters relating to executive Directors and senior managers.

Complies

H OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

1. if there is any other relevant aspect as regards corporate governance in the company or in group entities that has
not been covered in this Report, but is necessary fo include to provide more comprehensive and well grounded
information on the corporate governance structure and practices in your entity or its group, detail them briefly.

2. In this section, any other information, clarification or nuance may be included that is related to the previous
sections of the report, to the extent that they are relevant and not reiterative.

In particular, indicate if the company is subject to different legislation than the Spanish legislation in corporate
governance matters and, where appropriate, include the information that the company is obligated to provide which
is different to that required in this report.

3. The company may also indicate if it has voluntarily signed up to other international industry-wide or any other
codes of ethical principles or best practices. Where applicable, the code in question will be identified along with the
date of signing.

This Annual Corporate Governance Report was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
of 27 October 2015.

Indicate whether any Directors voted against or abstained in connection with the approval of this Report.

NO
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Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version
prevails.

AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE "INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICFR)' OF COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION
INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ON 30 SEPTEMBER
2015

To the Directors of
Compatiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A.:

As requested by the Board of Directors of Compaiifa de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A.
(“the Entity”) and in accordance with our proposal-letter of 15 September 2015, we have applied
certain procedures to the accompanying “Information relating to the ICFR” of Compaifiia de
Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. for the fiscal year ended on 30 September 2015, which
summarises the internal control procedures of the Entity in relation to its annual financial reporting.

The Board of Directors is responsible for adopting the appropriate measures in order to reasonably
guarantee the implementation, maintenance and supervision of an adequate internal control system and
for making improvements to that system and for preparing and establishing the content of the
accompanying information relating to the ICFR system included in section F) of the accompanying
Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR).

It should be noted in this regard, irrespective of the quality of the design and operational effectiveness
of the internal control system adopted by the Entity in relation to its annual financial reporting, that the
system can only permit reasonable, but not absolute, assurance in connection with the objectives
pursued, due to the limitations inherent to any internal control system.

In the course of our audit work on the financial statements and pursuant to Technical Auditing
Standards, the sole purpose of our assessment of the internal control of the Entity was to enable us to
establish the scope, nature and timing of the audit procedures to be applied to the Entity's financial
statements. Therefore, our assessment of internal control performed for the purposes of the
aforementioned audit of financial statements was not sufficiently extensive to enable us to express a
specific opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over the regulated annual financial
reporting,

For the purpose of issuing this report, we applied exclusively the specific procedures described below
and indicated in the Guidelines on the Auditors’ Report on the Information relating to the System of
Internal Control over Financial Reporting of Listed Companies, published by the Spanish National
Securities Market Commission on its website, which establishes the work to be performed, the
minimum scope thereof and the content of this repert. Since the work resulting from such procedures
has, in any case, a reduced scope that is significantly less extensive than that of an audit or a review of
the internal control system, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness thereof, or on its design
or operating effectiveness, in relation to the Entity's annual financial reporting for the fiscal year ended
on 30 September 2015 described in the accompanying information on the ICFR system. Therefore,
had we applied procedures additional to those established in the aforementioned Guidelines or
performed an audit or a review of the internal control over the regulated annual financial reporting,
other matters or aspects might have been disclosed which would have been reported to you.
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Also, since this special engagement does not constitute an audit of financial statements and is not
subject to the Consolidated Spanish Audit Law, approved by Legislative Royal Decree 1/2011, of 1
July, we do not express an audit opinion in the terms provided for in that Law.

The procedures applied were as follows:

1. Perusal and understanding of the information prepared by the Entity in relation to the ICFR system -
disclosure information included in the directors’ report - and assessment of whether this information
addresses all the information required considering the minimum content described in section F, relating
to the description of the ICFR system, of the ACGR form, as established in CNMYV Circular 5/2013 of
12 June 2013,

2. Inquiries of personnel in charge of preparing the information detailed in point ! above for the purpose
of achieving: (i) familiarisation with the preparation process; (ii) obtainment of the information
required in order to assess whether the terminology used is adapted to the definitions provided in the
reference framework; (iil) obtainment of information on whether the aforementioned control
procedures have been implemented and are in use at the Entity.

3. Review of the explanatory documents supporting the information detailed in point 1 above, including
documents directly made available to those responsible for describing the ICFR systems. In this
respect, the aforementioned documentation includes reports prepared by the Internal Audit Department,
senior executives or other internal or external experts providing support functions to the Audit and
Control Committee.

4. Comparison of the information detailed in point | above with the knowledge on the Entity's ICFR
obtained through the procedures applied during the financial statement audit work.

5. Reading of the minutes taken at meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit and Control Committee and
other committees of the Entity to evaluate the consistency between the ICFR business transacted and
the information detailed in point 1 above.

6. Obtainment of the representation letter in connection with the work performed, signed by those
responsibie for preparing and formulating the information detailed in point 1 above.

The procedures applied to the information relating to the ICFR system did not disclose any inconsistencies
or incidents that might affect the information,

This report has been prepared exclusively in the context of the requirements of article 540 of
Corporpte-Entetprises Act and by CNMV Circular 52013 of 12 June 2013, published by the Spanish
Natignal Securitiss Market Commission for the purposes of the description of the ICFR system in
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Josmﬁis Aller

October 28, 2015



Certificate on the issuance of the financial statements

Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Directors Report for the year ended 30 September
2015, have been formally prepared by the Parent Company Board of Directors, Compafiia de Distribucion
integral Logista Holdings, S,A,, at its meeting on 27 October 2015 in order to be audited and approved by
the Shareholders,

Corporate Governance Annual Report for the year ended 30 September 2015, which is part of
Consolidated Directors Report, is included below as a Consolidated Directors Report separate section,

Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Directors Report are set forth on 72 sheets, on the
obverse only, ali of which are signed by the Chairman and Secretary of the Board of Directors, who in
witness whereof, have signed below:

D, Gregorio Marafion y'Be'rtrén de Lis D, Luis Egido Galvez

Chairman Chief Executive

D, Stéphane Lissner ) DA, Cristina Garmendia Mendizabal
Director Director

D, Eduardo Zaplana Hernandez-Soro T Mr, John Matthew Downing
Director Director

Mr, Richard Guy Hathawéy Mr, David lan Resnekov

Director Director

D, Nicholas James Keveth D, Rafael de Juan L.dpez

Director Director and Secretary of the Board

Leganes, 27 October 2015



